Haringey Council
Summons to Attend

Full Council

Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent
broadcast via the Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting
the Mayor will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being filmed.
The images and sound recording may be used for training purposes
within the Council.

Generally the public seating areas are not filmed. However by
entering the meeting room and using the public seating area, you
are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those
images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training
purposes.

If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Principal
Support Officer (Committee Clerk) at the meeting.

To: The Mayor and Councillors of Haringey Council.

Dear Sir/Madam,

A meeting of the Council of the London Borough of Haringey will be held at the Civic Centre,
High Road, Wood Green, N22 8LE on MONDAY, 9TH FEBRUARY, 2009 at 19:30 HRS, to
transact the following business:

AGENDA

1. TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2. TO ASK THE MAYOR TO CONSIDER THE ADMISSION OF ANY LATE ITEMS OF
BUSINESS IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 100B OF THE LOCAL
GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority at
which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the existence and nature
of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the interest
becomes apparent.

A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the



10.

11.

12.

member's judgment of the public interest and if this interest affects their financial
position or the financial position of a person or body as described in paragraph 8 of the
Code of Conduct and/or if it relates to the determining of any approval, consent,
licence, permission or registration in relation to them or any person or body described
in paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct.

TO ASK MEMBERS WHETHER THEY NEED TO MAKE A DECLARATION IN
ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 106 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT FINANCE
ACT 1992 IN RELATION TO UNPAID COMMUNITY CHARGE OR COUNCIL TAX
LIABILITY WHICH IS TWO MONTHS OR MORE OUTSTANDING.

Members to whom this applies must make a declaration if they are present at any part
of the meeting and must not vote on any matter relating to the budget. It is not
sufficient for such members to refrain from voting or to absent themselves from the
chamber for particular parts of the meeting. Failure to make a relevant declaration
constitutes a criminal offence.

TO APPROVE AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF
THE COUNCIL HELD ON 19 JANUARY 2009. (PAGES 1 -12)

TO RECEIVE SUCH COMMUNICATIONS AS THE MAYOR MAY LAY BEFORE THE
COUNCIL

TO RECEIVE THE REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE

TO RECEIVE THE REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER AND HEAD OF
LEGAL SERVICES

TO MAKE APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES

TO CONSIDER REQUESTS TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS AND/OR PETITIONS
AND, IF APPROVED, TO RECEIVE THEM

TO CONSIDER A "STATE OF THE BOROUGH" REPORT BY THE LEADER OF
THE COUNCIL.

TO RECEIVE REPORTS FROM THE FOLLOWING BODIES (PAGES 13 - 150)

a) Cabinet — Report 10 —2008/9

Dr Ita O’'Donovan
Chief Executive
River Park House
225 High Road
Wood Green
London N22 8HQ

Friday, 30 January 2009



Page 1 Agenda Item 5

MINUTES OF THE FULL COUNCIL
MONDAY, 19 JANUARY 2009

Councillors Dobbie (Mayor), Adamou, Adje, Aitken, Alexander, Allison, Amin, Basu,
Beacham, Bevan, Beynon, Bloch, Bull, Butcher, Cooke, Davies,
Demirci, Diakides, Dodds, Dogus, Edge, Egan, Engert, Gorrie, Haley,
Hare, B. Harris, C. Harris, Jones, Kober, Lister, Mallett, Meehan,
Mughal, Newton, Oakes, Oatway, Peacock, Rainger, Reith, Santry,
Stanton, Thompson, Vanier, Weber, Williams, Wilson, Winskill and Scott

Apologies Councillor Baker, Canver, Griffith, Rahman Khan, Patel, Reid and
Whyte

MINUTE ACTION

NO. SUBJECT/DECISION BY

CNCL74. TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Baker, Canver,
Griffith Gmmh Rahman Khan, Patel, Reid and Whyte and from the Chief
Executive.

On behalf of the Council the Mayor expressed his best wishes for a
speedy recovery to the Chief Executive following her recent operation.

CNCL75.| TO ASK THE MAYOR TO CONSIDER THE ADMISSION OF ANY
LATE ITEMS OF BUSINESS IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 100B
OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

See Minutes 79, 81 and 84.

CNCL76. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Councillor Adje declared a personal interest in ltem 6 — Council Tax
Base for 2009/10 by virtue of being an employee of the LFCDA.

Councillor Jones declared a personal interest in Item 13 - Motion M by
virtue of being a member of the Electoral Reform Group.

The Mayor declared a personal interest in Item 13 — Motion O by virtue
of being an employee of the North Middlesex Hospital.

There were no declarations in relation to unpaid Community Charge or
Council Tax liability.




Page 2

MINUTES OF THE FULL COUNCIL
MONDAY, 19 JANUARY 2009

CNCL77.

TO APPROVE AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE
MEETING OF THE COUNCIL HELD ON 24 NOVEMBER AND THE
EXTRAORDINARY MEETINGS HELD ON 9 & 17 DECEMBER 2008.

RESOLVED:
That the minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 24

November, and extraordinary meetings held on 9 and 17
December 2008 be signed as a true record.

CNCLY78.

TO RECEIVE SUCH COMMUNICATIONS AS THE MAYOR MAY LAY
BEFORE THE COUNCIL

1. The Mayor congratulated Joe Goldberg on his election as the new
Labour Councillor for the Seven Sisters Ward at the by-election
held on 15 January 2009. The Mayor welcomed Councillor
Goldberg to the Council and wished him every success.

2. The Mayor also congratulated all those local residents who had
been honoured in the New Year honours list including May
Richards, who had received an MBE for her work since retiring,
raising thousands of pounds for Sickle Cell and Thalassemia, as
well as organising the annual Haringey Gospel Festival. Also to
PC Elizabeth Kenworthy, a serving police officer in Haringey, who
had received an MBE for her efforts helping injured passengers
during the July 2005 tube bombings; as well as to other honoured
residents charity workers Tamsila Tauqir, Narendra Mehta,
Jennifer Bell, and pianist and composer Howard Shelley.

3. The Mayor expressed his sadness at the sudden death of the
serving Mayor of Croydon, Councillor Jonathan Driver. The Mayor
reported that he had got to know Councillor Driver at a number of
engagements over the past year and had sent his condolences to
the family and colleagues at his untimely death.

4. The Mayor reported that, on behalf of the Council, he had passed
on sincere condolences to the family and colleagues of Cadet
Corporal Anthony Smith a member of the 16F Wood Green and
Hornsey Cadets who had died in a tragic accident in Scotland.

5. The Mayor wished good luck to Councillor Matt Davies and
Councillor Emma Jones who would be running in the forthcoming
London Marathon. He expressed the hope that all his Member
colleagues would show their support and sponsor them for their
respective charities.

CNCL79.

TO RECEIVE THE REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(a) Council Tax Base for 2009/10

The Mayor agreed to the admission of this item as urgent business.
The report was not available at the time of despatch as the




Page 3

MINUTES OF THE FULL COUNCIL
MONDAY, 19 JANUARY 2009

calculation of the tax base was usually agreed by the Chief Financial
Officer exercising delegated authority. However, it was urgent
because of the need to agree a revision to the policy for locally
defined discount for second homes which required a decision of the
full Council. The deadline for providing this information to levying
authorities was 31 January 2009.

RESOLVED:

1. That in accordance with the Local Authorities (Calculation of
Tax Base) Regulations 1992, the amount calculated by the
Council of the London Borough of Haringey as its tax base for
the year 2009/10 be set at 85,060.

2. That the level of discount for second homes (Class A and B)
be set at 10%.

(b) Changes to Political Groups and Appointments to
Committees and Sub Committees

The Mayor agreed to the admission of this item as urgent business.
The report could not be circulated earlier as information was awaited
from recent party Group meetings. It was urgent in order to permit
changes to be made to Council body appointments.

RESOLVED:

1. That it be noted that following a by - election on 15 January
2009, Joe Goldberg had been elected to represent Seven
Sisters Ward and that he was a member of the Labour Group.

2. That the following changes to the Labour Group memberships
of committees be agreed:

* Councillor Santry to replace Councillor Khan on the
Standards Committee.

* Councillor Santry to Chair the White Hart Lane and
Northumberland Park Area Assembly.

» Councillor Goldberg to fill the vacancy on Tottenham Hale
and Seven Sisters Area Assembly.

CNCLS80.

TO RECEIVE THE REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER AND
HEAD OF LEGAL SERVICES TO INCREASE THE INDEPENDENT
MEMBERSHIP FOR THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE

RESOLVED

1. That the recommendation from Standards Committee that the
Membership of the Standards Committee be increased by one
independent member, to 5 in total, with this additional position
being recruited to as part of the recruitment process for




Page 4

MINUTES OF THE FULL COUNCIL
MONDAY, 19 JANUARY 2009

independent members to be embarked upon in February 2009,
be agreed.

2. That the relevant part of the Council’s Constitution (Part Two —
Articles of the Constitution — Article 9.02 (a) Membership) in
relation to the Independent Membership of the Standards
Committee be amended accordingly.

CNCLS81.

TO MAKE APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES

The Mayor agreed to the admission of this item as urgent business. The
report could not be circulated earlier as information was awaited from
recent party Group meetings. It was urgent in order to permit changes to
be made to outside body appointments.

RESOLVED:

That the appointments to outside bodies as set out in the attached
appendix be approved.

CNCL82.

TO CONSIDER REQUESTS TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS AND/OR
PETITIONS AND, IF APPROVED, TO RECEIVE THEM

The Council received a deputation from Mr Adam Jogee on behalf of the
Haringey Youth Council.

Members asked questions of the deputation and received responses
thereto.

Councillor Reith as Cabinet Member for Children and Young People
congratulated the Youth Council, in particular the joint Chairs Adam
Jogee and Alisha Bartlett, on the work they had undertaken during the
year.

The Mayor thanked the deputation for attending.

CNCL83.

TO CONSIDER OPPOSITION BUSINESS SUBMITTED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE NO.12
The Opposition gave notice of their wish to debate “the recession”

Councillors Gorrie and Allison spoke on behalf of the Opposition Group
and Councillor Amin as Cabinet Member for Regeneration and
Enterprise responded.

The Mayor thanked Councillors for their contributions.

CNCL84.

TO ANSWER QUESTIONS, IF ANY, IN ACCORDANCE WITH
COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE NOS. 9 & 10

The Mayor agreed to the admission of this Item as urgent business.
Under Standing Orders, notice of questions was not requested until eight
clear days before the meeting, following which matters raised had to be
researched and replies prepared, in order to be given at the meeting.




Page 5

MINUTES OF THE FULL COUNCIL
MONDAY, 19 JANUARY 2009

There were 8 oral questions and 25 for written answer.

Oral Questions 7 and 8 were not reached in the allotted time and written
answers would be supplied to these questions.

CNCL85.

TO RECEIVE REPORTS FROM THE FOLLOWING BODIES

Cabinet Reports Nos. 8 and 9 2008/09

The Leader gave a brief resume of the reports of Cabinet which were
before the meeting for consideration. Other Members questioned details
of the reports and the Leader responded accordingly.

RESOLVED:

1. That the Cabinet Reports Nos. 8 and 9 be received and
adopted. That the recommendation concerning saving Unitary
Development Policies (report no.9 item 2) be agreed.

2. That Councillor Gorrie be supplied with a written answer to his
question concerning the award of the contract for childcare
litigation services to the London Borough Islington (Item 14 of
Report No. 8 — 2008/09 refers).

CNCLS86.

TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING MOTIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH
COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE NO. 13
Motion M (2009/10):

With the consent of the Council an alteration was made to Motion M in
accordance with Council Procedure Rule 15.9 by the deletion of the
second bullet point of the proposed resolution ‘to call on the Government
to establish the Youth Citizenship Commission with a clear remit to
develop the necessary framework for reducing the voting age to 16’.

It was then moved by Councillor Alexander and seconded by ClIr Davies
that:

This Council notes:
e that 16 and 17 year olds can leave school, get married, have a full-
time job, must pay taxes on their income, and can join the armed

forces, but are not allowed to vote in public elections;

e that 16 and 17 year olds have been calling for the right to vote for
many years through the Votes at 16 coalition;

e that disconnection between young people and the political
establishment is growing.

e the continuing good work by Haringey’s Youth Council and its
members




Page 6

MINUTES OF THE FULL COUNCIL
MONDAY, 19 JANUARY 2009

This Council believes:

e that young people are interested in politics and have valid views on
issues that affect them;

e that 16 and 17 year olds are old enough to have the right to vote in
public elections;

e that refusing to allow 16 and 17 year olds to vote is likely to further
depress turnout and encourage young people to give up on formal
political structures.

This Council resolves:

e to support the moves to lower the voting age for all public elections to
16;

e that the Leader of the Council write to Bridget Prentice MP, Minister
in charge of reform in electoral administration, to show the Council’s
commitment to pushing for votes for 16 and 17 year old and
requesting that the government seriously considers decreasing the
voting age.

The substantive motion as altered was then put to the vote and declared
CARRIED unanimously.

At this juncture there was a general disturbance and in accordance with

Council Procedure Rule 24.2 the Mayor called for the public gallery to be
cleared. The meeting was then adjourned.

Motion N (2008/09)

On re-convening it was moved by Councillor Scott and seconded by Clir
Rainger that:

This Council:

1. Welcomes the introduction of the Sustainable Communities Act,
which became law in October 2007. It also welcomes the
establishment of the principle that ‘local people know best what
needs to be done’.

2. Notes the cross party support in the House of Commons that the
Act received.

3. Notes that the Act gives local authorities the power to make
proposals to government on the action government must take to
reverse community decline and promote sustainable
communities.

4. Notes that the Act also gives local authorities the power to argue
for a transfer of public money and function from central to local




Page 7

MINUTES OF THE FULL COUNCIL
MONDAY, 19 JANUARY 2009

7.

control.

Notes that the Act also requires Central Government to produce
"spending reports" detailing the expenditure of all Government
bodies ineach local area. The Act requires that the first
arrangements for the spending reports should be taken by April
20009.

Views the Act as an opportunity to further the empowerment of
local communities in seeking local reforms regarding Economic,
Social and Environmental issues.

Appreciates the need to be fully committed to the process to
ensure that the residents of Haringey have a chance to have their
say on local services.

This Council therefore:
1.

Resolves, when invited to by Central Government in autumn
2008, to use the Act by preparing and submitting proposals on
how Central Government can help promote sustainable
communities in Haringey.

. Seeks to establish a representative panel of residents to consult

with the Council in deciding on which local issues will be
submitted to the Communities and Local Government Minister.

. Petitions the government to release the planned information

regarding local funding for services as soon as possible.

. Advertises the Act as widely as possible using all forms of media

to inform residents of the acts existence and how they can get
involved.

Looks for other authorities and stakeholders (including the
Voluntary and Community Sectors) who can assist/support the
development of the local panels and formulate these ideas into
practical submissions to the government.

Looks at replacing the current community engagement (through
citizen panels etc) with these proposed representative panels.

An amendment to the Motion was moved by Councillor Cooke and
seconded by Councillor Reith as follows:

Under ‘This Council:’
To leave out point Point 7
To insert as point 7:

7. Is fully committed to the process to ensure that the residents of
Haringey have a chance to have their say on local services.




Page 8

MINUTES OF THE FULL COUNCIL
MONDAY, 19 JANUARY 2009

To insert a further Point 8:

8. Notes that the Act begins from the principal the local people know
best what needs to be done to promote the success of an authority’s
area

Under ‘This Council Therefore:’
To leave out Point 4
To insert as Point 4:

4. Will promote awareness of the Act as widely as possible to inform
residents of the Act’s existence and how they can get involved in putting
forward proposals for Haringey.

To leave out Point 5
To insert as Point 5:

5. Notes that it is already in contact with other authorities and
stakeholders (including the Voluntary and Community Sectors) who may
be able to assist/support the development of the local panels and
formulate these ideas into practical submissions to the government.

To leave out Point 6
To insert as Point 6:

6. Building on our success in engaging with underrepresented groups;
aims to use existing community engagement structures to draw people
on to representative local panels.

On being put to the vote there were 26 in favour of the amendment and
22 against and the amendment was declared CARRIED.

The substantive motion as amended was then put to the vote and
declared CARRIED unanimously.

‘This Council:

1. Welcomes the introduction of the Sustainable Communities Act,
which became law in October 2007. It also welcomes the
establishment of the principle that ‘local people know best what
needs to be done’.

2. Notes the cross party support in the House of Commons that the
Act received.

3. Notes that the Act gives local authorities the power to make
proposals to government on the action government must take to




Page 9

MINUTES OF THE FULL COUNCIL
MONDAY, 19 JANUARY 2009

reverse community decline and promote sustainable
communities.

. Notes that the Act also gives local authorities the power to argue

for a transfer of public money and function from central to local
control.

Notes that the Act also requires central government to produce
"spending reports" detailing the expenditure of all government
bodies ineach local area. The Act requires that the first
arrangements for the spending reports should be taken by April
2009.

Views the Act as an opportunity to further the empowerment of
local communities in seeking local reforms regarding Economic,
Social and Environmental issues.

Is fully committed to the process to ensure that the residents of
Haringey have a chance to have their say on local services.

Notes that the Act begins from the principal the local people know
best what needs to be done to promote the success of an
authority’s area

This Council therefore:
1.

Resolves, when invited to by central government in autumn 2008,
to use the Act by preparing and submitting proposals on how
Central Government can help promote sustainable communities
in Haringey.

. Seeks to establish a representative panel of residents to consult

with the Council in deciding on which local issues will be
submitted to the Communities and Local Government Minister.

. Petitions the government to release the planned information

regarding local funding for services as soon as possible.

Will promote awareness of the Act as widely as possible to inform
residents of the Act’s existence and how they can get involved in
putting forward proposals for Haringey.

Notes that it is already in contact with other authorities and
stakeholders (including the Voluntary and Community Sectors)
who may be able to assist/support the development of the local
panels and formulate these ideas into practical submissions to the
government.

Building on our success in engaging with underrepresented
groups; aims to use existing community engagement structures to
draw people on to representative local panels’.

The Mayor asked the meeting if they wished to add 15 minutes to the
duration of the meeting to compensate for the disturbance and clearing




Page 10

MINUTES OF THE FULL COUNCIL
MONDAY, 19 JANUARY 2009

of the gallery. The meeting declined. The Mayor then closed the meeting
as it was 22.00 hours.

Motions O and P, having not been reached, fell.

COUNCILLOR ALAN DOBBIE

Mayor




Page 11

Proposed Appointments to Outside Bodies

Council: 19/01/2009

Minute ltem 81

Appendix

Body name No of Reps
Haringey Community & Police
Consultative Group, The Consultative
Group Category: Partnership
Lead Member & 1 other Cabinet member &
Clirs. 2 of the 6 members to be nominated
14/hcp 6 Term of Office: 1 Year for the Cabinet.
Granted Aid: no 5 LAB, 1 LIBDEM
Retiring Representative (s) / Expiry Councillor Nilgun Canver 19/05/08 31/05/09 Cabinet Member
Councillor Gmmh Rahman Khan 19/05/08 31/05/09 HC&PCC Exec. nominee
Councillor Jayanti Patel 19/05/08 31/05/09 HC&PCG Exec nominee
Councillor Ron Aitken 19/05/08 31/05/09
Councillor Catherine Harris 19/05/08 31/05/09
Councillor George Meehan 19/01/09 31/05/09 New Appointment
Selby Trust Category: Trust
14/str 3 Term of Office: 4 years must be councillors
Granted Aid: yes 3 LAB
Retiring Representative (s) / Expiry LABOUR VACANT - 1 09/01/09 31/05/09 vacancy following Clir Santry's resignation
LABOUR VACANT -2 09/01/09 31/05/09 vacancy following ClIr Peacock's resignation
LABOUR VACANT - 3 14/07/08 31/05/09 vacancy following Clir Amin's resignation
Homes for Haringey. ALMO Board Category: Partnership
ALMO 5 Term of Office: 1 year Does not need to be a Clir
Granted Aid: no 3 LAB, 2 LIBDEM
Retiring Representative (s) / Expiry Councillor Alan Stanton 19/05/08 31/05/09
Councillor Monica Whyte 19/05/08 31/05/09
Councillor Sara Beynon 19/05/08 31/05/09
Councillor Isidoros Diakides 19/05/08 31/05/09
Councillor Liz Santry 19/01/09 31/05/09 New appointment, replaces ClIr. Egan



Plaggel 2

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 13 Agenda ltem 12

REPORT OF THE CABINET NO. 10/2008-09 Page 1
COUNCIL 9 FEBRUARY 2009

Chair: Deputy Chair:
Councillor Clare Kober Councillor Lorna Reith
INTRODUCTION

1.1

1.2

1.3

The Council has reserved to itself the exercise of certain functions including the approval
of the budget, levying Council Tax and setting the non-domestic rate multiplier. The full
list of functions of the full Council is specified in Part 2 Article 4 of the Constitution — The
Full Council.

The budget process timetable provides for consideration by the Council of the Cabinet’s
budget package prior to the approval of the final budget and the Council Tax on 23
February 2009.

This report covers the budget package which we considered at our meeting on 26
January 20009.

ITEM FOR DISCUSSION

Finance

2.

2.1

2.2

FINANCIAL PLANNING - 2009/10 TO 2011/12

Following our meetings on 15 July and 18 November 2008 we reported to the Council on
13 October 2008 and 19 January 2009 respectively on the key financial planning issues
facing the Council and on the process for the detailed consideration of our budget
package. At our meeting on 26 January 2009 we considered a report setting out the
medium term financial strategy for the three-year period of the current administration
which will be reviewed on an annual basis. The initial financial planning report in July
identified a budget gap of £7.6 million over the four year period. The business planning
process this year has aimed to close this gap as well as reviewing the pre-agreed savings
totalling £12.8 million.

The report we considered on 26 January (attached at Appendix 1) proposed a budget
package for the period 2009/10 to 2011/12 and was in 12 sections:

government support

changes and variations

strategic approach

consultation

savings options

investment options

the children’s service budget within the dedicated schools grant
the housing revenue account budget
the capital programme

the treasury management strategy
council tax; and

Produced by Local Democracy and Member Services
Contact - Cabinet Committees Team 8489 2923



Page 14

REPORT OF THE CABINET NO. 10/2008-09 Page 2
COUNCIL 9 FEBRUARY 2009

e key risk factors.

The report was supported by various appendices as follows:

appendix A set out the gross budget trail

appendix B tracked the resource shortfall over the planning period

appendix C was the budget report of Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the
Cabinet response

appendix D set out proposed investments

appendix E set out proposed efficiency savings

appendix F was the proposed budget for children’s services within the dedicated
schools grant (DSG)

appendix G was the housing revenue account budget

appendices H, | and J related to the capital programme

appendix K was the treasury management statement.

2.3  We considered a proposed budget package on the basis of a Council Tax increase for
2009/10 of 1.95%. This assumed that the additional investment requirement for
children’s services arising from the joint area review inspection would be considered in
the final budget report to the Council on 23 February 2009. We noted that the package
proposed a budget for the schools element of children’s services within the ring fenced
dedicated schools grant (DSG), a balanced budget for the housing revenue account
(HRA) based on an average rent increase of 6.1% and a capital programme based on
the existing policy framework for capital expenditure.

2.4  We report that we adopted the recommendations contained in the report which, in
accordance with the agreed budget timetable, we refer to the Council for discussion and
agreement in so doing noting that the final decision on the budget and Council Tax for
2008/9 would be made at the meeting on 23 February 2009.

Produced by Local Democracy and Member Services
Contact - Cabinet Committees Team 8489 2923



Page 15

Haringey Councd

Agenda ltem

On 26 January 2009

mbinet

Report title: Financial Planning 2009/10 to 2011/12

Report of. The Director of Corporate Resources and Chief Financial Officer

Ward(s) affected: Al Report for: Key Decision

1.  Purpose

1.1 To consider the Cabinet’s proposed budget package for 2009/10 and later years.

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member for Resources

2.1 1am pleased to commend the report to Cabinet with the proposed council tax for
2009/10 financial year. This is a very tight budget with key investments for the
benefit of the people of the borough to deliver the Council's objectives.

2.2 We have taken into account the current economic climate and applied a prudent
approach in the setting of this budget ~ | would like to thank all those who
participated in the budget process.

2.3 I commend the report for approval.

3. Recommendations

3.1 To agree the changes and variations set out at paragraph 9.3 and appendix B.
3.2 To note the outcome of the consultation processes set out at section 11.

3.3 To agree the new investment proposals set out in appendix D.

3.4 To agree the revised and new savings proposals set out in appendix E.

3.5 To agree the proposals for the children’s services (DSG) budget set out in
appendix F.

1 of 35



Page 16

3.6
3.7

3.8

3.9

To agree the proposals for the HRA budget set out in appendix G.
To approve the housing rent increases at an average of £4.78 per week (6.1%).

To approve the housing tenant service charge increase at an average of £1.94 per
week.

To agree the proposals for the capital programme and funding set out in
appendices H and J and the capital resource allocation policy at appendix |.

3.10 To agree the treasury management strategy and policy and prudential limits set out

in appendix K.

3.11 To agree the proposed general fund budget requirement of £408.834m, subject to

the decisions of precepting and levying authorities, and the consequences for
council tax levels

3.12 To agree the way forward in respect of additional resources required for

investment in children’s services as set out in paragraphs 12.2 and 12.3.

3.13 To note that this budget report will go to Council on 9 February 2009 with the final

decision on the budget and the council tax for 2009/10 to be considered at the
Council meeting on 23 February 2009.

Report authorised by: Gerald Almeroth, Chief Financial Officer

Contact officer: Gerald Aimeroth, Chief Financial Officer, 020 8489 5972

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Executive Summary

The report sets out the Cabinet's budget package for recommendation to Council.
Based on this the council tax increase for 2009/10 will be 1.85%. The additional
investment requirement for children’s services arising from the joint area review
inspection will considered in the budget report fo Council.

The report proposes a budget for the schools element of children’s services within
the ring-fenced dedicated schools grant (DSG).

The report proposes a balanced budget for the HRA based on an average rent
increase of 6.1%.

The report proposes a capital programme based on the existing policy framework
for capital expenditure.

20of 35




Page 17

4.5 The treasury management strategy and policy is recommended for approval and
includes a revised annual investment strategy.

5.  Reasons for any change in policy or for new policy development (if
applicable)

5.1 The budget is designed to deliver the Council's existing policy framework.

6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

6.1 The following papers were used in the preparation of this report:
» The provisional local authority revenue support grant settlement 2009/40
issued 26 November 2008
+ Report of the Chief Financial Officer and Director of Corporate Resources
to Cabinet on 18 November 2008 — Financial Planning 2009/10 — 2011/12
» Report of the Chief Financial Officer and Director of Corporate Resources
to Cabinet on 15 July 2008 — Financial Planning 2009/10 — 2011/12

7 Background

7.1 The reports to the Cabinet on 15 July and 18 November set out the key
financial planning issues facing the Council and follow the agreed process for
the detailed consideration of the Cabinet's business planning process and
budget package. This report sets out the medium term financial strategy for
the three-year period of the current administration and this will be reviewed on
an annual basis. The initial financial planning report in July identified a budget
gap of £7.6m over the four year period. The business planning process this
year has aimed to close this gap as well as reviewing the pre-agreed savings
totalling £12.8m.

7.2 This report proposes a budget package for the period 2009/10 to 2011/12 and
is in 12 sections:

government support;

changes and variations;

strateqic approach;

consultation;

savings options;

investment options;

the children’s service budget within the dedicated schools grant;
the housing revenue account budget;
the capital programme;

the treasury management strategy;
council tax, and;

key risk factors.

s & & & & » 2 0 0 b 8 &

3of 35




7.3

7.4

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

Page 18

The report is supported by various appendices as follows:

» appendix A sets out the gross budget trail;

* appendix B tracks the resource shortfall over the planning period;

» appendix C is the budget report of Overview and Scrutiny Committee and
the Cabinet response;

¢ appendix D sets out proposed investments;

» appendix E sets out proposed efficiency savings;

* appendix F is the proposed budget for children’'s services within the
dedicated schools grant (DSG);

* appendix G is the Housing Revenue Account budget;

» appendices H, | and J relate to the capital programime, and;

+ appendix K is the treasury management statement.

The Council will consider the budget package and the limits under the
prudential code on 9 February and the final council tax (including the GLA
precept) and the policy and decision on reserves on 23 February.

Government support

The budget for 2009/10 is the second year of a three year grant settlement
that provides some certainty and allows for a reasonable amount of stability for
service planning over that pericd. There have been a number of significant
changes in the formula grant system in recent years and the debate on the
financing of local government is set to continue further,

There were major changes to grant distribution in 2003/04 when Standard
Spending Assessments (SSA) were replaced by Formula Spending Shares
(FSS). Those changes removed significant sums from the Council's base
allocation and meant that we received the grant floor increase for 2003/04
onwards.

There were then a number of significant changes in the formula that provided
a two year settlement position for 2006/07 and 2007/08. The key changes
were as follows:

» the transfer of schools’ resources from formula spending shares (FSS) to a
ring-fenced dedicated schools grant (DSG);

¢ an alternative grant system based on separate blocks for relative needs,
resources, a ‘basic amount’ and damping, replacing the previous formula
spending shares by service (FSS),

» three-year settlements for individual local authorities based on frozen or
projected data and linked to government spending review periods;
use of projected population and tax base information, and;

* reduced weighting for deprivation in the formula for Children’s and Younger
Adults Social Care resulting in a significant shift of resources away from
Haringey and London generally.

Separate damping floors within the formula were introduced for the Social
Services blocks above to minimise disruption with redistribution.

4 of 35



8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

8.9

8.10

Page 19

For the 2008/09 budget and following two years the government consulted
on changes to the formula in which Haringey had particular interest in two
aspects:

* area cost adjustment ~ provide a new geographical banding for East Inner
London to include Haringey, Newham and Barking & Dagenham to reflect
more accurately the actual labour costs in the area - this was not
implemented and no changes were made, and:

e removal of the separate damping floors for Children’'s and Younger
Adults Social Care introduced after significant changes were made in
2006/07 - this was removed and saw a shift in formula resources away
from Haringey and London.

The settlement provided indicative figures for the following two years as part of
the government's proposal to move to three-year settlement announcements
for individual local authorities. This is based on frozen or projected data and
linked to spending review periods and therefore this time matches the
Comprehensive Spending Review 2007 (CSR07) issued in October 2007.

The figures for 2009/10 were re-confirmed in the provisional grant
settlement announcement issued on 26 November 2008. The three year
grant settlement has set overall floors for the three year period. The settlement
for Haringey is shown in the table below:

Formula grant 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11
National average increase 3.7% 2.8% 2.6%
London average increase 2.4% 21% 2.0%
Floor increase 2.0% 1.75% 1.5%
Haringey increase 2.0% 1.75% 1.5%
Haringey grant increase (Em) £2.7m £2.4m £2.1m

Haringey has received a floor increase for all three years. The majority of
London boroughs are now on the grant floor. Haringey is calculated at being
approximately £7.5m below the grant floor in 2008/09. This is mainly as a
result of the removal of the separate floors for Children’s and Younger Aduits
Social Care after the change in the formula as mentioned above.

The Council continues to produce a medium term three year financial strategy
and this year includes rolling further a year to include 2011/12 although the
grant settlement for this year is not known. The current assumption is a
continuation of the 1.5% floor increase.

The population projections used in the grant settlement show a reduction over
the next three years. Last year it was the Council's view that this was under-
enumerating the true position in Haringey and it is believed that there are still
underlying issues with the data that the Office of National Statistics use,
including the impact of not counting short term migrant movements. The
government and ONS are planning reviews of the data and methodology
before the next census in 2011.

50f 35



85.11

8.12

8.13

8.14

8.15

8.16

Page 20

The dedicated schools grant (DSG) is the money that goes directly to fund
schools and the pupil led services in support of an authority's dedicated
school’s budget. Education services continue to receive higher increases than
other local government services although the increases over the three year
period are below that previously received. Haringey has received an increase
of 3.5% per pupil for 2009/10, which is the minimum increase available.

DSG per pupil 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11
National average increase 4.6% 3.7% 4.3%
London average increase 4.4% 3.8% 4.3%
Haringey increase 4.1% 3.5% 3.9%

The 3.5% increase represents a 2.9% basic increase plus funding for other
priority areas. This higher level of resources is designed to fund the minimum
funding guarantee per pupil for all schools of 2.1% although the final cash sum
available for each school will depend on the number of pupils as recorded in
the January 2009 count. The implications for children’s services budgets are
explored later in the report.

Under the Council's policy on capital expenditure, increases in grant in relation
to capital financing are earmarked to fund the revenue consequences of
supported borrowing. The estimated increase in this part of the formula is
£0.6m and this will be required to fund the increased costs of borrowing.
However, due to the way the grant floors operate, the Council will not receive
any actual additional cash grant to support this cost. The significant majority of
the approvals relate to the capital programme in the Children's Service for
schools.

The draft settiement for 2009/10 provides the ievel of specific grants largely
as reported previously. A significant amount of grant is now paid through the
area based grant (ABG), which is not ring-fenced for any specific purpose, but
is to be used for agreed local priorities. The adjusted base for 2008/09 is
£22.28m. This is planned to increase by £1.8m in line with the three year
strategy announced in 2008. £1.2m of this increase relates to Children’s
Services and it is recommended that this is allocated to those services. The
allocation of this will need to be agreed in conjunction with our partners in the
Haringey Strategic Partnership (HSP) as part of the Local Area Agreement
(LAA).

The level of supporting people grant continues to reduce by approximately
5% each year. The grant is estimated at £19.65m in 2009/10, a reduction of

- £1.03m (5%) from 2008/09. A review is taking place to manage this grant

reduction with the least amount of impact on services. This will help to inform
the further reduction of £0.98m (5%) planned for 2010/11 when the grant will
reduce to £18.667m. It has been confirmed that the grant will be included
within the ABG from 2010/11

There are some smaller changes on other elements of the grant, including the
working neighbourhood fund (WNF). These will be managed within the
overall position for each theme board under the HSP and as they are largely
unchanged will not have a significant impact on achieving the priorities within

6 of 35



8.17

8.18

8.19

9.1

9.2

Page 21

the LAA. The proposed allocations to the theme boards is set out in the table

below:

Area based grant - proposed theme @ 2008/09 | 2009/10 | 2010/11
board allocations £m £m £m
Better Places Partnership 1.944 2.019 2.019
Children & Young People’s Partnership 9.910 11.149 11.149
Enterprise Partnership 1.200 1.556 1.431
Integrated Housing Board 0.223 0.223 0.223
Safer Communities Executive Board 2.066 2.166 2.166
Neighbourhoods and Capacity 1.793 1.793 1.793
Well Being Partnership Board 5.143 5.143 5143
Sub total 22.279 24.049 23.924
Supporting People 18.666
Total 22.279 24.049 42.590

It is assumed that there will be net financial impact arising from the planned
transfer of resources from Primary Care Trusts to Local Authorities in
respect of non-health care related expenditure for people with learning
disabilities. This will be effective from April 2009 and money will be transferred
by local agreement for the next two years. Further work will be done for the
funding arrangements from 2011 onwards.

The pre-budget report stated that additional funding for local authorities was
being set aside in the form of housing / council tax benefits administration
grant to assist Council's respond to the economic downturn and meet
increased demands for benefit in an effective way. The amount allocated for
Haringey is not yet known.

The Leader wrote to the Minister in response to the provisional grant
settlement by the 7 January deadline and incorporated the key points as set
out in this section of the report.

Changes and variations

The 2008/09 budget was set as part of a process, which covered the first year
of a three year planning period that follows the government spending review
period. A number of budget changes and variations were recognised in the
previous budget process and these are brought forward in the approved
financial plans. During this year financial planning reports to the Cabinet in
respect of 2009/10 onwards have agreed further changes and variations.

The changes and variations already agreed by the Cabinet are as follows:

¢ an update on inflation and assumptions for formula grant and council tax as
the medium term financial strategy is rolied on a further year for 2011/12;

e the actuary’s triennial valuation of the pension fund up to 2007 was

completed in November 2007. The next valuation will be available in late
2010 for the preparation of the 2011/12 budget. The interim deficit position

7 of 35



Page 22

is likely to worsen and so an assumption for increased employer
contributions of £1m has been made on this basis:

9.3  The additional changes and variations reported now are as follows:

» the latest budget projection for the apportioned costs for the waste
disposal levy are based on the December report to the North London
Waste Authority (NLWA). An estimated increase of £0.5m in 2009/10 and
2010/11 followed by a further £0.8m in 2011/12 is included. A review is
being carried out by a Member Panel of the NLWA before this is formally
approved in February. There are a number of reasons for this projected
increase in costs, including increased tonnage, higher landfill tax and some
preparatory costs for the new procurement. Some risk allowance has been
made for next year in respect of market prices of recyclables. The full
financial impact of the long term procurement process as reported to
Cabinet in October 2008 is outside of this current planning timeframe;

» the London Pension Fund Authority (LPFA) are proposing a significant
increase in the levy in relation to pension deficits for staff at the former
Greater London Council (GLC) and other related bodies including the Inner
London Education Authority (ILEA). Inner London authorities are being
asked to pick up a higher level of costs because of the direct link to ILEA.
This follows a high increase that was notified late in the 2008/09 budget
process. The budget in 2007/08 was £252k and increased by 42% to
£359k in 2008/09. This year the LPFA are proposing a further 72%
increase of £259k to be phased in by 2011/12 and this is included in the
Council's budget proposals. London Council's are challenging this levy
increase;

* asaving of £300k on annual insurance premiums paid into the Council's
self-insurance fund can be made following an external review of the fund
position. This follows improved risk management practices, particularly in
the highways service, and aiso delivers a one-off reduction in the level of
the fund against known and projected liabilities that can be used for other
purposes;

» the basis for allocating the cost of the concessionary fares levy under the
new national scheme was reviewed by London Councils last year. The
proposal agreed was to move towards actual usage data, but that this
should be phased in over a period of time to allow for refinement of the
collection of such usage date. It was subsequently agreed that the
increase would be phased in over three years on a 40:30:30 basis. A
further factor is that 2009/10 is the final year of the transport provision
contracts so there is some uncertainty on the cost estimates after that year.
The impact of moving to usage data for Haringey is estimated to be an
increase of over £2m per annum. This was allowed for in the budget last
year, however, this is now not fully required over the planning period and
an adjustment has been made for this based on the latest figures from
London Councils;

8 of 35



Page 23

¢ recent economic conditions have had a consequent impact on inflation
impacting across a number of areas and has led to a certain amount of
instability.  Significant increases in oil and energy prices have been
followed by increases in food and other general prices. The Council has
seen significant increases in its own contracted energy prices through the
wholesale market and recently predicted falls in prices have not yet flowed
through, therefore an allowance of £0.5m is added 1o the base to provide
for the current position. On general inflation the November position
shows inflation at 4.1% and a reduction to 3.1% for December. It is
predicted to fall significantly next year to within the government's target of
2%. The Bank of England has predicted it may fali to below 1% some time
in 2009. The Council's current budget assumptions allow for 2.5%
generally on costs (including pay) and fees and charges income. |t is
proposed to reduce this to 2% in line with the government target for
2009/10 and 2010/11 reducing the budget requirement by approximately
£1.2m each year,

» the downturn in economic conditions may have an impact locally on
services although this may take a while to feed through. This may take the
form of increased demand for Council services (such as higher volumes of
housing benefit applications) or a loss in fees and charges income (such as
building control). A general contingency sum of £1.1m is proposed for the
two years to 2010/11 to allow for this although initially any pressures will be
contained within approved existing budgets. The previously agreed
contingency sum of £1.5m for 2009/10 can be released;

« the Chancelior's pre-budget report proposed an increase of 0.5% in
employer’'s national insurance rates from April 2011. This is estimated to
cost the general fund approximately £0.7m per annum with a further £0.5m
being a cost to schools, and;

» the government have previously reduced subsidy thresholds in respect of
homelessness by 5% in 2007/08 and 10% in 2008/09 for London
authorities only. The Department of Work and Pensions (DWP) had
planned to carry out a more fundamental review of how funding is allocated
for implementation in 2009/10. It was expected that this would have a
further detrimental impact on the Council and a provision of £3m was made
for this year. The DWP recently announced that the review would not be
completed in time and that it would be deferred one year. It also
announced a cash freeze in subsidy levels for London authorities in
2009/10 with all other authorities receiving a 5% increase in thresholds.
This has an impact on Haringey as there will be inflationary pressures on
costs without a related increase in subsidy income. It is proposed that the
£3m base provision is re-phased over the planning period with the bulk of
the additional cost coming in 2010/11. This allows £750k to be retained to
assist the service in meeting its reduction targets with some of the
inflationary pressures to be contained within the service.

9.4 These changes and variations are summarised at appendices A and B.

9of 35



Page 24

10 Strategic approach

101

10.2

11

11.1

1.2

The key drivers for the strategic context in business planning process have

been derived from the current jointly agreed Community Strategy, the majority

party Manifesto and the approved priorities within the Council Plan as follows:

* Making Haringey one of London’s greenest boroughs

« Creating a Better Haringey: cleaner, greener and safer;

* Encouraging lifetime well-being at home, work, play and learning;

« Promoting independent living while supporting adults and children when
needed, and;

+ Delivering excellent, customer focused, cost effective services.

The Council Plan for 2007/10 has a set of key short and medium term actions

that contribute to meeting the above priorities, which in turn will contribute to

the Community Strategy as agreed by the Haringey Strategic Partnership. The

financial plans arise from the business planning process, through Pre-business

plan reviews (PBPR) and allocate resources to priorities as well as delivering

efficiency savings and contributing to the value for money agenda. Local

needs information including the borough profile informs the service planning at

this stage. The final budget proposals will form the medium term financial

strategy and will be aligned to the Council Plan. Individual annual business

plans will be published in April 2009.

Consultation

Consultation on budget options is as follows:

¢ consideration of financial strategy and the pre-business plan reviews
(PBPRs) by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee;

* a discussion of the Council's medium term financial plans with partners
within the Haringey Strategic Partnership;

« consideration of the Children and Young People's Service budget issues by
schools at the School's Forum;

s consultation with tenants and leaseholders via Homes for Haringey on rent
increases and budget proposals;

¢ a presentation of the Council's strategic plans at an event for local
businesses;

e separate focussed consultation sessions with residents;

¢ trade union representatives; and,

o other stakeholders.

Scrutiny

11.2.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee met during December and January to

consider the Council’s financial strategy and the general fund revenue savings
and investment options included in the PBPR's for each of the business units.
The conclusion and comments of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee are
attached in their report at appendix C2.

10 of 35



Page 25

11.2.2The Cabinet has given careful consideration to the specific budget issues that
have been raised as part of the process and the responses are set out in
appendix C1. The Cabinet concur with many of the recommendations made
by Overview and Scrutiny Committee and some changes have been made to
the budget proposals attached as noted. The capital investment bids for
corporate resources were considered by Overview and Scrutiny Committee on
6 January 2009 and a summary of their comments are also included.

11.3 Haringey Strateqic Partnership

11.3.1 Key pariners have been consuited individually through this budget process. 1t
is also proposed that the Council will report to the Haringey Strategic
Partnership (HSP) in February to discuss the Council's medium term financial
strategy in the context of the wider review of the funding, commitments and
targets included in the Local Area Agreement and the allocation of the area
based grant and other funding streams.

11.4 Schools

11.4.1 The School's Forum has a key consultative role in the agreement of the budget
strategy for the dedicated schools budget. Budget planning issues and the
detailed report on the dedicated schools budget were considered by the
Schools Forum at its meeting on 11 December 2008. The recommendations
extracted from the minutes of that meeting are attached at appendix F and
these are included in the proposed budget plans.

11.4.21t was recommended that Cabinet consider reducing the estimated provision
for pre-opening costs for Heartlands school. This has been done and is
reflected in the revised budget attached.

11.4.3 The recommended budget changes together with the grant settlement position
result in £0.7m of ‘headroom’ being available above the minimum funding
guarantee. The Forum has recommended that this should be distributed to
schools through additional educational needs (AEN) factors. This is in line with
the agreed policy of increasing the AEN/deprivation funding in the formula
agreed last year.

11.4.4 Further details on schools funding and the proposed budget are set out later in
this report.

11.5 Tenants and leaseholders

11.5.1 Homes for Haringey held a meeting of the Residents Finance Panel during the
budget process and discussed the budget proposals in detail as part of the
consultation process. Tenant and leaseholder representatives are members of
the group.

11.5.2 The rent increase is driven by the government's rent restructuring guidance. A
formal consultation process is conducted on the options for implementing the
rent increase including through the Residents Finance Panel and direct tenant
communication. The consultation period began on 4 December and closed on

11 0f 356



Page 26

12 January. The response rate to the consultation was low. In terms of the
three options for dealing with the rent increase no particular one emerged
ahead of the others. A number of individual comments were received, and
although some were suggesting that the increase should not be so much,
others stated that rents need to increase to maintain housing services.

11.5.3 A consultation exercise has also been carried out in respect of tenant’s service
charges. The increase has been discussed with the Residents Finance Panel
and through direct communication. The end of this consultation period has
been extended beyond the original deadline of 17 January. The general
feedback so far is of concern about the increases in heating costs.

11.5.4 Leaseholder's service charges are charged the actual costs of providing the
service with large charges being consulted through the formal Section 20
process. The recommendations in this report for service charges therefore do
not apply directly to leaseholders.

11.6 Business event

11.6.1 Business consultation events are being held on 22 and 28 January 2009 at
which presentations will be given on the Council's financial strategy and the
increase in business rates by the government. Feedback will be included as
part of the report to full Councit in February.

11.7 Residents

11.7.1 This year the Council year engaged with residents on the main budget process
in a more proactive way than has been undertaken in the past. This is in line
with the government agenda of participatory budgeting. The consultation was
based on information giving and asking for comments through Haringey
People, a web-based questionnaire and a consultation exercise with groups of
invited residents at facilitated workshops. This is in addition {o the already
well-established publication of the pre-business planning review documents on
the website.

11.7.2 Focussed workshops were held and the participants were drawn from existing
lists of residents who had taken part in the Annual Resident survey and had
agreed to take part in further research, as well as people who had expressed
an interest in coming to a budget workshop session.

11.7.3 Five workshops were held, two spread geographically across the borough, two
with young people at youth clubs/schools and one workshop with a group of
disabled people. A survey was also carried out with groups of disadvantaged
young people. Just under one hundred people’s views were obtained overall.

11.7.4 The content included an explanation of the Council's funding sources and
spending plans along with a view of how increases in council tax impact of the
Council's budget making process. Participants were asked about which
services they use or have used. This was followed by round table facilitated
discussions about a series of questions designed to ascertain which areas of

12 of 35



Page 27

the budget residents would rather support financially. The sessions were
closed with a vote on the questions posed.

11.7.5 A summary of the findings and main comments are as follows:

» residents were pleased to be invited to comment and take part in this
budget process and felt it was a good initiative from the Council:

» participants were interested and surprised when taken through the
presentation of how the Council was funded, especially how little the
council tax pays for;

« almost everyone who took part would like more detailed information in the
future;

* many participants commented that it is a difficult job making the necessary
decisions for the budget;

+ the main service priorities that came through were; social care for children
and vulnerable adults; recreation facilities including parks and opens
spaces; youth services and education (the last two the highest priority
amongst young peopie surveyed), and;

e in terms of council tax, the majority of participants said they would rather
see current levels of service maintained or improved knowing that it may
mean an increase in council tax.

11.8 Trade unions

11.8.1 Meetings on 5 December and 7 January have been held with representatives
of the trade unions to discuss the financial strategy and the pre-business plan
reviews at a high level. Written responses have been received on the detailed
proposals and these are being discussed at departmental levels where
appropriate. The key overall views expressed are set out in the following
paragraphs.

11.8.2"The trades unions in Haringey Council are aware that the Council’s finances
are significantly determined by the level of Central Government support that it
receives and by political considerations bearing on the level of council tax. At a
national level, ail three of the unions recognised in Haringey have pressed the
government for greater investment in the public sector and a greater
commitment to public services. Our comments on Haringey's proposals,
therefore, reflect our perception of how the Council proposes to handle the
constraints within which it must work.”

11.8.3 "We welcome the fact that there is no section 188 notice in prospect this year
and that effort has been made to minimise the level of redundancies. There
appear to have been improvements in the effectiveness of the redeployment
procedure over recent years and we hope this will contribute to the avoidance
of redundancies. We welcome the fact that the pre business plan reports
contain proposals to reduce the level of use of agency staff and replace such
staff with directly employed staff. We would encourage the Council to continue
scrutinising its employment practices to maximise the use of directly employed
staff.”

13 of 35



Page 28

11.8.4"We recognise that the recent inspection in the children and families service

will necessitate a fresh look at the Council's handling of child care and welfare
issues and that this may have implications for spending in that area. Should
these budget plans require revision in light of that, we will expect to be included
in the consuitation process.”

11.9 Other stakeholders

11.9.1 Views of other stakeholders have been sought and received as part of the

12

12.1

12.2

12.3

13

13.1

budget process including specifically with pariners such as the Primary Care
Trust, the Mental Health Trust and voluntary organisations.

Investment options

The PBPR process has identified new investment opportunities which align
with the Council's strategic agenda. These are set out in appendix D together
with some other unavoidable growth items and are recommended for
acceptance. The new proposals total £3.5m in the general fund revenue
budget over three years in addition to the £1.3m of pre-agreed investments.
The Council’s priorities provide the rationale for the allocation of investment
resources via the business planning process and are set out in the appendix.
The key areas for investment are as follows:

* learning disability services — provision for additional demand;

+ children’s social care — provision for increase number of looked after
children;

increase in investment in direct payments for children’s social care;
provision of free swimming for under 16’s and over 60’s;

additional resources for anti-social behaviour services, and,

additional and expanded recycling services to increase coverage.

The investment requirement for children’s services, following the joint area
review inspection, is not vet fully known. It is envisaged that a significant level
of additional resources will be required to implement the action plan and to
embark on a programme of transformational change with the aim of becoming
an exemplar for safeguarding and modern social work practice. The action
plan is due to be finalised and submitted to the Secretary of State by the end of
February. This sits outside the current budget process.

It is proposed that the net budget requirement for this additional level of
resource be funded from reserves for 2009/10 and that this will form part of the
Council's consideration of the budget in February. The ongoing impact on
future years can be incorporated in the business planning process in the
coming year.

Savings options

Proposed savings totalling £12.8m over the next two years were agreed as
part of the previous budget processes. This excludes the separate savings

14 of 35



13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

Page 29

targets of £2m for each of the next two years for the Achieving Excellence
programme. These savings have been reviewed through the PBPR process
and either confirmed as sound and achievable or deemed as not achievable
and replaced with new items. Some savings proposals have been re-phased
to reflect a more realistic delivery profile. The changes to the pre-agreed
savings are set out in appendix E and this shows a net shorifall against the
original plans of £1.1m.

Through the PBPR process new savings options have been identified against
agreed targets and these are included at appendix E. The appendix sets out
those new savings proposals in respect of the general fund, which are
recommended by the Cabinet for agreement, and total £5.4m over the next
three years.

Members are aware of the government's agenda to generate efficiency
savings throughout the public sector. Originally set out in the Gershon review
and more latterly in the Comprehensive Spending Review 2007 (CSR07).
Local government has been set a target of £4.9bn, which equates to 3% of the
net base budget and achievement of this has been taken into account in the
grant settlement as being delivered in cash. Each local authority currently
reports progress on efficiencies to the government in the new national
performance indicator set where one is for value for money. The government
have also instructed local authorities to include efficiency information directly
on to council tax bills for residents from this year onwards.

The Council's ability to deliver budget savings is confirmed as a key aspect of
the response to the strategic agenda in order fo re-allocate resources to
priorities and maintain essential services. The plans set out in this report
include significant identified savings which can be summarised as follows:

Budget 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12
£m % £m % £m Y%
General fund 9582 3.9% | 5783| 2.3% | 3.408| 1.3%
DSG (excl 0.000| 00% | 0000} 00%| 0234] 01%
ISB)
HRA 11921 13% ] 20007 2.1% | 0.000| 0.0%
Total 10.774 | 21% | 7.783] 1.5% | 3.642| 0.7%

The Achieving Excellence programme is a key part of the overall strategy for
delivering savings. An update was recently reported to Members that showed
progress is being made broadly in line with expectations and that the £5m
savings target will be delivered. The key streams for the efficiency part of the
programme are the value for money reviews and Smart
Working/accommodation strategy. As this is an evolving programme further
focus and consideration is being given to strategic commissioning and the cost
of central functions, which may assist in delivering additional savings beyond
2010/11 with the appropriate level of investment.

15 of 35



Page 30

13.6 The staffing implications of the savings proposals include the deletion of a

14

14.1

14.2

14.3

14.4

14.5

14.6

number of posts as highlighted through the PBPR's. All efforts will be made to
minimise the impact on permanent staff. The Council has a well established
process for managing workforce reductions, which will apply. Redeployment,
retraining, and the review of vacancies/temporary employment will assist to
minimise the impact of reductions in the staffing establishment. The Council's
trade unions have been consulted during the budget making process and will
be closely involved in the actions described here. It may transpire that some
redundancies will be unavoidable and the due statutory process will be
followed. In the closing of accounts process last year a one-off corporate
provision for redundancy costs was set up for £2m. This will utilised only
where the redundancies relate to savings proposals approved as part of the
budget process and can not be funded from revenue underspends in the
service. It is the Council's aim to minimise the use of this provision and
progress will be reported back to Members in due course.

Children’s services budget - dedicated schools grant (DSG)

in November 2007 the government announced the latest multi-year settiement
information for the DSG covering the period 2008/09 to 2010/11. Members are
reminded that this information set out a guaranteed unit of funding together
with an estimate of pupil numbers for each of the three years covered by the
settlement to give indicative cash amounts of grant.

The headline position for Haringey in 2009/10 is an increase per pupil of
3.5%. This compares unfavourably with a 4.1% increase in 2008/09 and the
London average of 3.8% for 2009/10.

Schools are guaranteed a minimum funding increase based upon the
government's assessment of inflationary pressures, although for each of the
years covered by the multi-year funding settlement, a 1% efficiency saving has
also assumed to be achieved. The minimum funding guarantee (MFG) has
been set at 2.1% per pupil in 2009/10 and the same for the following year.

The final cash amount of DSG is set by reference to the actual pupil numbers
recorded at the January census immediately prior to the financial year in
question, i.e. for 2009/10 the January 2009 count. However, because of
concerns over the accuracy of estimated numbers produced by the
Department for Children's Schools and Families (DCSF) previously, the
authority has adopted a more prudent view of pupil numbers in budgeting for
DSG.

The guaranteed unit of funding and the estimated pupil numbers used to set
DSG for 2008/09 as reported to the Council in February 2008 was 32,207
pupils at £4,987 giving a fotal estimated cash figure of £160.617m (after
rounding).

In actual terms (at the January 2008 count) the 2008/09 final pupil numbers

were marginally lower still (at 32,084) and a budget adjustment of £620k was
implemented in this year. In continuing to adopt a conservative approach to

16 of 35



Page 31

the setting of the DSG this lower pupil number has been reflected in setting the
2009/10 assumptions.

14.7 Whilst DSG allocations are not announced by the government on a rolling
three year basis, data for 2011/12 has been added based on a continuation of
pupil numbers and an assumed 3.5% increase in the guaranteed unit of

funding.
Year Per pupil Increase | Estimated | Estimated
guaranteed over pupil DSG
unit of previous numbers
funding year
£ % £m

2008/09 4,986.83 4.1 32,084 159.997
{final)
2009/10 5,160.66 3.5 32,084 165.575
2010/11 5,364.29 3.9 32,084 172.108
2011/12* 5,5652.04 3.5 32,084 178.132

“2011/12 figures are indicative and based upon the assumptions stated.

14.8 The total DSG position as proposed is balanced. The School Forum
considered a three year strategy in 2008 and this has been updated to reflect
the changes in pupil numbers set out above and the continuation of the policy
agreed at Cabinet on 18 December 2007 of allocating any residual headroom
towards AEN/ Deprivation factors within the Haringey Formula for Financing
Schools.

14.9 Appendix F1 sets out the position on the DSG for the three year planning
period within which there is provision for resources to be retained centrally in
order to fund the following items:

» the estimated cost of inflation attributable to central budgets (£470,000);

¢ the pre-opening costs associated with the new Heartlands High School
(£122,000) reduced significantly from earlier proposals reflecting the
views expressed by the School’'s Forum;

+ the delegation of £264,000 to Moselle School to enable increased
autism provision to be created and, allied to this proposal charging the
corresponding transport costs (£116,000) for these pupils against
central expenditure within the DSG to recognise the efficiency of using
in-nouse provision;

» the need to provide for possible budget pressures in SEN placements
(£225,000 covering both demographic and inflationary pressures), and;

o the provision of personalised learning services to pupils within central
provision, e.g. the Pupil Referral Unit (£31,000).

14.10 In the near future it is proposed to consult with schools on changes to the
2009/10 Haringey Scheme for Financing Schools in respect of two issues:

17 of 35



14.11

14.12

15

15.1

15.2

Page 32

¢ the operation of a sustainable investment fund for schools to improve
their energy efficiency based on repayable loans from school balances,
and;

¢ the insertion of requirements for audit work to be carried out by schools
that choose to operate payroll services outside of the Haringey payroll
Service. This is to ensure that the Authority’'s own statutory audit
requirements in connection with the Teachers Pension Scheme can be
sufficiently met.

The DSG is currently allocated by government on a ‘spend-plus’ basis, derived
from authorities’ spending in 2005/06 pius uplifts for inflation and ministerial
pricrities. The previous DSG methodology, which underpins the 2005/06
spend, included an area cost adjustment (ACA) element to estimate the
additional costs associated with high cost areas. Under this formula Haringey
was classified as an outer London authority, even though it pays its teachers
inner London allowances and displays many characteristics akin to inner
London authorities. This results in Haringey's DSG funding being substantially
below that of the borough’s inner London neighbours. The Department for
Children, Schools and Families (DCSF) is carrying out a review of the DSG
with the expectation of a return to formula funding in 2011/12.

Haringey has already made representations to the DCSF for a more equitable
ACA formula to be developed and, in conjunction with the Haringey Schools
Forum, will continue to make concerted effort to lobby for the improvement of
the  formula to more accurately reflect Haringey's costs.

Housing revenue account

The housing revenue account (HRA) is a self-financing account and therefore
cannot be subsidised by the general fund i.e. council tax. The strategy for the
HRA must therefore show sustainable resources available to provide the
service and remain in balance in conjunction with maintaining the working
balance at a prudent level. The income for this account is largely through
government subsidy and tenant rents.

The final HRA subsidy determination was received on 18 December 2008.
The rent restructuring formula changes result in a recommended average rent
increase for Haringey of 6.13% equating to an average of £4.78 per week.
The draft subsidy position issued on 28 October 2008 gave two options for
determining the guideline rent:

1. based on the original assumption that guideline rents are increased to
incorporate the 5% retail price index increase at September 2008 with
adjustments to achieve a convergence with formula rents by 2011/12,
and;

2. based upon a fixed increase of 6.2% in guideline rent. To achieve this,
the convergence with formula rent would need to be extended to
2024/25. The proposed guideline rent increase for 2010/11 would be
6.1%.

18 of 35



153

15.4

156.5

15.6

Page 33

The final subsidy determination from the government is adopting the second
option. The first option would have meant an average rent rise for Haringey
tenants of 7.5%.

The proposed rent increase for each individual property is therefore
determined by the application of the government’s rent restructuring formula,
which aims to align HRA rents to the average Housing Association rent levels.
The Council consulted with tenants on the rent increase based on the draft
determination in order to meet the statutory deadlines. Although the average
increase is 6.1%, rents are calculated on an individual property basis and the
large majority of changes will be affecting the 1 to 3 bedroom properties and
the range of variations in rent would result from below 4.5% to over 9.0%. The
consultation process therefore sought views on three different options of
implementing the rent increase as follows:

1. set the rents as per the government’s rent restructuring formula - this
means that increases will be calculated according to the size and value
of the home. Generally, tenants with a high rent will have higher
increases although the rent increase will be different for each dwelling;

2. set the rents as per the government’s formula, but limiting any individual
rent increases to no more than £6.00 per week. This option may require
some tenants to receive a higher % increase than under the rent
restructuring formula although it offers greater protection against higher
cash increases, or;

3. set the rents by adding 6.1% to all dwellings. This means that
everyone’s rent will increase by the same flat rate percentage. Homes
with higher rents will increase the most in value terms.

The consultation had a low response and was inconciusive in terms of a
preferred option. 1t is therefore recommended that option 1 is implemented as
this adheres strictly to the government’s rent restructuring formula.

A review of service charges was carried out in this budget process. Since
2003/04 local authorities have been required to disaggregate service charges
to tenants from rent. Service charges have generally risen in line with general
inflation, however, it is clear that some costs have risen at a faster rate and
therefore some service charges are out of line with the Council's general
external income policy to recover full costs. This budget proposes to raise
those charges, which will result in an average increase of £1.94 per week. The
range will be from reductions of £0.52 to increases of £21.16 per week. The
higher end of the range of these increases affect just over 600 households out
of a total of 16,000 and the reason for these higher increases are in respect of
heating charges where energy costs have risen significantly this year. The
cost of all tenant service charges other than heating can be taken into account
in the assessment for housing benefit and approximately 70% of tenants are
currently in receipt of benefits.

19 of 356



15.7

15.8

15.9

15.10

Page 34

In addition to the above, the HRA medium term financial strategy includes
the following:

» efficiency savings of £1.1 million have been identified by Homes for
Haringey following the re-tendering of the contracts for gas maintenance:

s investment bids of £1.771 million proposed for 2009/10 that are detailed
in appendix G;

» savings of £444,000 were built in to the current budget based on this
being delivered with a review of the tenancy management service, as this
review is still on-going these savings may now not be achieved in the
coming financial year, but will be included in the strategy to identify
further efficiencies in the HRA;

» further efficiency savings of £2 million are to be identified by Homes for
Haringey in future years after 2009/10:

e Supporting People Grant is forecast to be £566,000 below budget for
2008/09 with an ongoing financial impact into future years;

*» saving from the expiry of long leases is forecast to be £600,000 in
2008/09 and in future years, and;

+ delivery of rent collection at the agreed performance levels at 99% with a
void rate of 2% on general stock.

The government housing subsidy position continues to worsen on an annual
basis. The final subsidy determination for 2009/10 shows an overall decrease
for Haringey in respect of management and maintenance subsidy of 0.9%,
which is considerably lower than inflation. Management and maintenance
allowances are increased by 0.68% to £2,163.37 per dwelling. Taking into
account the reduction in dwellings due to disposalis, this represents a reduction
in overall allowances of £307,000. The major repairs allowance however has
increased to £12.407m in 2009/10 and this is used to fund the capital
programme.

The government have been carrying out a review of the HRA subsidy
system inciuding utilising some authorities as pilots. The details of the review
so far appear to be inconclusive and it is expected that further work will be
required before consulting on any permanent changes to the system 1o
possibly inform the next spending review.

The current approved HRA budget position in 2008/09 is set out in the table
below, together with the proposed changes to give an overall position for the
HRA. This table is shown in more detail in appendix G. The target level of
balances for the HRA is £5m and this is broadly achieved over the three year
planning period. The planned opening balance for 2008/09 of £4.690m has
been revised to £4.724m as a result of the closing of the 2007/08 accounts.

£000 2008/09  2009/10  2010/11 | 2011/12 | 2012/13

Planned opening (4,724) | (5,255)  (5,925)| (5,526)| (5,915)

balance

In year budget (531) (670) 399 (389) 1,302

Proposed closing (5,255) | (5,925)| (5,526)! (5,915)| (4,613)
' baiance

20 of 35




1 6' Capztai pmgramme '.

iﬁ‘f A cap;tai pmgramme has been deveioped drwen by the Councsls agreed
- ‘policy framework for: capital expenditure, the. approved capital . strategy and.
) '-'underpmned by asset. management: plans across the Councﬂ The averaii e
> 'proposed programme 1s attached at appendix J. ' : -

. ._16.2_'_'The exustmg resource ailocatian strategy adopted by 1he Execut;ve on 2’!_

. October 2003 uses the Commumty Strategy and Council’s Corporate Plan as’
- its framework for de‘zermmmg priorities and is delivered through the Councn S
busmess piann;ng precess Th:s is. updatad and attached at appendzx . '

183" '"E‘he ‘main - resources for cap;ta§ expend;ture are prov;ded through borrowmg-’_ Lo
' _approvals, i.e. supported capital expenditure (revenue) or SCE (R)and through - -
grant; mamiy supported capital expenditure {capital) or SCE (C). Both forms of. -
funding can be ring-fenced by the government. Corporate resources comprise: = .~
- non-housing and education borrowing limits,  non-ring-fenced grant and all - .
~ capital receipts. The estlmated resources avanlable for capital investment are e
-..set out in the table below over the next three years. The estimates for the . -
_ sravestment for decent homes and BSF are shown separately.

Original 3 year -
2008/09" | 2009/10 | 2010/11 | 201112 | Total: |-
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 |

| Capital Programme - Resources Utilisation
_ | Estimates -

| Housing (Housing Revenue Account)

- I'SCE® Single Capital Pot 6,233 6,233 6,233 6,233 18,699
| SCE® Separate Programme Eiement (Decent '
Homes) *36,105 | 30,0001 40000 | 44,000 | 114,000 .4
{ Major Repairs Aliowance (MRA) 11,855 | 12,407 | 12,407 | 12,407 | 37,221 | -

54,193 | 48,640 | 58,640 | 62,640 | 169,920 |

| Children & Young People’s Services Lo
BSF (8CE@, SCE® & other finance) 47,871 98,822 34,580 3,228 | 136,610

Other SCE® (excluding BSF) 6,479 5,253 8,510 46121 16,375
Other SCE® (excluding BSF) 6,245 ] 12417 ;. 16,181 | 12514 | 41,1121
Other Grants & Contributions 250 1,274 200 200 1,674 1

60,845 1 117,766 | 57,451 | 20,554 1 195,771 |

Urban Environment N
TiL Capital Grant (Local Implementation Plan) 5,337 3,815 6,000 6,000 | 15,815
Other SCE© 2,406 1,550 0 0 1,550
7,743 5,365 6,000 6,000 | 17,365

Adult, Culture & Community Services

SCE® (Disabled Facilities Grant) 600 749 749 749 2,247
Application of Corporate Resources
SCE® 0 100 100 0 200
Capital Receipts - Bids for Corporate Resources 18,167 9,837 7,772 8,255 | 25,864
Capital Receipts - Accommodation Strategy 0 0 5,650 5,650
18,167 9,937 7,872 1 13,905 | 31,714
Other Grants & Contributions & Reserves 3,885 | 13,126 | 13,035 7,950 | 34,111
Prudential Borrowing 962 3,422 | 11,812 0| 15,234
Total Capital Programme 146,395 | 199,005 | 155,559 | 111,798 | 466,362

* 2008/09 Original budget figures shown for comparison purposes
* The £36.105m for Decent Homes was estimated prior to the notification from government

210f35



16 .4

16.5

16.6

Page 36

It should be noted that under the previous formula grant system the translation
of SCE (R) into a revenue stream in the formula and then cash grant does not
reflect the actual cost of borrowing. This is partly because a notional rate of
interest of 5.4% is used compared to the actual average Haringey rate of
7.09% and the figures are also scaled down to the national total resources
available. Under the new formula grant system, the capital financing element
is included in the Council’s relative needs factor and there is now less certainty
about the amount of grant that finally finds its way through to the Council. This
is particularly true for authorities on the grant floor in that the revenue grant
support for capital borrowing will be added to the formula but will not result in
any actual additional cash being received by the Council. As the table above
shows for Haringey this is largely in respect of spending within the Children’s
Services and the capital programme for schools. The additional revenue cost
of this in 2009/10 is approximately £0.6m. The funding of capital by
government grant is the most preferred.

The strategic context for housing is the investment gap to deliver against the
decent homes target. Homes for Haringey successfully achieved two stars in
the inspection last year and duly a letter from DCLG announcing the release of
decent homes funding was received a year ago. This amounts to a total of
£198.579m against a bid of £231m above existing funding streams. This
includes £11.4m for environmental improvements. Confirmation was received
that the funding would be in place for the first three years of £58.99m (up to
2009/10) and that subsequent years were indicative allocations:

Year Allocation

£m
2007/08 6.990
2008/09 23.000
2009/10 30.000
2010/111* 40.000
2011/12° 44 000
2012/13* 41.589
2013/14* 13.000

198.579

“indicative

The procurement framework agreements were set up in advance of the
notification last year and this has enabled significant progress to be achieved
in the contractor partners delivering the decent home works in accordance with
the funding profile. The government announced in the pre-budget report that
some decent homes funding is to be brought forward, although details of this
and the implications are not fully known as yet. The contracts the Council has
in place would enable Haringey to bring this work forward fairly easily as well
as add to the promotion of economic activity during this difficult economic
period.

22 of 35



168.7

16.8

16.9

16.10

16.11

16.12

16.13

16.14

Page 37

Works to leaseholder properties are above the funding figures set out above.
These will be funded by leaseholder contributions in accordance with the policy
recently approved by Cabinet on 15 July 2008 in respect of major works
charging arrangements. This may require some temporary financing by the
Council the revenue impact of which will be met by the HRA,

The other elements of the housing capital programme include substantial sums
for aids and adaptations for Council properties, lift improvements and boiler
replacements. The programme for housing also includes a higher proportion of
works on planned and preventative maintenance works. The subsidy
determination includes an increase in the major repairs allowance of £0.826 to
£12.407m as a result of the three year average building cost adjustment.

For children and young people’s services, the key strategic issues are in
respect of the Building Schools for Future (BSF) programme (including the
new 6™ form centre) and the primary capital programme. A total of £212m is
planned to be spent on BSF (made up of £188m of mainstream central
government resources, £10m from the Learning Skills Council contributing
towards the cost of the new 6" form centre, schools contributions towards the
ICT contract, a specific capital receipt and revenue contributions from the
DSG).

The new 6" form centre has already been successfully delivered, on time and
on budget, as an early part of the BSF programme. The final capital cost of
this project is £28m. Nearly £73m is planned to have been spent by the end of
this financial year with a further £99m in 2009/10 thereby delivering a
significant proportion of the improvements in that time.

The funding announcements for 2009/10 and beyond are known following the
C8R07 and final notification in November 2007. The basic need formulaic
funding, plus funding for modernisation and access is included in the
programme at £5.855m in 2008/10.

In previous years the major capital investment in the primary estate has been
arising from the new places funding and allocated to pupil place expansion
schemes at Coldfall, Tetherdown and Coleridge schools. The works for
Coldfall and Tetherdown have been completed in 2008/09 with the final
elements for the Coleridge expansion to be finished in early 2009/10. These
investments are within the revised budgets approved for the schemes.

In future the government plans to invest differently in the primary estate under
its new Primary Capital Programme (PCP) and investment will be guided at a
local level by the development of a Primary Strategy for Change (PSfC). The
DCSF approved the Council's PSfC ‘with modifications’ recently thereby
releasing the £12 million of resources in 2009/10 and 2010/11. A response on
the modifications is required by DCSF by March 2009.

The PSfC demonstrates a joined up approach to capital investment and
includes considerable pooling of the PCP resources with those for extended
schools, children’s centres, targeted capital financing, harnessing technology
and devolved formula capital. Resources will also be targeted via the

230f 35



16.15

16.16

16.17

16.18

Page 38

Education Asset Management Plan (AMP), which is due for review in the very
near future. It is proposed the main elements of the £12m will be targeted
towards:

s contribute towards the inclusive learning campus at Broadwater Farm;

¢ improvements at Mulberry School;

» suitability and condition works at Rhodes Avenue, and,

e autism provision in the West of the borough.

in respect of the planned inclusive learning campus at Broadwater Farm, in
December 2007 Cabinet agreed the school organisation proposal that allows
Moselle and William C. Harvey special schools to be reorganised into a
primary and secondary special school. The secondary special school is under
development as part of BSF at the Woodside High site. This is now included in
the provision outlined above.

The requirements for streetscene were set out in the Local Implementation
Plan, which was agreed by the Cabinet on 20 March 2008 as a draft (final
version delegated to the Cabinet Member for Environment and Conservation
and Director of Urban Environment) and submitted to the Mayor as a bidding
document. A letter from Transport for London (TflL) on 20 November
confirmed the grant approval of £3.77m compared to the total bid for 2009/10
of £7.96m. The grant approval is a reduction of £1.59m (30%) on 2008/09.
The overall resource increase across London was 4.3%. Some of the
reductions against the actual position last year reflect the one-off nature of
some bids last year including sums for town centre schemes and bridge
assessment and strengthening. There are also reductions against schemes for
cycling and school travel plans where increases were achieved last year, but
this was not sustained for 2009/10. A general sum of £100k has been
allocated to all boroughs to be spent on the transport priorities of their choice.
TfL are also going to consider using a funding formula rather than the current
annual submission and assessment process.

The regeneration strategy is supported by growth area funding from the
government. The Council has been successful in securing £6.912m of capital
resources for 2009/10 and 2010/11 in addition to the £4.0m already achieved
in 2008/09. Bids to the DCLG were over-subscribed by 3.5 times, the
Council’s bid for this round was £16.7m. Further bids have aiso been made to
the Community Infrastructure Fund the results of which will be available
sometime in February 2009. These resources are not included in this original
capital programme, but a report will come to Members in due course.

The utilisation of corporate resources for capital investment has been
considered through the pre-business plan reviews. The process for appraising
bids for corporate resources include how investments support the community
strategy priorities and the asset management plan. The proposed schemes,
attached in detail at appendix H will give an overall utilisation of corporate
resources as follows:

24 of 35



Page 39

16.19

16.20

16.21

16.22

16.23

2009/10 | 2010111 | 201112 Total
£000 £000 £'000 £000

Estimated resources (14,800) (7,120) | (10,100} . (32,020)
available
Proposed 15,537 7,872 8,255 31,664
expenditure
In year 737 752 {1,845) (356)
{surplus)/deficit

The position for capital receipts is difficult to predict in the current economic
conditions. Although 2007/08 ended with a surplus of receipts above the target
the situation in the property market have worsened significantly in the last year
with property values reducing and likelihood of sales also diminishing. In the
current year usable receipts from right to buy sales is likely to be £0.5m, which
is substantially below estimate of £2m. In overall terms the 2008/09 position
will balance, but in future years the predictions are more uncertain. The
estimated position includes:

e right to buy receipts of £2.25m over three years, down from £6m
previously;

« strategic sites to deliver £8.75m compared to £16m over the previous
three year period, and,;

» other receipts of £12m including the sale of a number of surplus hostel
properties.

in overall terms the amount of capital receipts predicted over the planning
period amounts to £26m. This is significantly reduced when compared to the
£43m estimated to be available a year ago. This is due to the difficult
economic conditions and their impact on the property market. This is
highlighted in the strategic disposal for Hornsey depot where the developer has
not being able to follow through with the original offer and the scheme is being
reviewed.

Other corporate resources have been identified as follows:

» approved revenue contribution for capital financing from the 2008/09
budget process of £2.6m, and;

s a one-off contribution from the excess available in the insurance reserve
of £3m.

The commitment to the proposed programme of investment relies on achieving
these disposals at the required values and any significant variation to this may
require a review of the spending commitments at the appropriate time. It is
proposed the shortfalls in the first two years shown in the table above that add
up to £1.5m can be managed through the financing reserve.

The capital investment package delivered from corporate resources as

proposed will contribute significantly to the Council’s priorities. The process
for proposing these investments has considered the respective asset

250f 35



16.24

16.25

16.26

Page 40

management plans as well as the improved service outcomes. A number of
projects are also providing match funding to lever in significantly more external
funding, subject to those external processes. In addition, significant capital
expenditure will have regard to the Council sustainable procurement policy
agreed in 2008. The priorities supported most by this programme are:

One of London’s greenest boroughs
¢ additional investment in expanding and improving recycling services,;
e the continuation of the tree planting programme.

Better Haringey: cleaner, greener and safer
¢ bringing forward of significant investment in street lighting (£2m in
2009/10 - £1m above previous levels);
¢ increased investment in roads, footways, bridges and structures;
¢ new investment in green flag parks and open spaces.

Encouraging lifetime well-being, at home, work and play
s continued investment in the strategic renewals of leisure centres, and;
e new investment in outdoor sports facilities.

Promoting independent living while supporting adults & children when needed
s significant ongoing capital investment to provide aids and adaptations to
support vulnerable people living at home.

Although there are significantly less resources available the programme that is
recommended provides a balanced approach to investment and achievement
of the Council’s priorities.

There is an assumption of a small amount of prudential borrowing in the
proposed programme. This is mainly in respect of the previously approved
scheme for investment in L.eisure facilities where the borrowing costs are offset
by additional income or expenditure savings. investment options in other
schemes that rely heavily on increasing fees and charges significantly have
been withheld at this time {cemeteries and allotments) and will be the subject
of further review in due course. In all cases any proposals need to meet the
approved Council's policy on passing the affordability test where the cost of
borrowing is being met by additional revenue income and or expenditure
savings.

A number of schemes the Council is progressing are reliant on capital receipts
being delivered near the end of the process. It is proposed that some short
term temporary prudential borrowing is undertaken to facilitate this and to
ensure that receipts are maximised when market conditions are improved. The
revenue costs of this borrowing will be contained within the project budgets
and therefore will not be a call on the level of council tax. This relates to a
limited number of projects that Cabinet have already approved plans to
progress, namely:

+ the accommodation strategy;

¢ Hornsey Town Hall, and;

¢« Marsh Lane strategic waste depot.

26 of 35



17

171

17.2

17.3

17.4

17.5

17.6

Page 41

Treasury management strategy

The Council is required to consider an annual Treasury Management Strategy
under the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management, which was
adopted by the Council in May 2002.

The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Council to have regard to the
Prudential Code and to set prudential indicators for the next three years to
ensure that the Council’'s capital investment plans are affordable, prudent and
sustainable. The CIPFA Prudential Code came ino effect on 1 April 2004.
The key objectives of the code are to ensure:

¢ capital investment plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable;

s treasury management decisions are taken in accordance with good
professional practice; and,

« fulfilment of the above objectives by setting out prudential indicators that
must be set and monitored.

In line with the suggestion in the ODPM'’s investment guidance we have
combined the Treasury Strategy Statement and Annual investment Strategy
into one document. This is set out in full in Appendix K and includes the
proposed prudential indicators for 2009/10 to 2011/12.

The strategy is based upon the Council’'s Treasury officers’ views on interest
rates, supplemented with leading market forecasts provided by the Council’s
external treasury advisor, Sector. The strategy covers:

e treasury limits for 2008/10 to 2011/12, which will limit the treasury risk and
activities of the Council;

prudential indicators

the current treasury position and borrowing requirement;

prospects for interest rates;

the borrowing strategy;

the extent of debt rescheduling opportunities;

the Annual Investment Strategy 2009/10;

the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) strategy:;

any extraordinary treasury issues.

e & & & & & & @©

Capital Financing

The proposed authorised limits for external debt in 2009/10 to 2011/12 are
consistent with the authority’s current commitments, existing plans and the
proposals in this budget report for capital expenditure and financing, and with
its approved treasury management policy statement and practices. They are
based on the estimate of the most likely forecast position, but with sufficient
headroom over and above this to allow for operational cash flow management.

in the Council's 2009/10 to 2011/12 budget plans the capital programme is

mainly based on the amount of supported borrowing and grant from central
government and a projection of potential capital receipts. There is an

27 of 35



17.7

17.8

17.9

17.10

17.11

17.12

Page 42

assumption of a small amount of prudential borrowing in the proposed
programme that will be funded within available resources. There is no increase
in council tax or housing rent to fund a higher level of expenditure above the
level of resources available.

The capital financing requirement (CFR) is planned to increase in 2009/10
by £36m as a consequence of the capital programme proposed. The net
borrowing will be funded within the supported resources available.

The increase is mainly as a result of the additional supported investment in
respect of decent homes — £59.99m up to and including 2009/10. The capital
investment in housing stock, which could potentially release £199m from
central government, is assumed to be financed by supported borrowing. The
impact of supported borrowing in revenue terms will be charged to the housing
revenue account. The cost of borrowing should be met by actual government
support through housing subsidy although this will be kept under close review.

For children and young people's services, the key strategic issues are in
respect of the Building Schools for Future (BSF) programme (including the
new 6" form centre) and the primary capital programme. A total of £212m is
planned to be spent on BSF (made up of £188m of mainstream central
government resources, £10m from the Learning Skills Council which
contributed towards the cost of the new 6™ form centre, schools contributions
towards the ICT contract, a specific capital receipt and revenue contributions
from the DSG).

In future the government plans to invest differently in the primary estate under
its new Primary Capital Programme (PCP) will be guided at a local level by
the development of a Primary Strategy for Change (PSfC). The DCSF
approved the Council's PSfC ‘with modifications’ recently thereby releasing the
£12 million of resources in 2009/10 and 2010/11. [t is assumed this will be
funded by grant.

There is a new statutory duty and new guidance from the government requiring
local authorities to agree a statement on the Council’s policy for its annual
minimum revenue provision (MRP) and that this should be submitted to the
Council for approval before the start of the financial year to which the provision
will relate. This is in respect of the revenue financing of capital expenditure
and making a prudent provision to redeem its debt liability over a reasonable
period. The proposed policy is included in Appendix K.

Investment policy and strateqy

Local authorities are required to agree an investment policy and strategy
and this is included in appendix K. Council's like all other large organisations
have to manage their cash-flow position and this provides the guidance
framework for that. The Council’'s cash inflow of government grant, fees and
charges, capital receipts, council tax and business rates does not always
match the expenditure requirement and therefore at times the Council holds
significant cash surpluses. The Council will aiso be holding sums in reserves
and balances at any one time. Interest is earned on these cash deposits in line

28 of 35



17.13

17.14

17.15

17.16

Page 43

with the investment policy and strategy and contributes to keeping council tax
rises lower than they would otherwise be. Like other Council’s credit rating
agency information is utilised in investment decisions as well as the use of
external advisers. The Council uses Sector for its treasury management
advice, but has also consulted with other advisors in considering this revised
policy.

The recent events in the banking and financial sector has had a dramatic
impact on investment issues as well as the overall economic outlook. These
issues have been referred 1o as the credit crunch, which began in the United
States housing market as significant levels of sub-prime mortgages defaulted
in a falling housing market that lead to repossession of assets worth
significantly less than the loans. Banks became reluctant to lend to each other
as concems rose to their levels of exposure to these bad assets. Lending
restrictions spread giobally as banks became more aware of their exposure to
this, either directly or through more complex financial instruments. This also
started to filter through to general economic conditions with credit being
squeezed. A number of bank failures in the autumn, including the Icelandic
banks, led to governments stepping in to provide guarantees and additional
capital to protect the banking sector from total collapse.

Following the Icelandic bank position in October 2008, an immediate review of
external advice and internal procedures was carried out and a number of
changes were made. A risk assessment of existing deposits was also
carried out and it was agreed that no further deposits would be made in non-
UK banks. This would reduce further short term exposure to foreign markets
even where there were government guarantees or funding support in place.
An independent external review of treasury management arrangements has
also been carried out by Price Waterhouse Coopers.

A number of changes are now recommended to the annual investment policy
and strategy. The proposed changes are designed to protect the Council
from further exposure in the current market conditions by restricting and
lowering risk in the strategy. Additional external advice has been taken in
revising this strategy as well as using contributions from Price Waterhouse
Coopers who are close to finalising their review. The key measures are in
terms of:

o restricting the use of fixed term deposits to only the main UK banks and
one building society on the UK Government Guarantee scheme;

e increasing the minimum long term and short term ratings for these
individual institutions (AA- and F1+, from A and F1);

e increasing the use of AAA rated government backed securities and
bonds.

tn addition a number of process improvements will be implemented. These are
designed to strengthen capacity and procedures in this area given the current
and continued volatility in market conditions. These include the consideration
of additional wider market information when making investment decisions
include data such as capitalisation levels and credit default swaps; and the
development of additional in-house capacity supplemented by additional

29 of 35



Page 44

independent advisors, thereby not relying fully on rating agency information
and current levels of external advice.

17 .17 Institutions on the rating agency lists sometimes get placed on ‘negative rating

watch’ or ‘outlook’. Whilst a blanket approach to not placing deposits with
institutions with this flag is preferable, it is proposed that individual assessment
and consideration is carried out at a senior level before any investment
decision is made. This will apply to the individual rating of the institution too.
This will take into account other factors such as government support and level
of existing rating. The Chief Financial Officer will consider these assessments.

17.18 The details of the strategy are shown in appendix K. The operation of the

18

18.1

18.2

18.3

18.4

strategy by officers is guided by the treasury management practice and
procedure documents, which will be updated in line with the revised policy.

Council tax

The planning assumption following the conclusion of the 2008/09 process was
that the council tax would increase by 3% in 2009/10 and each year
thereafter. This is within the majority group Manifesto commitment of council
tax increases not being more than 3%. Members will be aware that Ministers
wish 1o see council tax increases of ‘substantially below 5%’ as stated with the
announcement of the draft revenue support grant settlement.

Ministers made use of capping powers in respect of the budget decisions of a
number of authorities for 2008/09. The powers are framed in terms of both tax
and budget increases and can take account of a number of years. The specific
criteria for application of capping powers is within Minister's discretion and the
Minister has written to all authorities reiterating his willingness to use these
powers again this year if necessary.

The position with regard to the Council's tax base for 2009/10 has been
considered and approved by Council on 19 January 2009. This is broadly in
line with the government return. Changes have been made to the discount for
second homes in the borough reducing it fo the minimum allowed of 10%. It
was also agreed that the collection rate remains unchanged at 96%. In respect
of the position on the collection fund it is considered that any projected surplus
or deficit at this stage is not significant enough to impact on the levels of
council tax.

Appendix A to this report shows a general fund budget requirement
generated by the various factors set out in this report and the Cabinet’s budget
package at £408.834m. The final budget requirement is subject to:

» changes in resources arising from the finalisation of the local government
finance settlement;

» the determination of funding requirements by the various precepting and
levying authorities.

The council tax for 2009/10 will be set formally by Council on 23 February.
Members have expressed a wish to minimise council tax increases for local

30 of 35



18.5

18.6

19

19.1

19.2

19.3

Page 45

residents, particularly in light of the current economic conditions, which are
predicted to last all through 2009/10.

The proposed budget for 2009/10 assumes a council tax increase of 1.95%.
The financial strategy continues to assume 3% in future years although this will
be reviewed again next year in line with Members’ priority fo reduce this if
possible.

The Council's current plans usually assume that any increase in the GLA
precept will be passported through to taxpayers. The Mayor is consulting on a
nil increase in the precept for 2009/10, which would give an overall band D
increase of 1.5%. The GLA base precept includes £20 at band D from 2006/07
for 10 years to contribute towards the 2012 Olympics. There is no further
addition to this in 2009/10.

Key risk factors

The management of risk is a key part of the Council's business and budget
planning processes and is fully reflected in the pre-business plan reviews. The
risk management strategy together with the cascading risk registers are
reviewed on a regular basis and the budget management process linked to
performance and people management needs to remain challenging and robust
in order to be able respond effectively to any issues that arise. The
consideration of the financial impact of risks is a key part of the budget setting
process and the consideration of reserves are an important part of setting out
how well the Council can deal with risk issues as they arise.

The Council's financial reserves are a key determinant of financial strength
and standing. Our reserves position remains strong, continuing to attract a
good assessment by our external auditors. This financial strength plays a vital
part in enabling the Council to respond vigorously to the strategic and
performance agendas whilst managing the financial risks inherent in the
operation of a large and complex organisation without immediate disruption to
services or future plans. The current policy and plans allow for general
balances to be maintained at the target level of £10m over the period and there
is a separate risk reserve of £10m. Planned use of the general balances in
2008/09 will reimbursed in 2009/10. Formal reporting on the adequacy of
reserves, as part of the Chief Financial Officer's statutory duty, will be done as
part of the final tax setting report to Council on 23 February 2009.

The most significant financial risk factors are:

s the review of Children and Families Services and its recommendations
must be responded fo by the end of February. The requirement is to report
to the Secretary of State with an action plan addressing the
recommendations. The new Director for Children and Young People's
Services will lead a corporate project team to take this work forward. The
full implications of the resource requirements net of any new government
resources being available will need to be factored into the budget process
at the Council meetings in February;

310f35



Page 46

managing the demand for adult social care is a challenge and current
budget plans already include growth for increasing volumes. It is planned
to review the current arrangements for commissioning strategies in the near
future including the joint arrangements with our partners in the health
service, however, the position on demand remains a relatively volatile one
and therefore is still considered a high risk area;

the position in respect of homelessness direct costs is set out in
paragraph 9.3 of this report. The high number of clients is starting to
reduce, however there is still significant demand for housing in Haringey
and there is still a need to meet the government reduction targets. There is
still considerable uncertainty associated with the subsidy regime in the
future and this will remain a key financial risk for the Council. Previous
year's underspends on this service have been set aside in an earmarked
reserve to assist in dealing with any significant impact;

the funding arrangements for asylum seekers still remains unsatisfactory
in respect of adults without recourse to public funds effectively relying on
local authorities to provide accommodation and subsistence where all other
claims have failed. This issue may increase in size as previously grant
attracting child asylum cases become adults who attract less or no grant at
all.  This is at the expense of the local taxpayer and although some
authorities have tried to mount legal challenges against this position these
have not been successful. Special arrangements are now in place with
officers from the Home Office working directly with Council officers to
resolve a back log of asylum cases and the current budget plans assume a
saving in costs in 2009/10 as a result of these actions:

waste disposal costs are budgeted to increase over the next three years in
line with NLWA projections including known tax increases. The plans for
the major procurement to secure new long term recycling and
environmentally sound disposal facilities are underway with an outline
business case for PFI now having been submitted. As reported to Cabinet
this will have significant cost implications for all of the member boroughs
within the next decade. There are still immediate risks as the balance of
costs favours moves towards those with better recycling performance and
that the costs of the long term procurement needs to be contained within
the existing plans:

the budget position in respect of the pension fund reflects the 2007
actuarial review and although the Council is on target with its recovery plan,
the investment returns are subject to considerable volatility given the
current situation in the financial markets. An provision has been added in
these plans and the governance arrangements for monitoring investment
performance will play an important part in maintaining the current stability in
respect of this;

320135



Page 47

» the economic downturn and likely recession is likely to impact on the
council in a number of ways. This may be in the form of higher demand for
Council services, such as homelessness or housing benefits; to reductions
in revenue income for demand led services, such as building control or
leisure centres. If service departments are unable to manage these
pressures within their existing resources then they may call on the general
contingency that has been set aside in the base budget. If this is not
sufficient then this could be supplemented on a temporary basis by using
reserves if necessary;

¢ one of the known areas of impact of the current financial climate is on
interest earnings from cash deposits. The Council has exposure to the
deposits made in Icelandic banks and the recovery of this is being
managed through the respective administration processes now underway:.
The global banking sector is under significant pressure and governments
around the world are attempting to prop up their main national banks. The
Council's revised treasury management strategy incorporates measures
aimed at lowering risk. The Council’s interest earnings in respect of this will
also be reduced, but the recent dramatic and significant reductions in the
bank base rate (5% to 1.5% in the space of a few months since October
2008) will have a much more marked effect. The estimated impact of this is
to reduce earnings on deposits by about £2m in a full year. Itis envisaged
that this can be managed within the overall treasury management budget in
2009/10 and from surplus earnings in the current year, which would need to
be put in the financing reserve, however, if these rates are sustained over a
long period or there are further significant rate reductions then this position
will need to be reviewed;

« there is a significant level of planned savings that underpin the medium
term financial strategy, the delivery of which will need to be specifically
monitored through the budget management process and through the
existing risk management strategy and project management framework.
The project management framework will also be used to deliver the
Achieving Excellence programme. The target £5m budget savings over
this year and the next two years will require significant corporate effort to
ensure this is delivered and will need to be managed closely through these
project governance arrangements;

+ the supporting people programme is a key area of service delivery for the
Council with grant funded expenditure of £20.7m in 2008/09. Haringey's
allocation is being reduced by £1m (5%) each year for the next two years.
Such reductions were not unexpected, and plans are in hand to manage
the impact on the level of services which can be commissioned. This will
need to be managed through the area based grant from 2010/11 onwards.
There is a risk of larger reductions in later years as the consultation on
allocating grant on a formula basis continues:

33 of 35



20

20.1

20.2

20.3

20.4

Page 48

» the long term future of Alexandra Palace will be the subject of further
consideration and consequently the Council's financial support to the
Charity. The commercial operations have now been re-invigorated with a
more business like approach although the economic downturn may have
some impact in the coming year. The issue of dealing with the long term
future of the palace will also need to be resolved and any one-off resource
requirements for this will need to be considered in due course;

» the position on capital receipts is of significant risk in the coming year as
the property market conditions continue to worsen. Although the proposed
programme takes a prudent view of receipt income Members will need to
be ready to respond to any further significant downturn by reviewing the
programme in year if necessary;

« the HRA medium-term strategy requires further significant revenue savings
to be delivered together with some new demands for repair services. This
will need careful planning and delivery by Homes for Haringey and the
Council’s client function. The timing and final quantity of capital resources
being secured for the decent homes investment following the achievement
of two stars in the inspection is still a risk as only the first £60m is
confirmed. The arrangements for implementation of the this investment is
also a key factor that will require close monitoring and control against the
approved plans, and;

« the BSF programme is entering a critical phase with many of the designs
now coming to fruition and contractors prices being crystallised through the
procurement process. Contingency has been set aside within the BSF
programme to allow for variations that arise and delivery of these projects
will need to be carefully and effectively managed to ensure value for money
and delivery within time and budget.

Summary and conclusions

This report sets out the Cabinet's general fund budget proposals for 2009/10
and the plans for the subsequent two years. The budget is balanced with
plans for significant levels of savings proposals, the draft grant settlement
position and a council tax increase of 1.95% in 2009/10.

The plan for the HRA is balanced within the ringfenced resources available.

The DSG financial plans, as agreed with the School's Forum, provides an
overall balanced position that includes a number of policy led changes.

A reduced capital programme is proposed in line with asset management plans
and the existing policy framework for resource allocation.

34 of 35



Page 49

21 Equalities Implications

21.1  Equalities implications are considered through the business planning process
and are a specific consideration within the pre-business plan reviews. A
detailed equalities impact assessment has been carried out on the final
recommended budget package and the issues and mitigating actions will be
incorporated in the final individual detailed business plans for April 2009.

22 Comments of the Head of Legal Services
22.1 The Head of Legal Services confirms that this financial planning report is part

of the budget strategy and fulfils the Council's statutory requirements in relation
to the budget.

350f 35



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 51

Gross Budget Trail

Budget brought forward

(=hanges and variations

inflation

(Shanges agreed in previous years budget process
Changes agreed on 15 July 2008

{hanges and variations in this report (see appendix b)

Investments

2007/08 process

2008/08 process

F*roposed investments in 2009/10 process

Savings

2007/08 process

2008/09 process

Proposed net savings in 2009/10 process

Dedicated schools grant (DSG)
Passporting of DSG
Prior year adjustment for actual pupil numbers

Halances
Contribution to / {from) balances 2007/08 process
Contribution to / (from) balances 2008/09 process

Gross Council budget requirement
Less dedicated schools grant (specific grant)
Net Council budget requirement

Funding
Council tax (see below)
Government revenue support grant & redistributed NNDR

Resource shortfall/(excess)

Council tax

Council tax (LBH)

Council tax base (after provision for non-recovery)
Precept

Rate of council tax increase (Haringey element)
GLA rate of counci tax increase

Combined council tax increase

£ per week increase (Haringey element)

Appendix A
2009/10 2010/11 20112
£000 £'000 £'000
399,578 408,824 420,494
8,090 8510 8,900
(1,402) 4,495 4
1,000
{3,039) {945) 2,759
0 40 0
1,030 530 (300)
3,230 229 54
4,260 799 (246)
{3,847) (2,745} 0
{4,512) (3,722) 0
(1,223) 684 (7130
(9,582) {5,783) (7.130)
5 5878 6,533 6,024
{620)
4,958 6,533 6,024
5,725 (2,645)
246 896
408,834 420,494 431,801
{165,575) {172,108) (178,132)
243,259 248,386 253,669
100,739 103,761 106,874
142 520 144,625 148,795
243,25% 248,386 253,669
0 0 0
£ £ £
1,184.32 1,210.85 1,256.44
85,061 85,061 85,061
100,739,444 103,761,661 106,874,043
1.95% 3.0% 3.0%
0.0% n/a n/a
1.5% nfa n/a
£0.44 £0.68 £0.70



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 53

Resource Shortfall Tracker

Pasition at end of 2008/09 process

Uipdate for 2009/10 process

- inflation

- increase assumption in formula grant at 1.5%
- increase assumption in council tax at 3%

Changes and variations 15 July 2008
- pension fund employers contributions

Proposed investment fund
Position as at 15 July 2008

Changes and variations now reported

- increased energy prices above inflation

- NLWA waste disposal levy increase

- London Pension Fund Authority levy increase

- insurance premium savings (self-insurance fund)
- concessionary fares estimated cost increase

- use of previous concessionary fares contingency
- use of previous general contingency sums

- reduction of general inflation assumption to 2%

- new general contingency

- increase in employers national insurance 0.5%

- homelessness provision adjustment

Investments

Proposed new investments and growth

Less previously agreed investment fund

Roll forward of previously agreed investments

Savings
Proposed new savings

Changes to pre-agreed savings
Savings to be identified

Council Tax
- reduce {o 1.95% increase in 2009/10

Position at 26 January 2009

Appendix B
200910 201011 201112 Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
0 0 0 0
8,900 8,900
{2,169) (2,169
(3,144) (3,144}
3,587 3,587
1,000 1,000
0 0 1,000 1,000
1,500 1,500 3,000
1,500 1,500 4,587 7,587
500 500
500 500 800 1,800
111 87 61 2589
{300) (300}
318 730 1,048
(2,000} {2,000)
(1,500) {1,500) {3,000)
(1,200) {1,200) {2,400)
1,100 1,100 2,200
668 668
(2,250} 1,750 500 0
(3,039) (945) 2,759 (1,225)
3,230 229 54 3,913
(1.500) {1,500} {3,000)
(300} (300)
1,730 {1.271) (246) 213
{1,714} {1,424) {2,008) (5,146)
481 2,108 {1,400) 1,198
(3,722)  (3,722)
(1,223) 684 (7,130) {7,669)
1,032 32 30 1,094
0 0 it 0



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 55
Appendix C1

FINANCIAL PLANNING 2009/10 - 2011/12
Cabinet responses to the recommendations made by Overview and

Scrutiny Committee at their meetings on 8, 15 and 18 December 2008
and 5 January 2009.

Recommendation of
Overview & Scrutiny

Cabinet response

| Council Wide Issues .

That the Cabinet continue to
press the case for a more
favourable settlement for
Haringey with appropriate
Government Ministers and to
seek the support of local
MP’s.

Agreed — the Council will continue

its dialogue with the government
pressing for an improved
settlement. Particular attention will
be drawn to the area cost
adjustment in the funding formula
and the Children and Young People
social care formula changes in
previous years.

That the full 2.5% reduction
in VAT be passed on to
customers in respect of fees
and charges made by the
Council.

The large majority of reductions
have been made, but where
reductions have proved impractical
existing fees levels have been
maintained, however, other
concessions have been provided
such as free car parking in the lead
up to Christmas.

That any service or revenue
cost benefits accruing be
reported with the other
Capital bid supporting
information.

Agreed.

That the Council do all it can
to persuade companies
providing it with goods or
services to employ local
people on contracts the
council lets and for those
companies to offer training
and development
opportunities for local people
and to establish modern
apprenticeship opportunities
for local people.

Agreed ~ the Council is already
committed to achieving this and is
working with contractors on
Building Schools for the Future and
Decent Homes providing local jobs
and apprentice schemes. The
Council will press further to
increase the numbers of these
where opportunities arise.

.| Leader of the Council

No recommendations.

N/A




Page 56

Appendix C1

_ .| Adult, Social Care & Wellbeing

That the Cabinet delay a
decision on the proposal to
take £131K, effective from
2010/11, from the adult
services transport provision,
until it has considered a
scrutiny review report on
transport provision for
vuinerable adults, due for
completion before the end of
this municipal year.

Not agreed The saving ES put
forward now on the basis the time
between now and 2010 will be
sufficient to ensure all implications
are considered.

'/ Community Cohesion & Involvement -

That the Cabinet introduce a
more chalienging target for
increased advertising
revenue from Haringey
People, than the £84k target
set over the next two years.

Agreed — th!S hlgher target ﬂgure
can be included in the business
plan target for the value for money
review.,

The committee requests the
Cabinet to increase existing
grants to Voluntary Sector
organisations by inflation, as
a minimum.

Not agreed ~ grant sums applied for
are on the basis of the cash that is
required each year ~ inflation is not
part of the grant conditions.

‘Resources -

In future the committee
would like to see energy
savings expressed in the
number of BTU’s saved, as
well as the cash sum.

Agreed.

That the Cabinet reconsider
the proposal to establish a
specialist Overpayment
recovery team.

The team is considered an
important requirement and needs to
be established in order to recover
due costs. A higher ievel of work is
arising from the additional data
matching information being
provided.

Leisure, Culture & Lifelong Learning

No recommendations

N/A




Page 57

Appendix C1

10,

Not agreed - the' Cabihé{ con's'i'dern

accommodation be closely
monitored and savings taken
only when the expected
reduction has been delivered.

That the Cabinet invest more

to increase Haringey’s the level of proposed investment

Olympic profile and attract sufficient to supplement the

investment to the area. allocation of existing resources for
this.

11. | That the Cabinet give greater | Agreed — the Head of Corporate
opportunity for focal Procurement will be asked to
businesses to bid for council | consider appropriate strategies to
contracts. enable this.

12. | That numbers in temporary There are increased costs built in to

the budget, but part of the strategy
will be to deliver temporary housing
in the most cost effective way.
Therefore a combination of savings
and investments are incorporated in
the plans.

=nvironment & Conservation =~

13,

with its efforts in pressing the
government for parity on
Dedicated Schools Grant
(DSG) funding with inner
London levels.

That the Cabinet reconsider | Agree to reconsider this proposal
the proposal to reduce with a view to seeing if this saving
frequencies on sweeping of could be made elsewhere in the
Headings. service.
o Chﬂdrenaad‘{oung?eopie ... s

14. | That any significant budget Agreed. it is proposed that the
variance as a result of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
new Director of Children and | will be consulted on the proposals
Young People’s assessment | arising from the inspection action
of the department’s plan led by the new Director.
resources position, be
reported to Overview and
Scrutiny Committee, when
known.

15. | That the Council continues Agreed - the Council is already

working with its Schools Forum to
influence the current national DSG
funding review and will continue to
give this initiative a high priority with
a view to achieving parity of
funding.




Page 58

Appendix C1

_ Capital Programm

That the Committee be

informed of the respective
priority of each bid as
reported to Cabinet in order
to assist it in making
recommendations in future
years.

Cabinet will consider how best to
provide a prioritisation to the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
in the future.

17. | That the bids for Capital Cabinet will consider how best to
resources for office meet the office refurbishment
refurbishment and programme which will deliver
maintenance of the property : revenue efficiency savings as well
portfolio be considered as a | as carbon reductions togsther with
low priority. the minimum asset maintenance

required against other bids for
capital resources.

N/a | That any service or revenue | Agreed.

cost benefits accruing be
reported to Overview and
Scrutiny Committee with
other Capital bid supporting
information in the future.




Page 59
Appendix C2

Haringey Jourcil

Agenda item:

Report Title: BUDGET SCRUTINY — PRE BUSINESS PLAN REVIEW DOCUMENTS

- Report authorised by:
Clir Gideon Bull, Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Contact Officer: Trevor Cripps — Overview and Scrutiny Manager
- lrevorcripps@haringey.qov.uk _ Tel: 0208 489 6922

- Wards(s) affected: ALL - Report for: Non Key

1. Purpose of the report

1.1 To report on the issues raised by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on departmental
' Pre Business Plans and Cabinet budget proposals. ;

3. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies:

' 3.1 The report is part of the budget setting process and as such has links to all council
priorities and strategies.

' 4. Recommendations

4.1 That the Cabinet consider the recommendations contained in this report made by the
’ Overview and Scrutiny Committee, as part of the Council’s budget making process.

5. Reason for recommendation(s)
. 9.1 The report is part of the statutory budget making process.

6. Other options considered N/A




7. Summary

- 7.1 The report contains the results from detailed scrutiny of Pre Business Plan Review
documents and proposals for budgetary savings and investments for 2009/10. The
detailed work has been completed by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the
report is a reflection of the issues raised.

8. Chief Financial Officer Gomments

8.1 Scrutiny of the Cabinet’s budget proposals is an important aspect of the overall budget
: preparation process. The comments and recommendations of the Overview and :
Scrutiny Committee will be considered by the Cabinet before the final Council budget

for 2009/10 is approved

| 9. Head of Legal Services Comments

planning.

10. Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments
1 10.1 These are contained within the pre-business plan review documents

11 Consuitation
- 11.1 This is part of the consultation of the business and financial planning process

13. Use of appendices /Tables and photographs N/A

14. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

The background papers relating to this report are:

Financial Strategy 2009/10 to 2001 1/12, report of Director of Finance
Pre Business Plan Reviews 2009/10

Chief Financial Officer & Director of Corporate Resources reports to O&S Committee and |

minutes for meetings on 8th, 15th and 18th December 2008, and 5 January 2009.

Copies are available on request, from Helen Jones, Members Services (non cabinet
Committees), on telephone 020 8489 261 5.

| 9.1 The Council is under a statutory duty to set a balanced budget having regard to the report
of its Chief Financial Officer as to the robustness of the estimates and the adequacy of
the financial reserves. This must be preceded by robust and comprehensive financial |



15.

16.

Page 61
Appendix C2

BACKGROUND

Pre-Business Plan Reports 2009/10 were released by the Cabinet in early
November 2008. The Cabinet Portfolio holders were invited to Overview and
Scrutiny Committee to explain the rationale behind, and to Justify their proposals.
The proposals were in respect of investment and efficiency proposals in relation to
both Capital and Revenue expenditure for the three year planning period 2009/10 to
201112.

As part of the scrutiny process some issues have been identified that the
Committee wishes to bring to the attention of the Cabinet. This report identifies
items which the Committee considered and where it wished to make comment on
the proposals, or where the Committee would like the Cabinet to consider its
recommendations.

It is not the role of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to develop an alternative
budget to that proposed by the Cabinet.

GENERAL ISSUES IDENTIFIED

In carrying out the budget scrutiny exercise the Committee has assimilated a large
amount of budgetary information and there are issues and risks that have become
apparent as a result.

The Government grant settlement for the next financial year was once again an “at
floor” settlement. The Committee strongly recommended that the council produce
accurate demographic and deprivation evidence to lustify lobbying the Government
for more money.

Recommendation 1

That the Cabinet continue to press the case for a more favourable settlement
for Haringey with appropriate Government Ministers, and to seek the support
of local MPs in doing so.

The effects of the global economic downturn are not vet fully known, however the
‘credit crunch” is likely to affect some of the Council forecasts on income generation
as well as demand for and the shape of Council services. The Committee iooks
forward to receiving a report on the issues affecting the Council from the Cabinet
Portfolio holder for Resources, which is due to be presented at its February
meeting.

Part of the Government's strategy to combat the global recession has been to
reduce Value Added Tax to 15%. While the Committee noted that the Council is
reimbursed all VAT paid out it was obliged to include VAT as an element of fees
and charges made. The Committee wished the decrease to VAT be passed in full to
its customers.



Page 62

Recommendation 2

That the full 2.5% reduction in VAT be Passed on to customers in respect of
fees and charges made by the Council.

The Committee noted that the Capital budget bids had no revenue cost benefits
detailed. The Committee was assured that all projects must have a full business
case review which detailed service benefits and any cost benefits although they
were not always shown in the papers before the Committee. The Committee
requested that in future any service or revenue cost benefits accruing be reported
with the Capital bid.

Recommendation 3

That any service or revenue cost benefits accruing be reported with the other
Capital bid supporting information.

Experience from previous economic downturns has shown that it has resulted ina
serfous impact on the employment of local people. Haringey seems to be one of the
first areas to feel the effect of recession and one of the last areas to stage a
recovery. It is likely that the current downturn will be no different, in fact job seeker
allowance rates in Northumberland Park Ward have already reached very high
comparative levels of 16.5%, the highest in London. The Council is a major
purchaser and provider of services both through direct employment and through the
contracts that it lets. Two of the biggest capital projects in haringey are HfH's
Decent Homes Project and Education’s Building Schools for the Future. The
Committee are therefore of the opinion that the Council should do all it can to
persuade companies providing it with goods or services to maximise the number of
local people employed on contracts the council lets and for those companies to
offer training and development opportunities for local people and to establish
modern apprenticeship opportunities for local people.

Recommendation 4

That the Council do all it can to persuade companies providing it with goods
or services to employ local people on contracts the council lets and for those
companies to offer training and development opportunities for local people
and to establish modern apprenticeship opportunities for local peopie.

As the national economy moves into recession, it is likely that Haringey's income
streams (council charge, land charges, rents, s106 agreements, parking income
etc) will become vulnerable to declines. it is important that close monitoring and
reporting procedures are adhered to, to allow Lead Members and officers the
opportunity to respond to changes in income.



17.

18.

Page 63

REVENUE BUDGETS

LEADER OF THE COUNCIL - PORTFOLIO AREA

- efficiencies

All savings proposals were noted.

- investments

Concern was expressed on whether income targets for land charges were
sustainable in the current economic climate and assurance was sought from the

Cabinet that they were achievable and realistic projections of income to be
constantly monitored.

ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND WELLBEING ~ PORTFOLIO AREA

- efficiencies

The Committee were concerned that savings from the review for transport for
vulnerable adults had already been identified, even though scrutiny had not
completed the review. It therefore recommends that the Cabinet delay a decision on
this advance item until it receives the Scrutiny report for consideration.

Recommendation 5

That the Cabinet delay a decision on the proposal to take £131K, effective
from 2010/11, from the adult services transport provision, until it has
considered a scrutiny review report on transport provision for vuinerable
adults, due for completion before the end of this municipal year.

Concern was expressed at the cost of specialised care packages rising above the
budgeted inflation rate of 2.5% and the impact this has on the budget. The
committee was assured that benchmarking was taking place with suppliers and
comparisons made with what other councils are charged in order to minimise the
impact.

The committee has in the past raised the issue of the additional burden to council
services due to early discharge from hospital. Assurance was give by the Director
that the situation was being closely monitored to ensure that there was no cost
shunting by the Primary Care Trust as a result of the early discharge initiative.

- investments

New investment proposals were noted



19.

20.

21.

Page 64

LEISURE, CULTURE AND LIFELONG LEARNING - PORTFOLIO AREA

- investments

The Committee was concerned about the proposal to invest £150k on the Wolves
Lane / Faith Plant centre because they felt there was insufficient evidence on which
to make a decision. The committee wished to be presented with the options outlined
in the recently received report by the Shaw Trust.

- efficiencies

New savings proposals were noted.

ENFORCEMENT AND SAFER COMMUNITIES - PORTFOLIO AREA

New Investment and efficiency proposals (3 items only) were noted.

COMMUNITY COHESION AND INVOLVEMENT ~ PORTFOLIO AREA

- efficiencies

The committee noted that pre agreed savings had not been fully achieved and that
alternative savings were being proposed.

The committee was concemed whether savings identified from general items such
as, reduction in sickness, general efficiency, right first time would be achieved.

The committee was of the opinion there was the possibility of raising additional
revenue from advertising in Haringey People magazine over and above the target of
£84k over the next two years.

Recommendation 6

That the Cabinet introduce a more challenging target for increased
advertising revenue from Haringey People, than the £84k target set over the
next two years.

The committee was concerned at the pre agreed saving proposal for the Corporate
Voluntary Sector Team and that all or part of it would be achieved by not increasing
grants to VS organisations by inflation. The committee requests the Cabinet to
increase VS budget grants by the inflation, as a minimum.

Recommendation 7

The committee requests the Cabinet to increase existing grants to Voluntary
Sector organisations by inflation, as a minimum.



22.

23.

Page 65

- investments

It was noted that there were no investment proposals.

RESQURCES - PORTFOLIO AREA

- efficiencies

The committee would like the procedures on staff suspensions and disciplinary
action to be reviewed and simplified. It would like a notional savings target to be set
in respect of savings accruing by reducing the staff time spent on paid suspension.
To reflect Haringey's aspiration to be a greener borough, the committee would ke
to see energy savings expressed in the number of BTU's saved as well as the cash
sum.

Recommendation 8

In future the committee would like to see energy savings expressed in the
number of BTU’s saved, as well as the cash sum.

The committee was concermed at the proposal to establish a specialist
Overpayment Recovery team to focus on old outstanding debt. It was noted that
£80K was to be invested in 3 posts and it was anticipated that the return would be
£140k over 2 years. This did not seem to be particularly cost effective.
Recommendation 9

That the Cabinet reconsider the proposal to establish a specialist
Overpayment Recovery team.

- investments
The committee noted that the anticipated cost of the Single Status agreement was

in the order of £2M per vear, excluding schools.

REGENERATION AND ENTERPRISE — PORTFOLIO AREA

- investments

The committee noted the new investment proposal for £60k to support and
encourage Olympic activity but it was of the opinion that if the council was serious
about attracting Olympic investment more was needed.

Recommendation 10

That the Cabinet invest more to increase Haringey’s Olympic profile and
attract investment to the area.



24,

25.

Page 66

As the national economy moves into recession, the committee expressed its
concern that the level of investment does not reflect the problems the borough is
likely to face during the economic downturn. There needed to be more imagination
and creative thinking if the council was going to be in a position to contribute and
help local businesses. The committee would like to see the council do and
particularly give greater opportunity to local businesses to bid for council contracts.

Recommendation 11
That the Cabinet give greater opportunity for local businesses to bid for

council contracts.

- efficiencies

New savings proposals were noted

HOUSING — PORTFOLIO AREA

- efficiencies

The committee noted the challenging target to reduce the number of homeless by
50% by 2010. The committee was therefore concerned at the proposal to reduce
posts following the planned reduction of numbers in temporary accommodation and
take a saving of £99k. in advance of knowing if the reduction was achievable.
Recommendation 12

That numbers in temporary accommodation be closely monitored and
savings taken only when the expected reduction has been delivered.

The committee was concerned that the HfH rent increase was to be 6% and the
impact this would have on the low paid and those suffering as a result of the
economic downturn.

- investments

There were no new investment proposals

ENVIRONMENT AND CONSERVATION — PORTFOLIO AREA

- efficiencies

There was concern at the proposed £100k savings as a result of the introduction of
new freedom pass criteria and that Haringey had been a net subsidy loser in
London, could anything be done about this? The committee did not want local
people who were eligible in the past disadvantaged by the new criteria.



26.

Page 67

Concern was expressed at the £1m deficit in Parking income. The Committee
inquired if there was a strategy on how income or savings would achieved.

Concern was expressed at the proposal to achieve savings of £100k by reducing
the frequency of sweeping of Headings. There were litter problems in some areas
and these should be remedied before any reducing in sweeping frequencies to
Headings.

Recommendation 13

That the Cabinet reconsider the proposal to reduce frequencies on the
sweeping of Headings.

The committee was concerned at the apparent contradictions in timings of parking
restrictions and in CPZ charges and the charges made in high use parking areas.

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE - PORTFOLIO AREA
- efficiencies

The committee recognised that in light of the recent inspection report the immediate
priority is to ensure that robust safeguarding arrangements are in pilace. However
the Committee expressed its concern about the potential impact on the children’s
budgets as previously presented savings were removed pending completion of an
overall resource assessment by the incoming Director. The Committee sought
assurance that there would be no additional savings burden passed to other
departments, as a result. The Chief Financial Officer thought it likely that if
additional resource was required it would be contained from within reserves and
would be assessed again in future.

The Committee requested that any significant budget variance as a result of the
Directors assessment, be reported to it when known.

Recommendation 14

That any significant budget variance as a result of the new Director of
Children and Young People’s assessment of the department’'s resources
position be reported to Overview and Scrutiny Committee, when known.

- investments

The level of investment was noted.



27.

28.

29.

Page 68

The Committee was concerned that the level of Dedicated Schools Grant per pupil,
received from Government was less than that awarded to inner London Boroughs.
Haringey, although designated as an outer London Borough, has all of the issues
and problems associated with inner London Boroughs. The Committee urged the
council to keep pressing Government for parity on funding per pupil to inner London
levels.

Recommendation 15

That the Council continues with its efforts in pressing the government for
parity on dedicated Schools Grant funding with inner London levels.

CAPITAL BUDGETS

GENERAL

The Committee noted that there was £42m of Capital bids, which exceeded the
available resource of £32m. The Committee understood that there was a priority or
ranking system used to inform Cabinet. In future years the Committee would like to
be informed of the respective priority of each bid as reported to Cabinet in order to
assist it make a judgement.

Recommendation 16

That in future years the Committee be informed of the respective priority of
each bid as reported to Cabinet.

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE ~ PORTFOLIO AREA

The Committee expressed its concern at the proposal to allocate £2m of capital
receipts to support the BSF programme with the new school to be built on the
Heartlands site.

CORPORATE RESOURCES

In the light of the economic downturn, the Committee was concerned at the level of
bid for office refurbishment and maintenance of the property portfolio and wish to
express the opinion that this should be low priority.

Recommendation 17

That the bids for Capital resources for office refurbishment and maintenance
of the property portfolio be considered as a low priority.

There was concern at the leve!l of the bid of £1.050m for Project Management of the

IT Capital programme, which was considered too high.

10



30.

Page 69

There was concern at the proposal to utilise £12M from the sale of hostel properties
to support the Council's proposed Capital Programme and whether this level of
receipt could be achieved in the current economic climate.

OTHERS

All other Capital bids were noted.

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS

Recommendation 1

That the Cabinet continue to press the case for a more favourable settlement
for Haringey with appropriate Government Ministers, and to seek the support
of local MP’s in doing so.

Recommendation 2

That the full 2.5% reduction in VAT be passed on to customers in respect of
fees and charges made by the Council.

Recommendation 3

That any service or revenue cost benefits accruing be reported with the other
Capital bid supporting information.

Recommendation 4

That the Council do all it can to persuade companies providing it with goods
or services to employ local people on contracts the council lets and for those
companies to offer training and development opportunities for local people
and to establish modern apprenticeship opportunities for local people.

Recommendation 5

That the Cabinet delay a decision on the proposal to take £131K, effective
from 2010/11, from the adult services transport provision, until it has
considered a scrutiny review report on transport provision for vulnerable
adults, due for completion before the end of this municipal year.

Recommendation 6

That the Cabinet introduce a more challenging target for increased
advertising revenue from Haringey People, than the £84k target set over the
next two years.

Recommendation 7

The committee requests the Cabinet to increase existing grants to Voluntary
Sector organisations by inflation, as a minimum.

11



Page 70

Recommendation 8

In future the committee would like to see energy savings expressed in the
number of BTU’s saved, as well as the cash sum.

Recommendation 9

That the Cabinet reconsider the proposal to establish a specialist
Overpayment recovery team.,

Recommendation 10

That the Cabinet invest more to increase Haringey’s Olympic profile and
attract investment to the area,

Recommendation 11

That the Cabinet give greater opportunity for local businesses to bid for
council contracts.

Recommendation 12

That the numbers in temporary accommodation be closely monitored and
savings taken only when the expected reduction in numbers has been
delivered.

Recommendation 13

That the Cabinet reconsider the proposal to reduce the frequencies of the
sweeping of Headings.

Recommendation 14

That any significant budget variance as a result of the new Director of
Children and Young People’s assessment of the department’s resources
position be reported to Overview and Scrutiny Committee, when known.

Recommendation 15

That the Council continues with its efforts in pressing the government for
parity on dedicated Schools Grant funding with inner London levels.

Recommendation 16

That the Committee be informed of the respective priority of each bid as
reported to Cabinet, in future years.

Recommendation 17

That the bids for Capital resources for office refurbishment and maintenance
of the property portfolio be considered as a low priority.

12



Page 71

#€9 {os2) oe ¥58

092 4 ¥ 752
002 (0g1) 0 08¢
ove'L 0 0 0¥zt
143 0 (L) 74
5911 0s% 902 806
000.3 0003 000.3 0003
fejoy 60/8002 60/800Z 60/800Z

BAREINWNG 19A0 Z1/LL0Z J9AO LLIOLOZ 19AO0 01/6002

JUsWIUOIIAUT UBqin

Juawidoesa( euopesiuebio pue ajdoad
S20IN0SoY Sjel0dion

$82IADS 81d0a BunoA pue usippyn
BARRDEXT JARYD

S80IMIBG AUNWIWOYD pue aunyny Ynpy

SJUBLUISBAU] puny aNUBALI Mau pasodoiy

00€'L {o0g) 045 0£04
{00¢) (oog)

0091 0 0.8 0£01
000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3
ieloy 60/800Z 60/2002 60/200Z

SAURINUNG J9A0 Z1/1LOZ 49A0 LLi0LOZ J9AO 01/600Z

sjuawisaAur paaibe-aid pasinay
sluauisaAul pasibe-sid eseu 0y seBueyo pasodoly

sjualsaaul peasbe-aid jeo]

Sjuawysaay| peasfie-aig

$S9004d Hddd 01/600Z 24U} woly (mapN pue pooibe-aid) Sjusunsaal; jo sisAjeuy Lewwing

{pund jpislsg)

S{EsUUoid JUBWISBAL] BNUBASY MaN puB peaifiy-aid jo Alwiwng

Arpunung (1 apuaddy

AsBureH Jo yBnolog uopuoT




Page 72

BO0E iy vl sends KRiea 54 putGrEdo
o ‘g 0 B PLE BEIRISUE MOU SIE SEIUED Mal g
o 051 ] 051
ABAINS 1S2] B4 WOk 349 30 Jusgaaidu
UE - 94,80 Buyoeal /2007 Wt pescld
ORIE LOOEISEE JBW0ISND WS G 10 SlutuLoLed |
i g1 [y} a i M EEBR0KS 8/ (07 J0 1988) Suitdoey

frAirUOB:
HRC] BuaugiBorg Snpeuss Lo Jubwae
By

tise) ugy:

uods: 0} $38:50:d 0u BI0pBY B BURUL BECOZ
U1 1RBRNG S804 U WY POAIWSS BB Sey pue

”?.mu 814007 1] LD 120 310 10) Sem JUBLISEALE BY Y

POENDE 85 §IAL

@eag pue sfemytiy) pesibe ABaeng:

JESA ALY 30 Pus B A3 03 op 0] SAUNUOD!
o) peaeicsd ur«. PESBEIU 7Y 0T 30 J8qunL
i i wvmmmo id ngo.

(oensde .auo
[2HOED O PERLET SRISWED A LD [RUCRIDDE 8yl
6 aurusluew ey poddns oy pasnbay 8 Bupuny sy iog

WL MBU 0} SR SIS jo §50) sleBiu 01 gel

16/5002) welalg erdes peiwgns Asionad

®aj 8y i Sl UCHDRISHES ISWUOISND panourilg
DLBSOT 404 18fiel yoiens Bundhse: wy smd ‘sieBie)
{2semi a1 N pue (Buodosd) 261 (N b et |

JHEAUGT;

oilSiENS Wiy D04 ;0 JuswaINGed saloaya

B84 LUOIOBICT BTG BIERIBVE

pefaosd S831A3S AL J0 BHHEU SALEUST

aU; pue $lueus; ey jo sBpaimouy Ausdosd pus A
SUELY JO Y92} 8 0] 8np paleddwns s :
S 0 jusLasbeueyy manal Webin o pasL U pue!
popRlsun AINBLING §] 00§ :

SEAE0T DaUSD

3 10 sjualussed [Eiusmsal ‘E facce]
B sEanPal oy sewe) Sunoddns Ag WYE Sul U ag o
mo| e sagy o) pebpn! aiam fabulies] ojespu vdy

oeid Bulygl suo

i SIS 200 40 udileils
a4l O udljersr Wl S poano

N} 0 S0 QU8 B 2inEus o

nois B4 Ul sURIDELD
wity Bulumpsuen spaau ¥arhuoo yim idosd ;0 sequny

oy oy 1
LD L
UONINPE) pElRuass pue fogod )

fa} st waniepe Gunped Jo manay - JUSLLEUIAUY uBgin. 1)
SHIEISE L0 SHOUSEN0Y B 0}

) Aues daysinop jo uaisuedxgy SROINGS BUITLOLE JLBHUEUONAUT) BB 6

ADzleNns ajsem J L
S0} Loddns jeuoissayoid ok
pue sEdnyos) |2ba pwapy

‘oigopod g8y

undans Juguwweanh
anE0EI B

PSR S80URE Wi BIED Yrpe D)
T HONSUR - $80AISS MBL G 15e0°

B BIZLED MU
:Em;mdmc.ucmmwm:&:aau\u.

g ALnwen |
3U 10 JUBLISTRURY pUE MOINGY |

JIBAR UL jUdLIISEALE SSERION

JUBWUGEAIZ UG

SICELRUQD
£5) sgnd:

<80 Eww BuljUoi4

FUBLLLOIALY LB

sa0puss Busnoy;

£ ::EEOU m. o&m mbm“ JURLUOHAUT uBqIN)

Auadoig
“iep ng:

$8DIN0SaY ejeiotion’ §

sawfed

SUHIE B URIPEID m_uomnm mrwc> § uRpIuT
g : i

HeaUEa ocm
DI I LI 0Z

Ut SUOHIRE@ B30} jO JS00:
auy Jenno af Bupung Jo-sup

vonessifiay:
ORE|T Y AL Saxu BT meme S BARNIER EEU t

LaIpiD

Baiag Aunion

dalbEs Adwg 0w e v pasilie sie Uiy e usBg S8y BiBUL BI YOBAL IO DOUIS SABR: Auy) :
0 o0g‘L Helird el sefieyoed pue popinod Buiag Mou Bie A0S UaUM IO 2 5100ad Butiok 40 5PPSU POSERISUL AY) DY 0 GG L ‘aap Q06 251] Bupies 248 21908 YNpY g 2UNUND SYOPY.  ©
doad o o edws paediogue ou sl @mgw.
pouad ey sano peaids 5q o) sem siebpng Buseymnd
Ul JuBWaAOW 4o eiyoid aug sislpng saou susogsn’
: 01 Braipury Wanip o} sea ABeyens su) siebong Buseyoing sieah ¢ sean ARiodius
. Bid0ad JONQ Wy PALBAMD A28 Sudio sy uslodwa) - BUIpUNY &a09) Btinogsg az|AuBg ALUNUALOD.
4 {goz) o) oo} SEM BO/R0 W BALEY UI0GSD 40} juBleaAU BUL {00Z) 5oL) Uz gBfuoys -asen Buisiny BUED {21905 jiNpY T 2MING [Py, g
2w Aeg vy dinbs o) 5007 wdy BRUSLSD Ui adoad 30 m_mnEsc”
§ BUUBASE 3O SHTUOL BEa) bsiy B ut Bsec peraalaid G jeep of Alsieng enuaws() :
ERE- me:S BULGEN HEID BU) U S1250000 BUL I JUBIBL0T augal
PuB 10 @i Buipriou 1apout sowies ey s utidopasn AeBuner U Bjusap L jdosd Joy: -Aep epusLuaq jesuar Aoswop BB ARMLLOT
] e o [ wo Buppom 'soeid ul st dnoull Aipugdionip an v seoed BIETY AB(F 40 JUNOIE ) ANOD 1M B0.RDS S 00T a6e 03 Jefipng snuanay auee feQ QiR B0 NPy g BMINY SINEY. L
9003 | 000.3 T 000.9 0003 | 0003
tpamray HHBLOZ § OLBD0Z | BErR00Z 0LIBI0Z | 80/300Z 43y
- et R AL Ay £500.3 FRAD SRR
BB LY, Thith e 0T EEE e 0wty DUy s L0 | 9LB00z BB [ vIY HURA sSaUsng QIRI0}EL(G

£ ety




Buiain wepusdapul mwc&o&m "[BpowW j2uoleIEdo

‘Busules) pue Aeid paaeId U0 uslEIUBWSId UOISDaP: : :
IO ‘SLLOY 1B Bulqiapn Butpusd “Joddns uonesnpe aidosy : : S30INIBG: BUAIRS AIUNWLLIOY
aula) obeinoouz:  Bunoy g Builies ) ynpy paniea UIBIUIBIN 061 : : 06t BAUBY JUBl HUEJ/BUET STAOA |BUOIES0BY 2 2NN synpy! Gl
BENE e ALY soniiiiiico. . O L il e .8 o
Bl uspuadapui s1owoly’ pabejuBApaSID J0f $S8008 1918006,
‘Buiuies) pue Aeld: Bugloddns osje 1sium {010z 1961 1 Yyoug : : :
Hiom ‘swoy 1B Bulsqiiean. vy UmolB uonediogieq Auanoy [EDisAUy : : : ! $00 S80IAIBG 8018 a_cmEEoum

[Buoneanay!

awey ebeinoouy! ® HodS INPY - g IN Lo jorduy v sy | €6 7 SINPND SYNpYy ¥l
: ; PR :

JBADISOL JBpUN - BUILLLIMS 2814

“SUOHEN)S BUIAY S19180.
ut salbueys Woy Jnoge aluod sABy asau) : : :
Buleg;  Jo Auej ‘seSexoed a:es Bulinbs) a|doad : FIAIDG ABUNILIOY

-fjem auma); Buibemooug: 10 laquwiny 2 peynusp sey 9iAIBS 8y | 018 OGSt 05¢ Gl LIMOID UDISUR L UON (17 $82IA18S Jnpy ' SINEND) sinpy gl

‘.b_‘_osz Jad 3 ML 01 Blenba o) Aoy
: 81 uoneysubay si) Joy oddns 2ABHSIItUDE
1By sisabiing HOQ su L “s|enpiapu;;
BIGRIUNOIE Y] 80 ([IM SEIAISG
- [BI00S 0 IC108 (] JO 39X 81U 9y siesk
§ 0} drt Jo @ousIUSs uosLd € 10 UOISSILLLIO
10 83URINDZ0 YOS 40} 00G'01F B0 Jo!
saffeuad mou; 0] HOC 8U1 Ag pajoipald .o,_m
Juauissassy 1soiolu) )say v Aldde o) alngeq’
| spiswssesse 0GE B0} B 507 InoySnoyy
092 snid 1enius o6 st Buipuny Buipasu:
BlUBWISSRSSE JO sAquInU 8y, ‘660z Buunp.
Heam Jad G Jo ustwiuod Buios uo aels:
Apeis, B pue 6007 AW pue udy Bupnp
L IN0 ALIBD O] SJUBLUSSSSSE 0F [RIBUl UB aney]
fim Kabuey aiopiay | (sieieal 104! :
BPNPUL 0L 0P 8A0GE $9UNBY 84L) 10d’ : : {popuswe
%0Z PUB ¥ %08 1ds ag 0) A : " _ 4002 £861 10V YieaH

—0.

Page 73

[elipjal 1oy st ds paroipaad syy : : [BlUBK 31 pue ucneisiban
"{(uopue ved pajeuysalspun Afppim aqi : ‘pienbejeg ALaqry jo mo:mzaao.
0} parsljag a:e seunby asayy ybnow) yoea' : : : 0} 98U0USSI U SJUBWISSBsSE :
m:_mn. 0063 @ yeom jad sjeliae; ¢ s1sebing . : : jUOHIpRE 9YyBMapUn : 20IALES AU
cliem swmag Buibeinoouy’  uewssasse oedui| AsoreinBay HOQ sUL ZLE {F) 951 0} S82IN0SDS pasessoy SBOIABS NPy 2 BIMIND SYNpY FA
000.3 0003 000.3 000.3
g LhioLoz 0L16002 60/2002
Ao SIUBWICLIS | 801ALRG UO Joediug o MNH.E:o 15RO 19A0 190 Jusussaut JO 98N pasodold | wup sseulsng aje.I033a1I] 43

4404 LHoLog oLIB00z

{pung jeIsusy)
SLLL0Z O3 OLB00E
1280001 JUBLIISSAL] MBN
{1 xipuaddy Aobunen jo ubnoiog uopuon




186png auee psjood au o) paal

I3jeg pue JBusaIn s_wcmm_o. 2Q 0} (L3 9seejal o} 150d _QmEEOM

Aefiules] janeq & m:.;mm.ho ~03 L 1w 8Y; Joy .m.:__ucé e suen) ,_o....
“Ajjunuwics
BU} U YI0M UONUSAIDIL DUB uogusAsid
i3jeg pue Jausaln) BUBs|D PUE UONOE JUSLWSIIORIS JO SAD)|

AoBuuey Ja)jeg & Bunessn  ayy 2A0ldll oy $B0IN0SD 4EIS W 9589I0U| 08

S2UBULIGLIS PUE SIDBIUOD BiNiny Jenadq

yBnoay sBumes BuioB-uo Butnoss Jo une
BYL Yim 2/d WGT 03 W3 YUoMm JUawanaod

: N3 Heddns ) Jusunsaaul Jgak z 120 {00))

201A19S Juspexe Bulsaljeg!

‘Buiseansp wey) Jalel
BuIsesIoUl 880 Ul UBIPIYO JO JaqUUINU By}
Aq 1oge pibinciq 18B6png Buluossuwos!
Burag S,uRupiyo By} Lo seunssald abpng.

-Hem swinal BuBeinoous: wauno sy sasp (M YwaouB sy pesibe 3 ovz‘)L

WBISAS
Elep Japls aiow & spiacid pug pney
80Npal Gy 0} $40108(2 0 PIOJBI [RUOREL
B apin0sd Him yoium weishs || jenues

0L

T

oeauco 2bsiens Jop swweiBoid!

; WSIND 8L 0} ang Jabie) awoour
rsofileyo purl jBoof 0} Juaunsnipy

ABejens joyoopy
B} JUBWS|d W 0 SE0IAISS
104ooe $0 BLUIoISSILLLLOD)
; RE—
Bl DACUIBYEINPAI O} PUE;
S(BLISJB J0 JaqIUNU pasealsyy
3Y] 18A02 0F s1sad Jaolo
NCIABYBY |BI00G-NUY MU OM]

Lo
-600Z usamiag andxs 0) anp
SPRIOS | D J0[ew jo lemalial:

U004 1

suolldwinsse euilio saoge .
PUBLIBE - UBIPRUD By pavjoo].
104 yobpng BuiuoissiLLOD

$1809 BnuBAs) 4|
Burolb-uo yum | reef u BIIN0SBI.
#0-2u0 ainbal jim JusLuissAy]

Apleg  swwod g dysmulieg:
\:_::EEoH SOUBLLIONS 4 AD1j0g 2e

‘suiwe) g diysieuyey’
BOUBULOLDY ASi0g

$80IN0S3Y JBIcdIon

$20in08aYy seiodiog

20INIBG m_maom&_
Buno e usippyn

uonensiBay

{siop0ale Jo Je)siBas auy {EIOIB|3 ! mu_\:mmm
.mmo_?_mm.w_cm__moxm..ma_‘_mzm@o e dof@nap o swie jafold FHOIBYL € €1) U0 pajeuIpio-00) jesfoid 34O BANNIBXT JBIYD S2MN09Xg JaIyD a
= Bohes 2 e e pEbL ke L SaBong. uoieRSiBaY B i an
: : a0y Bupnps) Buissaippe jerol0a3 g soInBg!
SB2UAIBS JUBKEIXS BuleAllBg b i B UOISUBEXF BI0A |B)SO¢  aAjmaxy J3Tet S, pMN08X] jeyn! gl
1003 000.3 000.3 0003
y LLDLOZ 016002 60/800Z
Aoy IDUBLLIOLIB [ 80IAIBG U0 joedij o MNHFES 1540 1900 1500 jusunsaay) o asp pesodoiy | nup ssauIsng ajelo01na41(] 434
Zii0e HiAiez 0176007
{pung mouso)
S0 T gm0
81280d0Ig JUBUISOAL] MEN
 X1puaddy

AsBupiel jo yBnoiog vopuon



‘GL/600Z 104 18bur) yojens Buipkos

Wy snid ieah ad seuuo 00zZ-051 8q

O} PRELLYSS 'Pajoslieo Bg pinom [eUSjEWw

|euonippe se is1abie) {a1sem) sieak oMy

syBnoJog 1sausaib s,uopuos A0 901 JOLBL IN puB {Buioiosl) sieak
30 UL AoBuliel Bupfely. om) J9A0 %, GZ 10 261 IN UO edius aa 0 664

paueyEw
JIBWBACIIWI S3IAIBS 18U} BINSUS 0 0

saolates Jusaoxe Bunsaeg 052

‘Bupuny
L ieuweXe JIWAID Bumin) umop Bumelp jo
HSIES PUE IBUSDIE LRSI [SB0UBYD B1 958840U| USJZ A }} JUBDISSI O}
abunel 1eneq e Bugeasn  yBnoiog ayy 104 ampold ardwAD peseasul

Bayeas 9100 ay) Bugpnpul
: MomsLel 4 JusWdoPAR( 007 By | 10§

18E5 puz Jauselqg "lsuesy peunbel spewnoop Buuued | eaep o)

abiuley Janaq e Bunessn wea Aoyod sy sjgeus 0 paanbai Buspun g

VYD MU BY] Jo jusllep

jefjuasse ue sf Juswabeurw vopewWIOW]|
% abpamouyt - Jusuissessy gjeiodion!
1SE| B4} 12 SSauUNEaM B SE Da)JUBpl SEM

sesiwalg:

[BIDIBUILICD BAOR S1B

Ul SPIOUaSNoU 00"y J0) 93IAISS
BunzAoes sdoys 0 uogonpoau)

; ueld Juawisrorduy;
¢ Blasnoy ut WnusWIow uiguel
01 $92In05aYy |au

siead ¢ i} ieak yoes 1o}

NOOF 8ANbas Im am ‘soidwA[D
3l Jo ubnolog ay) o) yausq
ases0ul pue Alanoe a1dwlg:
abeincaus pue poddns o} puny;
Jusunsaau; 2idwAlg ue Bugestn’

$1509 Aanbuy:

SJaWBENDE) yyo 190

0] [Bnuess3 uoisincid aoialss
LuIojul 0} SesA|BUR Spavy.
pasueLUa s3|qBUY dSH B!

flounad sy o} *Anigeden (g0
‘Wwoyshs ushewsosur JesiydelBoab
Y UOHOUNG UDNBLICHU.

$80IAlBG

WBWILONAUT LegH)

SB0(AIBS
Buisnoy
AN
7 oifisyel)

fEoy

uonelsushay
DGO
fifo ding

JUSWICI AL UBQIn

wswdopAag g

WwatuuoNAug ueagin

folod!  swwon 9 a_awl_wcum&m

SOOIAIGS IUBIB0Xe m::ma_mom juslsbeun uocgeuLO) ¥ afpapaoun 0L i .v MN? sasusysidwos e puny ol g BOUBLLINLBH BOUBLLHOLBY ADIlog £z
0003 000.3 000.3 0003
Aoug SVUBULIOLB / 991AI8G U0 JoRduy o) khioloz 0L/e002 60/800Z uswIsasul Jo 9sqy pasodolg | yun sseuisng JRIC1I5M Y
1OA0 FOAO iAo
aAjEnIUILNY
02 1176102 01/600Z
{pun.f essusn)
CRAL0E YL QLB00E
BESOGRI JUSWGSEAL] MON
Q Xipusddy AeBusies jo yBnosog uopuo




D ‘SJOCYDIS LU0 SUSIDBHCD

.nav DISEM DOOJ JO [BLY) B DUE DUBLISD!

o (8/2002} 102loig jevden ! 1eaw: 0) soies Buloos) pexiw-

pasoudde Asnoinald & o) sy pra siy g PaZIs Iy LIus) B s0npaul

UONIBISNES JSWOISND PaA0IdL| 0] ‘Spe0L MOLUBU U0 saluedoid;

“ 0L/B00E 404 Jobiey ymans 0052 0) punQ; aolAes !

sybnolog seussib s uopuo Bulokos) V1 snid ‘s1able) (aisem) |5) INi BuioAos pexiu sanposu; o) SBOINIBS :
jo auo AebuiieH Buniep:  pue (ButpAosl) ze1 1N Lo jodWw; BAllSO4 G092 0EL GEL JBUAsBAL; sBPRIYaA Bulpisey) SUINUOL4 JBWUoAAUT BN 62

‘s1eak 7 1eno wiebe Y6 o) %8z woy.
aseaiou| o} BuljoAoa) Jo) pue siesk omy Jeac!
L %01 AQ UONESILIUIL S1SBM U] SUCRINPS
{ D) PESI 0} PAPUBILY SI JUBUASSAL 8yt (zalL:

IN pue L6 IN) s190se) a1sEM/Butpioer ‘@oIAIas

: pUB LICHOBISITES JBLUOISNS L0 8A0.IdW) 0} SjeaR) Juswabeuewy:

subnoiog jgeusaib suopuc: jordul fim yoiym sdimleg BuipAoay sy jo: pue Amsiaiedng asealour SOMNIGG .
0 8u0 fabuuer Supepy wawdopaap pue Aenb uo orduwll aARIS04 PG L 0 $G1 o} jualabeuey Buioioey U0l WUBWUONAUST UBGIM) 8
1003 0003 000.3 600.3
Aol gouBUIOUB [ 801A105 Uo Joedul) o) ww_hm; v%m o”_w.c%m mmwmhwﬁ Jusunsaau jo asq) pasodoid | yun ssausng eIcIIBIIC} 434
AAlEWILNG
ghiiioz Lioloe 8i/6007
(pung poeusn)
SEAL0Z O 0178008
S1BS0U0LS JUSUWISBAL] MaN
G wipuaddy AaBuueH jo ybnosog HOpUOT




Page 77

160°L A%

182 09¢
60C'1L 599

Tasy 29¢

€ 4

8L9'4 88¢
000.3 000.3
jie3ol 60/800¢2

98¢

S0¢

£9¢

099

000.3

60/8002
PAHEINWING I19AO ZL/LL0Z 49A0 LL/0LOZ 4OAO OL/G00Z

6.y

14

6ee

€0e

045

0003
60/8002

JUsWwuoIIAUg UBgn

luswdojnreq [euonesiuebiQ) pue ajdoay
880uN0s9Y seiodion

sa0aseg apdoad BunoA pue usIpiyo
BANNOBXT JAIYD

$80IAIBS AUNUWLOD pue sinyng npy

sBuiaes mau pasodoly

L29°11 00%'L
(661'1) 00v'L
928'Z1 0
000.3 000.3
jejo ) 60/800Z

65’y
{801°2)
29%'9

000,3

60/800Z
SARRBINWNY JOAO Z1/LLOZ JOAO LLIOLOZ 49A0 0l/6002

808°s
{16v)
6S5E'0

0003
60/8002

pasodoud sBuiaes Jap

sbuines peaibe-aid assy; o) sabueyo pasodoiy

{(@ous||90x] Burayoy Buipnjoxe) sBuines pasibe-oid lejoy

sbujaes pasibe -oig

Ripwwng 3 xipuaddy

SS900.d Hddd 01/600Z 2U3 Wwoyy (MeN pue poaibe-

{pund eisusn)

9id pajyolday) sbuiaeg jo sisAjeuy Lewwng

sfesodosd sBumey snusasy may pue peaIby-aid Jo Aeiwwng

Aafiute jo yBnolog HOPUOT




whnouny Poddng ssausng pus :
edoPAsp uswebeuny Buunjongs: SABG ARUnllion
Aa - sabueyo vonesuebio UCHERIISY . SDUIAISS [BUOHEDDT B AINND SINpY:
: . 6o . A : & il
: 196e) uo uely ! : :
: {uenonpal 9,571 S1508 SEIOM aimn fegy AJUBIDIYE BOIAISS pUB $18AS) Buyejs ! SOAIDG ARUNELEGS
1) g oy e oMy jo utRIeg 's00¢ dy Aq Jusoea sysod gy icg fole] e 2180 ABP JO MBIARI - SMAIRS 21BN A2 SAOIALEE JNp B BN Synpy £l
; : ; Bt b i " st ; E g L. LR L e _
U0 UB “SISMI0M 91 | DU SN0y {05°Z Jueg : ; +¥61 03 jued 191e0 dn ping. BADG AU
0 a 0 g HBIB7) SH | 4 5 -PAASIIOE §0-90 Jo} 1961 9l 19} PUB €8 0} 14 9SEBI00(] QIR BWOH: SA0AIBG JiNDY 2 eNnD sy 7y
. IHE
DSl BAMUSE 0} 10BIR] U0 812 VAN PaA uoyung :
ale sbuines asou 2uNsUD 0] B3ASS SYNPY : . : abesnoiy pue fuuossiueion absjeng. BOIABG Apuniwnn
0 s} 0 0 oo nGL 0sL YA AIRSOI0 SI0M O Spasy BUILORSSILAILDD ‘OoE 6L 051 : #ial o) sBuines Buuoissilwwo SIUALG NPy 2 2MENT) sEnpy I3
ey syl wyis pedojdws aoinosa
: “siuswebueie [eusbeusul 1o uawsbeuBt o spAG) motay TLHND) BOIAIBS AFUNLIWLOS
0 it} o ) = i vonEsHELoe) e UBnoiy paasiyoe Bumg i s 178 WS | o eluap Aunwion | STAISG JNpY 2 2PN Sunpy 0
: e b o) e onatin] Biwarn e o
: 186pag e palopunis 5 syl pue safeyted 98BI AU 0 AOUIOIYD SOIIBS PUE SiSAS: a0a8g Ajuniwon.
) i ¢ o o€ 10 Bupainal 1sngos yBnog) puncy ag jim siy 108 g . Buyes sy maney -semnoupna Bujuiea: SUDNIBG JNPY B QImND SInpY I3
: : weay ;
i USIMEY (1] Ul PUMBSE Woy pasago; DBUMIIOD 9yj Wt sloas] uswaBrue SUAOG Apunuwitinsy
0 ) ) S ‘a5 yoddns rsfieueyy soeyd ugd Uy 0g 0s Y MBIADY sagEsQ Buuieay SDUABT YNoY: B D) sinpy; g
‘@Bueyd 9y sjelnoe; o) suswsned Bidoay:
: Bupoddng ye maiss: o} BuissosBoad S1HIOMA | Buisnopy SOIAIBG ARLINWILLOT
i7 R TrA PRUSIGEISS SI00Y0 Mol pue ueid josloly ‘g7 G/7 pavieddng e sjusyd wieey iBUBy SAOK BOIALSS NPy R NN SHRY i
o . ) EE o . MR S s A Ajiisiurs Aprsqiis. s . s
L JuEOUBIS B apoId JR1 SEDIAIDS
Ut 5351BLS JO BN B 9S8RI0Y BO0E
: : 10} PRNPOYDS Afuang 'puemio) Buug : BUAIBS APUNLIWOD) |
0 s 3] £9 2oy Ut uly jsloug pue paeog jusloug gg £9 Aoifod BuiBieyo mu Jo uonejuswediy) SIMAIDG WIPY ! 72 sy 9
: : ASUB10N0 B0IAIRS puE S19AB|! SUAIOS AUnwien
0 0 0 201 €01 aoed ul veld Wswposy B0L £01 Bugers sebeurpy sie MalASY ") D SBUARS J|PpY: gomng sinpy. g
o i ) i s T Gissod amu i m
H grwebEwWe pue sannosed ssBeusw . FUALBE AMUNWoD
o 0 o3 by uo veld sy P BULIBD MBIASY BDIADIS YleaH [RjUsy SOMAIBG NPy 2 Siming synpy I
i . Spaou jiddeuey b g o : e [ ol -
spidoad ssedwoous pm sBpng EnpmnL BAURT BRINOSSY PIEYHUIAL O uoisIAGKd aniAes Anwiwon
o G 0 ] IGE SE BB 1ok U1 9q i 100 101 UORESBLOSIRY Gp o HOOSURI L MAIABY “SBIIIGESIC) [eSiyy: SINAIBG Jnpy § BAYNT SENpy £
; : : buipgng :
Bt 0 asn paacudui pue $eoines
spasu podsurn Mmael Budojasep Adusioys somias
sgdosd sseduoms mm S1eBpng [enpiapua : pug SjaAo) BuSls ausD) sainosoy: SOMAIOS APUNUILGT) |
C 0 6 7+ Baay seok UF g im0 0] UOHESIRUOS 1B T ¥6 P M3IASY solipqestq eoisiyg! SSIAIBS NPy B 2NINT SENpy 4
. A ; . nE i O, e ' 4. Tiiniutios” . . ..
B} Ut $1500 LOISIACIES: Sunsse
suondiunsse sBunes ey spaeoeid:
; [EIUIBPISAL 6/ 10 uoUDNPDL B BY jpMm’
(N Y dleoustsopad ER Ba0UL ABUNWWIOS DU L $90IAIDS B0
Sotod (euoiey gum suh v S| s ARUNUWILOD 23 apacud o Aeg gy ‘vien ing ‘Yyesp
: Ul 3180 Buisealou) 10 ped Se 2480 jequepIsal; ; N0y o seanealgo oy Bueuspun BOAIG ARUnwosy
ia G ] Q 0% 051 051 UBHl Byled 3.0 e apiacid o posu s oos 061 0S1 BIBY) [RHUBPISO) SO sonpay’ S80S JInpy B 8anyn7) sjinpy 3
{pasinay 0u0.3 600.3 4003 0603 000.3 000.3 00,3 £00,3
pooiby) | VRN | O | 002 oo | vwioraz | oveont | samong 0003 | 0416002 | G0i800Z
2mma ;,w ° sto . ._w.é W01 FEEY 18A0 1380 ssaifosg %E. 1 Ban FEr) Aousionz jo speseq HUp sseutsng Bl
wrmepmmmy | O wwm % r.m._‘.%ﬁ; .mr%mm AT 1 vwoier | pisonz VigieE | ovenoz a3y
ZLALL0E @ L s00g
(g P smaney)
sbunes pesifiy-aiy
3 wipuaddy AuButien o yBnoog Lopuo




0g

e

eraG) Ind uaag
SEA| SAIIBLUIBIE UE ] PaABLDE Bg 10U A4 pf
PRABIIE 8% 1A 158

JEBA B0 LR el
SHEOA g 1900 pEOIS Ing Do) OB 84 A8 29
: SiT

sasujoe o} wbaey uo Ajuounn i)

assiyoe o] 196181 uo Auaing g

‘paaufie sjbie);
{BISUBLY O} uClIRl U Bl SBLIAES 9saig pue!
Aesispun ale S2INNAS jo MeiA BuieBug g

PRy Buag 1o sse00sd sy w5 SINIONULS
BUt pualse of unoj Auoyine pajebaep e pue

. juedea ydey useq sey jsod oo ﬂcmﬁimu Ve

"PRENSUOC USBG DABY SUOIIN Ay | ,wm:m_n_
S jo s3900.d ay) i st Auoyine powsajap
B4l PUB PBRNSLIOD usay sy Japioy 1sod a4y 7g

0L Ul sigesonon 8g 0 siyl 1oadxe 9 ‘o9

Sy BZ SUBIPIYD dn Buines Jo 1500 jeiuy BUIOG
i : ’ WiEE) aouelusGibd:
5e T ® Aoyjod oy ul SRRy mc,ﬁﬂmmo MEIADN

i

g

9z

PoppeGHIs SBwonsg

B04oRId S8 S30NPAl S J0) paBy =

Atowniais 4o sjeas) yBiy 0y S1eer SyoMiey

BOIAIDG ARl

awos ui abueys sionposd jersod
- afiveys geis Aziodwa 10 251 5587

G0z v Lonajap
pur Bulpun [euieixe et sjsod poddns:
UBHI9I (Buosess Lielodus) sonpoey

pRieIBsiul O usuwysigelsa

4 . UENOAE peABIUDE SeIDusIOyE Bulgeig
’ ; o " -seandsal oddps’
BUL Ul SHNUSIOYS BYRW 0] jeyuolod |

& 5t 2ia) S18pIA0ud 4ooig 0 pavjuy

SUDISHE PUB $HIOAN
40 UBWHEdS UM Bunyom diysisuped

Safte)
HOMIBN s8idoay pue Asagap soimos.

10} POSN S YoM jaBpng 1] ur voponpay

uogouny jusustieuety snoy-ul ay;’
10 Avuaiie eoiases pue Sjone) Buyes

‘sonnes patesany dmvou o uonEn(ens:
BUalxe g ‘Butsiel ssatusieme ‘Bupsedy

 60/9007 s 90105 SisWARD pue.
obeseyouq sioeiu0g ‘Bumsoissiunuos |

Sunoiopy suoydas | O wononpo
B4 s - seEsioyo Buyelg!

Lesopuswebebus - SBIOUSIoe Buyelg:

Ui0g U se1Bojouyae; meu U Juswiseau; |

SHIOMIBN SUSIDIRD :

SRIOMIBN SLBIPRYT

uonensifiay jeiops

9 DAN0SXS Jori) -

uohensiinay jeiojoery
W BANDeNT Jelyn
fe1Eang

saoiag nbsjeng
¥ Buioissiiavon)

S2MNDG mBareny
% BUUOISSIMWoD

saomg uibsreig,

B Buossiwiuion
ey

CEH RS

FOINIDE SHoa Y
Bunoy, g wauppun
Toniniag s sidoag
Buna) » usippun

BUNIDE $31d08

Guno A g uspyD |

AUAITG:
SBMINDEN JBg

ANAIBG
SPM0AX oD

YOGS .ﬁE:EEoUm
B aang spnpy

LT MV T TTeYe
g 29MNG synpy

3G RE:EEDO_
® HOEND SPNPY

MBS Auniwo)
¥ ey sinpy

2oiAeg Anuwon |

iz

9%

@

‘e

o et ra 0z Ui MDD - Juswebeury eus0 BinsieT SBUIAIOG [BUOHEDIDGY B AMYND SHNpy 81
RO I : . o “Suooi| ” - e e
{Bnule euoiinpe ajioual o] spag Jemop
: pue aseds usdo Sieg ul ditysiosuods
: : : ABLNWWoD S80UISg 0] e pue; SUAIBS Aunuiwion
_m. G 0 og Gz ‘05 LT SE “ansind zmewom [ QEEOchQm.mima SO0IAIBS [BUOHEDONY B ming synpy, I
UGIIOUN} BOUBLIBUEN
; ; : spunosB syued sy) o Aousiaigs . BUAIBG A0
0 0 o oo 001 067 001 om aTRIBs pue sips) Buysers syl MIIASH | SBDIMEeY Mmcnzm@uwm.m BaMND snpy g
‘oS faburs pue vepem aoeds '
; uado oynads pur PBSSNU0Y B apiaoug : FOIARS ARUTWO”
(] 0 0 G2 G0¢ 007 00g ;01 9omies Amingzisuod eyed jo MONAY  590IMIBG [RUCIEDIDSY ¥ SMND sunpy 51
firip - X
{pasinay ww oo o o 0003 | 0003 | ooz 0003 | 0003
- paasty) 00T 06 n
p 1PAD 1980 1840 03 HOLOZ | OLBO0T | 60/8007 (08,3 8176002 | eo/gnoz
mu:m_mmb 6] 180 P . mmﬁmoi e g AL IRAD Asuaising jo sjigjag Hufy ssauisng aeI0jo0IQg
_— TMIT | saE 1 Lo . . ) ’
ST smsn | etusima | soumen ESRER gl IS E TR TR PLAORGT 3 DlAANDT AT
SRS G QLB
BRI R
sHureg paufiy-aiy
3 xipuaddy

Aathuey jo yBnosog unnugy




g

o,

B L&

B

en)

oS

21

8

JE

88

.ch..

0g1

|8 usweluLle SanADG POIBUG B JO0UN SolRs

DSIERR LRBg SBY $1800'
WBABIDS O UGHESIHUSH! HUE PROUSIILIGS say’
sauned ojgssed yim susissnosy Aeasspun

vy

sesodosd amonasal
UM Ul U S1S0d Ul UORIRPBI PALUE)Y

e
i85

‘BIIOIBED BUE JO IBPUIRIB BL
SSOIOE 19U BOURIEG BY) UM J0joey ADUBDEA Lt

BSEIOUL IOUIL € UBNOW ST UMM pasaoe

HG13 PeunUep! 1012 8A0E O] SRl Zrt

POYHUSP! OF O} IS S LL/01L0Z Pug Lodsued)
BRI Q1500 Ut parSse oY O} patoarix: 16
©S SH)) SASILIE DiRoUs

8002 1SGUBAON b D0IADE jO Buomnosing g1

gE

oSt

“syonzondde _
MU IO BUINICA 9y Ut 2seai 3681 £ 0) enp
Pastasl ale spsodoud stulaes jo Buseyd ays ‘04

0 09

96z 81z

POASKIOE 03 4 25

PRABNOE 80 M 00 Dot

PeASITE 3 1M 07
B8

: pomaInal m%o;m\amﬁ o] sjurlfi AiBunoa |

1280001d 801AI95 PRIBUS HON
...... : (e

AousBy Aq pa:oaco Auoung) sisod
UCHELSILILIPE /¢ 8R0S OM) J0 UoIBREA

BNBA SI{} ©] pa

P B O] SHOUSINYS !

Aousioiga 3o spunoub
B} L0 JBWRNa f SSILEpUngoy
abinag Hodsiel) Bin

jeuoney’
242 SB0MUBS BUY JUY S8 (LOS) pels
A4S J0 UOHINPSL JSYLIN] UOBIISHILIDY
- 18y e poddng Juepmig |
o uononpel
Jeak un jeak feouois {sookodwa
LORUGT 1SEY 4UON j0 aBapnry ke
§H - HORBONPT JayLing [enpisay O
SUDWHUILGOD Mokl 6 -
SI00Y2G 0 SIS07) MOWSMSY aImMBwBly

dojerap SUomiBH
SUSIIUT S8 S80iAI9S 0 uonesbau):
il Wi

HEIS QNG [BI8LBc) BIA POpUry 3q 0) pue

peseasIu 9q o) Jafie) owool Buryesy
{00d) anual) swidopasg jeu S8§014

uonexe ]
B30 B SpgsUeg

LOREYE ] |

uduwdomAng :
® Heddng sssuisng

uswdoeasg;

¥ Woddng ssaupsng

uswdopaag
¥ Hotking sselysng

iswdopas m

uswdopaag:
% poddng ssouisng
| uswdopaag:

1oL

pug spiepuess m_vo:.um

uoisnou;

BUE SPIEPUEIS Si004og

usnouy

SENIN0SEY MeIndioD

S8NN0sHY SjRiodion

155 seidoay
Buno i g usipiys

aoasEs soidoay
BunoA 9 uaupun:
" a0iiag $8d0a

Bunas, g usippysy

ERITYETS ﬁﬂaooam

Bunos g veupiriy

annag saidoad’
Bunog g vauppn’
Temniag saidosg
Bunc ), 9 uBpgqD) .

S0IMIag Sajdoay
Buno, g usippi

PG w"m_uoman
Bunox g uaupyn

aoIABS S odoay
Beno A, p usappys;

or

44

e

: SPDEAUOD DUAIIG 5210
_PamauRl 8 Jou fm mwom:.coomww ] 24uB0 bmwc.:_g fupuny asean W P UBIpiyD Bunoy g uaippyn 2¢
oY . Si0Rilios et L Saims sitsay.
0 0 PRMBLS. B4 JOUl [ SIBRUCD 022 0z Aamjunioa AJOINBIS Lou jo Buipury asean) SSHIUBY § UBIPIID Bunos g vasyn ! 8
; ; ; ; ; oo e disiterpsen e b y .4
. : reioads pue uondope Jupsasu
: ‘PepIrcid SOUBPIAG L0 peseq pig ybnoa; D17 ue voyonpas woy Buisue BWNIDG §9|d08:
00E) (os1) fost) 4 0 0 ; Ymoab ngsss00nS LG JuspURdap S tabies sy 0o 051 051 196p0q Buoissiusuo ul ssjoueiy) SSlflle ] ¢ uBiPyD BunoA guaims’ op
: : Siiomal eIy jo- f .
: ‘s0ulnes sseu sayoe 0 sop N0 0SB PUB S ARD B4} JO uogesBajs : a0nES sadoay:
922), L AE P o 1 POUILISE Ussg sy SSIUBIONS [PuokEIRdC 917 g8t 6 : satjuny yBnoa sousioye Buyeg SRR P USIPIND BunoA guaipn ! sz
; "POLIUSDE 84 0] PESU M 101598 AIEiinon ‘ : |EYdED asesipl of Blipnd jo sjgs; o , TBAieg sdidosy
C 0 . 0 0 — 4 i 8us Buipniow yes soj uonepowwioooy )z iz PUE DY DIOJN WO} 4835 10 Loesopy | SOHHLUE.] P UBIPYYT SuncA gudippn’ g
(pastay y N 0co.3 000.3 2603 600,32 G
. LHOLOZT | OL600Z | 60/B00Z - - - - 0.3
o) 90 ‘ano 19A0 006.3 Hi040Z | Ou600z 6018002 mm.ﬁmﬂm 000.3 03/6002 | 6018002 Aausioiyg $0 syeyeq 14 Ssausng alr0)28101
TUBLEN eniee | swerar | susner | 0L ap FEVeS e s G 180 B : ' ' '
DASPEI soummy, | svespws | emaes TeA0E § 13000 1 auaenoe e | ausong 143N
TLIE LT DL (L AB008
(8L e
sfujaes paaifiy-aiy
24 xypusddy ApBurets 10 uBnossg uopuo |



‘s)ebie) o30y] 193w Of Auige sno joage few

SUOHIDUGCO J8yetl U uoneoLalap uediufis

;UL A ZL /1102 Ol paseydal ussq sney.

: i suonejoadxa sBuises ou) SuCIPUOD Jesueww
i | Ausdoxd [BaewLIco e LD joog AL 0} By

"SHEBA BININY U BUOOUL UG UIMOLG |
LB 2AOGE - SLUIODU} (210100 Aladoid.  semnosoy a1ei0dion ag
SHIBAW00 UGENUNIWICoSE] o P o

G} SBYS [eiualed JayeLw
PUE SUOLEDG| MU AIIUSP| SA)IS [BiY

Be .

SINOSBY diBIodion

POASIOE B 0} 19818 mo.ow.

SHORONPAI JEIS BSaL)
jo uonedigue ur sdwsy Az pajy oq o} sisod
¥ 16} SOPIAQIT Ul SSBUISNE BY ] SUOONPas
BUMOA A%0AU pouLEd pug BuinBug

SBOMOSSY BlRIOTION

"B00T @il Aq soed w 8q fa sage

MRU Byl ey paedionie s ) Busaubusal : : : SEHEIOR] IBISED) proy YBIH
; 4 [RokR0] xeidwioo sxeLepun o)) : : CovTo Buolssiuwooan pue sequey
: vm»_:cm: DU B4) PUB SID{JUOD SOINGSHI 0] 8Np BOIMIDS SBIOISTT) UL 18 papmoId : :
0 ‘O ‘54 {66) 521 56 e waloud sy ol Aepp uoys & usaq =TT ; [s74) : SHSOR O} SISISED JO UOISIAOIaY | By jaousuiL dpiodion’  seonosay gpeiodion: o
- i AG . “ . LoEE = . ek P S : 7 ioisngne. T i
: : : : : : : weed esB Ut sjuswacsidun oy
) o ] 07 : : oz : “PaASIyaE 9 of phiel o oz POIEIDI S92 YONE [BUIBING U} UOGONDSY - 1PNy /S0u8Ul awiodion.  sacnosey eodion.  gg
B e E . auue . . An i g i Gt = i : o :
Ajsnomaid jou Junospeey Ur suolonpas : : LLOLOZE:
T uEnu M SBWARS WA [BUCIDDE uBoal; : : © uppassiyoe ase sBunes BN osay)
Rv ] IBABNMOH "ROOZ JaquIDAaN Aq sogd ul s ; MOU PUE 3010 10} sBuiaes panibe aud
O} Aladyl] SINJONIIS MBI B} HIm o BuissasBoid DL YIOG DUNSLS JHM JUN SSaUISNG BloyM.

PR jadiieuly EEou.mob.

BOLELLY BIRIOGION IO SININASH) Ay 24} JO0 Monssayadeyses patiuegd iy ! SBOUNOTOH Emhoﬁo\v.

: ; : ; BS PBIER) Jeuaq-a u 51500 JUSwINIcal pue : :
218 : : =1} HE{HOYS 10 eesuadiuos o} Buiaes aayewely o Hes Aoustie jo wawsBeusw BANDEAU (E007] @ Sjpauag  sasinosay ajeicdion | 05
v [ - . f 1 oo . [ [ Lo sso5id B jo WotBEEIBG.

sButaes pajess aueg-o u i {BUIBIA uBnouyl sewsdod KAdw H uosexEe
o 4] 51 o Gt liejoys o apesuadues o Buaes o BLIS Y O : SCIMNN U0 $93) uopoatsu uo sEUMBY {800 B Sieusg: S2B0aN0Sa Y EEOQEO. B¥
1S(1- SH030R4u00 Bupupd ino yBnouyy:
: SRUNPB00I LOSHEM ¢ sossaocid !
: ; sBues paign) yduag-a b UOHBJUBWINDOp HUOH03IS 10 BN jajeg uonexey ; :
g o 0% ‘08 . BI04 oy Biesuaduios of Bunes BARLISY ubnosg sisos aBeysod ui UCHINPOY [BI0T ® SJsuag:  senunosey emicdio)y:  gp
S b M MR f ; “ " isq oS peseqd. wongwe] .
In G2 ; 04 oL ; BABRIOR O} ORI U 07 0L i m Lo sadojanue pred-aid jo BN By YL 18307 B SlydLog .’ senunosay alesodion iy
S b S .. [ . " e S o : - 1
0 BUIAES S} MOJIE 1M UMM DEMBIAG uaBg "BoUeldaone IpRe puB 1nGo o) Jolexe | | :
] 0 3 Gl G SBY JorAucs alieis 11g oyl o wawabeuepy g| 0L i Pavuy sisoo aBeuos seded u uononpay 18007 ¢ siljeusg Sedunosey slelodion oy
: T i T o T : ; T e sdleusiiew ple usene; o .
G o it} i ig BABIKIOR 0} ORA UG DL 5 I to&a:m £XS 84340 1500 ayi 1t  UORoNpaY; {80077 % SHBUSH!  Samnosay ajeiodinn: gy
Pnposd sigeus B0 pue WBSAT
wBwESEUR WBWNI0( N0 Yim aoepo
1OBED JO Ynsol B se speod Jooyo uiupe ¢ ;
: : S24ep g 177G euonesedo finy sie sassesnsd ; “BPEW 89 03 suonesidde suiuc Bumwoge uchexsy’
257 0 4 {ea} 6 €6 ABU D) PUB DBYIBISUL LSRG STY SIBUSL-D BHUG GG o5y H LWALSAS SIBUSE-1 Jo uononponu; 18007 9 SHSUSY S80UN0SAY ajeiodion I
. [ilili] 900.F T00.3
posnars | vor | ovstoz 60/800Z 000.3 1 4003 | 000.3 0663 1 060.3
- paRby} 190 810 BAD 0903 | LH0KZ | oUe00Z | s0/800Z 0003 | owsonz 1 somooz
wonmtm.» o ) 101 1000 o ssa1Boig g Tans 300 Asumog jo spepeg B ssausng 8}eJ0ynaliq
shgmastg | 2 ﬁww @m % ﬂ,%w .wW M ﬁmm@m #7544 MAROT 1 bisent FHIGENZ | DH/B00Z e

CEHLLOE LT DLAANDR
{pury feasusg)
st pesiBiy-olg

3 wipusddy Aatiuuey o ulinoiog uopubd




(31)

SRS UBET S0 DUAES 0N sgns

© BITEISBL ] ISE0RI] B W Bliars sy

PistA U pinom Aganoe woy Buiaes pejosioud:
JBUL PRLLIGNOS SEY aA0elao 0 Ma1AeM gL

oyendoadde s Bunes jo apjoid pasinel gy}
POLLIUOD SEY B1EP ) YOAN '9seyd asoubep /
uonetissaul syl i Ausuns walou (ABawag
ORI JBWOISND) 2y Ut ARsuapun joalosg 0eg
_ : 8685

pRIDNIBP BG 0} SEUIARS 3584) MOjE
A SUCISAOUL0D &) bue uoieduico Bulieeu

vl i saniales jalia] jo meinal offerens sy gLz
passAllop o 0} SBUIABS 2534 moje
M SUOISNISU0D Bu) pue uonsidwes Buugay

e ; S 5501AIRS (B9 o mairal vifiDRas S 0EL

G ; JON[BD O ORI UD G

JOMPBD 0} Yo U g

o

04

004

oy

o

pasodord ussg m)mgm

SHEARS aARLGYY - uolRaual awoouy

pasodeid upeg
2aky SBLIABS SABLUBYY - JIUS [BUURyD

$AIDS

jasunoo o asn Buonpsi
PUE [5SUNOD jO 1500 uv sbAes Buepy

S S e pag

asegeiep yoleasal [ehia) up Busaau

SOILGLWIRISD SMOA
0 femauas pue Buiuey woij wesains:

BLIODU] Mau jeusod ~ siensiBay

i i
Ay uo sags o) (Jofiong [ebs) wou:
popUNg SIB8A £ IXeU 1A 3043 1808

SINNIAG SBLICISND:

EreLan

sannleg edio]

seoneg e

sauasag ebay

SBUAISS JBLUCIEND) |

IOLgng.

$9uN0SaY NRIodIo]:

SI0INOS0Y B1ROdIn)

L spomnosoy oiodion

SIUNCSIY FlLIodion

se0inosay aeicdian

SH0INCSSY 818400107

oz

89

AR

98

mhg_vmwaxw
‘pajasfosd se bl : sesiwag pue uolRSIIRLDPE uo sBuires;
sBuIAES BY) SABIYDE O} § uoRElDadXe Juaun: mom 57 - Bugiealn g wswabeuepy soy Momu_ Auadoig SSOINCSIyt SII0HIOD 9
‘pajoeiod se sBuires sieak!
oml Peu ey} sanep o) pasedxa s ubledwrd: ‘
JUOWNDL WD Gyl Buwogos ‘aBeis! UOIR2001-00 PUE SOHGILUOSD
pUODAS BY ) BBN0Z LI PRISAIEP oAl ARy : 0 uotlesteuoRel 'sebueyo!
Budeysed ayj jo abeys 154y ay3 wos sbujae By ‘65 jesmonuls ybnosyy sBuises Buyels: Auadold:  saomnsay melodion £9
sjuawsiueiie wawsmooid mau g007 Wag w ~omb¢oo.
: A pauanjep aq [ Sieak aunn; o) uoneadxa MU BUMDIICS SHI0M DOUBUBIIBIL
0 o OL . D poRONOR Apeai g/g002 Ut SBUMES Op) 02 o 2MIOE} § pelield 0 UOESIATG Ausdoig.  saoinosey sieicdioy 29
; T A A S ST - w :
o) tn paposdas vaed sey it Aguenbasuos ! wsuwabauew ygep paaosdiy
; : H ebiey S 9abriDE 0] AlaE N0 P YA LBREYUEY JO uOlRIuSadL : H
0 oL 08 oo ool oL g ey Janel AHd0L4 B U1 LINLMOD D41 00} 00k .Emaoim sa0in0say seicdion! 16
SIS00 HUN Up 952040U1 Aq payebal ag Aew : {pueds jeydes: :
I 0 N oe 0§ S} IOASMOL BUINIOA U] mmcm.\,mm 03 plier i o e 01 pasjln) sbuneg uopeaasuoy) ABleusy: Avsdoig S30UNCSAY yRindio)) jaie]
: : ‘paoaiold se ebiey : SUORINDAL:
0 ] ¢ 201 90 sBuiags sul @AsioR O $1UONBILSdXS URLND 901 90t 438 ppuoneRd(y — jeH umo | A8suo: Auedolg:  saaincsey sigI0doD 86
ZLLI0E oo
61 dn papgosdal useg sey i Apuenbasuon: ‘pue pounon o) Buneies jou syosiosd:
: 1afiiel siy ansoe o) Apyge ino patosye: ; uoneseuabas Bulioddng (ueludopasq|
C Gl 0 fon) 0z 04 B3 S2U 1B GUISNOH 313 Ul winumop ey 107 0 § HGHEMRA) SLIOTKA 93] BUOIDPY : Aupdord  $90M089y S1RI00I0n 85
BuBaeyo Aiqissod | sooeds|
H ur uononpas e u Buibulg o) MoiA B yhm
: : ‘payslosd se ananjoe o) paioadxe’ UOESIAGI] S01C JUBLND MBIAeY LOISAoId
0 0 — 0 - 0 — GE 5€ tabiey 01/6002 perayor YOLT Jo 190483 6/3002 15E 5 20110 JUBLND Jo MBIl ~ Bubieg B0 fusdoid!  soounosoy spiodion: g
ooy || yover | oweooz | eoisooz 000.3 | 0003 | 0003 000.3 | 0003 .
- paauby) 040.3 LHOLGZ 1 0476002 § 60/8002 0003 04/660Z | 60/800Z
Jan A "
SRSy o w@m . MM,M,N . MWWMN 1oL o o o ssaifoiy 2o o 1o Kounisi3 5o sireraq 1A SSaLISENg aeI0ang
' e 4 3 P .
MR g | BoLmes LR, LThebend | LU § DusBnE LUAGLOT | 01BB0T 4
EL23LOT OF 316002
{pun g e}
) : sBuneq pamby-aid
3 wipuaddy fstfurey jo yBnouog uopuoT




s

@

SIBRA 7 Kors

BOJZ Lt LeeLBpUn &4 Jou jim Asaing ig)

IRGUM U UBL] SBUIE YGZT Aa SjusAs'
a1 BULLAL O 1S00 (810} BY) BONPBI M BA4

SHIO Ypm dilSIauLE

80u0 0} Acuanbay Aaans ges eonpay’
1204 sad | 0] SILSAD gBIS SonpoY

Ul Yiosm — Aanisp wluswdopasp

BABAYOE T} YDBI} UD ARUBLIAT 0l 7 Alosiape Joy [BpOUE 99IALBS MAIADY
: SONALBS MH [UONDESUE.

BSASIYGE 0} ¥ORI U0 ARUBLIND Dy ‘04 {12 Jo} ARnBp 2316188 JO {epoul Meira
Heddng ADURKNSUOD pUB BoIADE
SABUIIE O HORK UG AL Ty £F M [EUIBI 10} SEI0FAI U} MOIASY

HOUUNS Mp 10§ S80S
Suymis sepest wesy oyl majaay

SABIYOE 0] Yord) U0 ApuaLIns Gp

196268} uQ geg
BhijuQ /el
Jabie) Ug ‘g
1ebielugy og
1abie) 60 051

SPUS 10RO 340

598 AUBRSUOT

B00Z BUnr spld 12100 GapA

{reiouas) suoyonpa:
ysod psehe 198 4o o) Buass BAReLIBYY

sisod mwuy0
{jppuat) mcg:unnm_m
18500 1suiete 195 4o o) Bues anjeuy o

‘Butnes vl uoonpal pue Bumycid-al s
ey jsugbie jas yo oy Bujazs SARBUBHY D

SOUAIDS DIBCLOIMS JO UOREWIGINY

SpUS 98887 7).

BAALBS JIOS [50d JBIS Ul U Py

SedIAaG BUICISNT) o BINUNASSY:

N loddng sssusng Jo aunjoniisay

(i9foid

BIARS U UoRonpad pue Buygoud-al s Mmc.__@o Hausg polewomny) wetusbeugw
Buuey) jsuebie jas jo o) Bunes anjeuieYy :
(rousb) suoyonpos :
jsod jsupebe 25 yo o1 Bunes sageweiy o

{ipssuall) m:o_«onnw_m (saoueoea

suiep Jaueg Busno o sefueyy

(Honesiundo sse00:d) suny 1541} 1By

juaiudoleas(y:

feucesiuebin

wawdopaacy:

{onestEts
i

ED2UN0SY UBWNH

S20I08TY UBLLNE|

SBOMNOSAY UBLNG

$ITAIGS JBWI0JSNT

SBOAINS JaWoisny |

SNMRG

SAOIAS OUDIENT

SONAIDG JHuIOISNYy

tejsng

: Jawdopaeg,
 leuoneswebug g odosy:

05

awdopaag:
euciesiuebio  adoog:

Juswdomasg]

euoesiebioy 5 adoed’ gg
Juswdonsg

| feuonesiwebiQ g aidosg 9
; wauitosaag ‘

leuotiesiuebig § sxdosg o8
wowdepaar.

| jeuonesello) 3 sjdoay s

STANOESY sjeladiony 2]
s90inosey deiodiony gy
sesinosey eeiadion’ T 2

$B0IN0saY aEiodos
‘$0In0saY BIBIodon

SHUACSEM djRiodon

SIANOSIY SmSSoom 8

Se0M0saYy sjeiodion 2

$80n08aY ojesodion 7

SIUN0SIN 9iziodion Gi

GG e “mw GG 150d isuebe 195 4o o) Bumes angaus)y G 0 wawsoedal uou} Aousioys Elausg SHNAIDG BEBW_..U. sanunasey aeioting i
: SSAUROIS L) USHONPBL 0} 8np aouewLCHRd
H 0 2 B )3 ul @seainul pejedmiue - Buaes asgeuR)y o SEBLOIS Lt uoanpay SBUIABS JW0ISND  SB0IN0say jei0dio] e/
; 1abiiey 3yt sasnoe ©) panmsyns usag :
: : aney s108i04d papeap ‘obie) j0 mawal uodn: ; pasadosd usaq sasy |
08) 0 {og) 0 ; M0STF Sem 60/80 Jo} 19afoid Buiaes JaBpng mam o8 sfues SNTRIIAYY - JUBLICIADD JyS S9OIMEG SBLICISNY . Semnosay eelodion’ 7y
Iieaoa0 BLAES Y gE Bupleik patoinioo usag :
: SBY J0al0id "AOAPD 60/20 10} SinINANsal : pascdosd uasy oary
¥iL) G (rhe} o 0 wawabeuey 55 poji-a: sem Jo9icid Lt il sbulaes ojeuIsYyY - S150d Ut uonanpay SBOMEG JBLIOISND).  SI0IN0SaY MRIndi0n) 12
(pasiay 006.3 000.3 b00.3 003 000.3 000.7 6003 6003
poaiby) | I | obenoz o | w0z | wmiosoz | oveooz | susgaz 0003 | 0L600Z | 60/g002
aigias 0 o] Jaa0 I9A0 Jann seaGoiy ey A0 1880 Aovaraya jo sieseg Hugy ssacisng Sielepang
i FANEEE: ) LiAar HEARGEE N ot o 1 s
DAL ) sovpey, | stusma | amenmy ZELL0E | il | dusnoy VIAGE § 0i/e007 438
SEFLLIE DL ABRG0E
(L4 eawssn)
sBumas poafy-aid
3 wipuaddy AaBuuets 1o yBnoiog uopuoy




a4

-

oz

0L

01

0y

B

0y

8

‘g9

44

501

BRGSO

SMBLUSINDSI BINDSHS |0 MSIABI JUR S$Esng
1epim Jo Ued S8 pamaligl 9g 0] SluBlLisanbad

b1-0L02 Ut
wieay Aaaap sdiysisuued syy A0} $812UBO R

ey
Aspauap sdujssaupey suj 10 Mdindg uwmnxwoham

UOREL SA WIOJ} PUNO} 2 i Sl JaBlel ug

RIDAS DFddcdd 0 Lones|euoeL

01-6002
04 9oiAB G slslisuep poowinoguiion syl
105 92un0sa) BUIBETS Bu) O BWBLYSL Dy

SOINOTHS WRHY UCREWLIGU B Y0BaRea D

DRI PUD SERUISIE JO MBIAGL FIPIM 25

0 ; YEnoan i ag i Bumes Asusoiye sy L8

B} BRoIYL oL ag M @Smm Aosusigo sy | M.mm

0 U0 Ui 52 1801 oG gim Buiaes sy | by

& yfinouy puno} aq pm Buaes Aousioye SHy h.maw
HaAap ©f SdsBule g BleIodion

awe ol Emhwm
SHOUNOD jo juBRBeUELY Juapnid S | SAD.
9y yiinouy pesearap aq |

BINOAISHI WS
Ylinoay paanbes se spew ag m sbuneg

010 Ul MOINS) BOIAISS [[RIOA0 U1 PRIADISUOS |
8q OF suonesiduw SUOHIDIT DLOZ/AL
jauLemodiugA0Y Hide T Bueleises

20npas of Ajloades oN oddns Bunpen [eLuaj

PEINPaL AenlB ussg Sey HUBnSUCD
[BUIBpE LU0 BOUENDY SASIDR 0} 0BH UQ (G1

. . et
1B 2100 puey O SeAIRLIRYE O {Joquigy
1800} SUBSN B0IAIRS JO Juewabebug paonpas
24 o} saidon SNy Ao sIgWweyy ann
; A peasoas vg 0} sepusbe N suodar oy
i $e0ipuBdde JO UDARINDKD PO

| AJOA Baniny 1 QL

SIEBA Omy XU Ay
; JOA0 BBIR S Ul pUBES BONDBI D] 4398 M i
| Bue soweIBold 9yl YoM Yam Aousnbay agy

54,

o : 0} el uo 5 mE%m.xucQoE& S 0L

suiy b vo 28

: Buumnbay sbugssw pug saipog joou u YHoI 0y

mmw
,we
69

¥

or

w

5

WIES | BOUBUIOLIS 4 DUR Wsrdnoudiy |
@) v stena) Buers o mainsy

SUIWIOTY) ¢ dissAulieg
BUUBULOUDY A0

Lro

A0 g HRIBULIOLD,]

Hea) VOB LN pue!
SODINGSRE [0 MBIANY

SWIY) g dnysiated

HOBOPRE-4 4] Aoi0d 9 BMIRULOR] SOUBULIOUS L0104

G AR

Toswen g uEw.&::maw
sdiySaIe 4

ADHO . IoUBULIOMES Avjod] 201
ST MO JO Gl EVINCEE o
Guwwooy  sdyseued Jo) ssWwoong’ TSLMUGT R dIySISUHE
jo AeAgsp aaning oy wies) ssiuebiosy mafﬂmcﬁmam. BRI ASHO L0l
SUALOD 9 ﬁ:@mc:mmm
wes | jojag Amunop aieiodion sAusBuded wucmELotmm.?:o& 001
.USWWoD R dysisuniey
voddns puw weswabeweyy sciysBuNEd aouBLLOpA Ao 66
anneg juawebeuryy
pooyInoquBien oyl uynm .Ao:m_o_tmm SWILWOD R diusuued
DOIAISS DLE S|aAY] BUIRIS O MBIASY sdjsssupey. BOBLIIOHES A0 26

voddng !
schysiied 16 Yadsal ASUSiOWa !
BOASTS DUE S0 BUEIS mamay ]

SWUINT B &:ﬂm::mmm

sdiysIsupde BOUBUMONIS A0 B

" pejRne Sjuesb SHOLEA 07 sUononpal
HNAIDUY L SjueB saaeniu

‘SWtaory g nfmhwctmam
mat Bz pBEpng siuesb ul SUCHONPBY

sdlysouLR g BOUBLLIOND A0 |

PEG] }I0M PUR Wea § AUnupuon) ssaursng
¥ Buniueyy AousBrawsy sinBijuosay

SWIUGTD B Qfm_wcwmn_m
BOUBLIOLD ADHod

1e5h aod gz xoldde Ag sBupel
FELILIDS U UOIIONPSS LE0 1] JOIEWPIN0s
28R oD jedipuiid 31 31 0 uolBRg
: - EEIR

- BUILIEIE BI0W JSAIOP PUB SIUEHNSUOD
LB 10 530 20npa) - auauelBoxd

wowdopasg’
foeiowaq 007 jeuciesiueBic v sidosd. 6

wowdomazeg:
Asgssowaq jesoy leunpesiiesg g adoay £6

uossiackd suodoese Buisn seados 1aded;
2298 Ing {12 0} sepushe asppuuwes !
10 Bunuud Adoo paety sonpa; Jaypng

jugiudosaagg

ADRIDOWIBE ROGTY! jpuoneswebi) g srloey

disiapea) pue yBry Buuse ‘s2jenprIf

: SE LONs sawsyas walidopasp wowdopaagy: wawdopaag
0 0 0 L2 4 BUE BUBILD HORIYOS “spuedionsed 10 Jegiuny 27 42 pue ucisiaod Bujures matay feuctiesuebio jeuonasiuebic g adony. 1
068 0, A B
pasnay ¢, r.owwm cmawww ¢w_wwwm 0905 | 6003 | 0003 0004 | 000.3
- paaiby) 0,
" RAg 1840 ng 000.3 HHOLOZ | 0L/G00Z | 6018007 ssaBos 000.3 01800z | 60/8002 Asuemysd jo spea 3} sSausng ajeloszang
il vz | sz | ousonr | 90 sonn A Y d 1@10) 18AD Jry 1Bl $0 syRiRg ! ! !
BAYPRTA D soveLy | eouenay | astsues TLAMNT L 3L | siosooe AT § GLmelg 3y
LU 0E UL OLABOGE
{piin 4 jeiouso)
sHAARY pooiBy-oiy
3 pusddy

Aatiutiens 1o yBnosog u

GRUDT




GS1

%43

B

021

g5y
09

ZE

e

BL

‘58

isey anineg Buisnop Ajunwiaor) pue xbseng
oy ybBnoyse pasdyar oG ues SBUMES 0soy)

sey amamg Bulsnopy Apununuoy) pue Jibajeng

LGl e bl

Ly panss: 90 HIN0M R UORDRDE O0G Noge

FUADE JO AR PURESIUL SBLUNESY pouuexd:
SB U U0 SLUeT ¢ sorjunpeddo Nd.4 maN 68
B T g BE
ISP PUB UOSIEH SSOESN i Buyeap
1s0d JuenBA Of PEONPC4 34 0] SN0y POINpeY

aeafd Bupod
3y} u sjuswaAodws Medpubis Joaiep 0}
S8y 90AI9g Bursnopy Asumuao?) pue aibejensg

B i suswasnsdwn weauBis 1

451
“leaf Buiuod

DU U SjlelsAd W WeDUDIS PAeR Of

sel e0iAeS BuisnoH AxuniwoD pue abseag
oyl UBNOUE PAABIISE 84 UBD SBUINES BSBY |
...... Y s Biion

DU} sLBwaAn i juenpubis JenEn ©)

—
[y
-

oy yBNOYE passioe o UBD sBUIMeS B5ay )
o S N

P 1 spuswaAodu wengubls Jonep o)
sg aoateg Buisnop Ajunwiwo pue absjplg
oy ybnoyye poasiyor ag ued SBuMEs 053y | (081

1ofie U0 ge

1ab183 uQ g

$09] BAGIOE 0] 061l UQ ‘oz

599} aAsIy5E 0] jabie) UG ‘ng
S99} sAGIOR 0] Jobig) cow W

268} 3ABMDE O} 1PBIE) UG mam

JRBRNG ST L PRIy JOU I8!
aseu ui sEuARS “s198png Jayic o) paliieyna
st aunpuadxa ud pue ulison 1son gg

‘6002 uep wol) soed
112G pInOUS 3omauiEs id B uBisap Mo )

SHOSEUDADE [EUEING PUE [EUIDNL J0)
sojes abed Buiseainu Jo pOURU LORNGUISID

(BBueyn o) uaah 5o 01 PBSU M UNIRIBRISUOD

'syeBie] JBYLINg 199 0} "BO/R0 04 19BIEL U0 by

R

09

BE,

e

68

52

: {Nedd):
D SeONON AEUR PEXIL JO 98N POSEAINUL

BULIES [0 UOHESHRUCLEY
UGS RIS
7 2ASRIDE 0] Ut JBNGIY HE1S JO BSERRY |

UBLWRING0IE 0] SUORISUUDY) B0

SI3AD} SOUBSHE A0NPRY:

Heis Areaodwsy Buonpay

1hpng juawabeurw
DHUBY UMD 3 B LI LOINPEX

uaBIry

OO Ut JuswaBBUBY 210UBD UMD |
iy Joy soweBuene Bulpung sU] Meivey

5994 10U07) Buipyng asealouy

sa84 Buuued Ul @SE810U} [BUCHEN

IO} 8315 JOfBYN 1EUCHIPPY
st Subimys
amape uonedy-aid Jo UoHONROAY

ipng
Wiy uaie] SBUIABS - SBIOUGITHF JUl

B0/90 SSUSI T Whid

B3nuBAS) ButSIBADE

puctippe suzedey sidoag Asfuie

SEOAIOG DUIIU0IY

sanialeg Buisnoy
Alunusuon 3 cifslens

sanAIs Busnop

Apunuinion g aifleleng

$901A5G Bulsnogy

Alumuwio]y g aifislens

sposs fuisnop;

Aoy g abajeng!

g

vonEieUaBaY MWOU0DY

uoitesuabay Hwouosy’
i Borang
uswdoeasg:
2 AU BEULE
wawdopAag:

g Aojod ‘Bupiued:
uBdoPaag:

7 Astd BRI
wswdopAag:

2 Ao ‘Buteld

i

UCHBOMIWMOD |

ORI,

LONEOUNLILIOD
2

STOIAIBG SUIUGIY]

NG

JUAWLORAUT UEGI)

0zt

UBLLUOIAU Y GBI

WEWUONALT veglny. i
WSWLOIALT VRQIN . 21}

. JpwuoIAT eIy L
WIWUONALT UBQI . G1E

JUBWUOIAUT UBqI[)

WBLUOBALT LB

JUSLIMOSIALT UG

WBLMOBAUT YR L
UBLUDKALS UBQIN. 0L
UBWUOEALY VBN BOL

WBLUOBAU Y UBQIN

suipen R dusisuied:

BOUBULIOLR ATHOL:  [OL
swwos g dyssuLed|
201

SoUBLLIONS S ADHO.

SWHI0D § drsBuLeg:
BIBULIONSH A0

{posiroy wwwag_..ww 0LiF00Z mwao.m 0003 100,3 0003 00,3 0003
- paaiby) 900¢ 0063 LHOEOT | CH/800Z | 60/8002 0603 0600 | 60/3002
1850 13A0 130 ) , seasfioid ’ ADUB1OHI 10 syRleQ UM SSaUIShE B12I0)I8]
SRIELIEA Ty - P— ERY FAD AT AT fostag ] FRO 180
BN Boueus, | soures | st TIAIGT 7 LiA050T § ORUE LLI0E | DLB00T e
ZhALE0E O GLO0E
{4 jRaBuRey)
sHuAe ABy-a
3 xpuaddy IARS PRy -ald

Aabutielq 0 yBnciog wopioT




6

zw:okﬁ”
B Ul SPEOI BUBNISL I 0] 30AMS Buiyor
I BY) O INC-10S g Ag seubap e o) pajebiiu
S} UOHONPA) Siy | BMAIes Buisiiesio jeaus! i ; ;
0 G 9 0 01 ‘0 ‘001 § By uruononpal e wolp Suisue Bunes Sy L 601 : oo sBupest jo Budssmg SONAIDG BEIUOLY WSWUOALT UBQIN):  $EL
m sBuAes ay) saaep wiaysAs (g v} suoydop ; ;
o 0 051 o] 0 05} ; OF SNPBUDS U0 §f PUE || HO JUBDS St SIY L 0GE : 051 : RYBWOINY Buntied su; Bujoeday | ERhIAeG m:a:o.&..m . JUBWUOHAUT UBGIN  £E)
] RN . L B LS. . : m i
ut pajunuRidul pUB POALSP! B i SPUAES : : : A0IAIDS]
: : : @I JBAYSD 0 SjEsodo.d pue saouRLYf: ) 974 Bunped 19a4g-ugy sy} uo Asusiye’
0 ) 0 e Q ore [ . Buptieg uo paeithucd UBBY SBY MEIASL Y P2 Che BOIDS PUB S1aAR) Buigers molnsy SOOIIBG UL HBuosAEg uBql.  ZEL
. : o - I A T ! [ ; Lot L B 1 S i .
- "Hodey seBieye pUR $99; 8y) yBnoag : . : 24 0 JabBpng u pawngse uoiegw Saoqe
o ¢ 0 o koo 7 zz pasube pue parsiuoe 3q Jm Bunes st gy £z iz ; saliieyo yused ue gL o SEEDI04| SOLIAIDG BLIIIC JUSLLONAUT Ledqan LgL
: {1cid} uofeyu: sr0GE
0 o et a g9 POABINOR BY M S bl 39 99 sebieyo pue $331 U %6z jo asealoU| SANAIDG BUIIUO. UBLOAAGT UBGI: 0L
: "600Z Yosely Ay pajerdiuoo : : § o puBwsp pewstxe ey Bujsaw $.247.
o 0 e 08 07 i SHUDISUGND Zd0) OU) §f PRABIYDE BY 1M SIL 0G1 mam ‘02 {MBL JO JO0UIN BY) Lt BSBAID! panuiuoy SOOIAIBS BRI WRWUDEAIT UBGIY BE)
0 G ons 0 0 0og sOuiAes as0y; ajeioual o) sjoadxa 8BS 81| 008 008 - fupjieg UM SI0BIU0S Jo BuepUal-ay SHUIALES BULIL0S UBtuucHALg uBsln . §Z)
- N -, . b WoSHRIGOAHE pasitas i) - o " ; e ot -
i Japun sBulnes lequejod sunuEen o ajgelese
H : H BIED UDISYNSH St 8oy JELuoodde | .
0 o o o o : Bupsie vuuo parRUSe siaM sBLIARS B804 | Q01 oot ... BUBIHD 385 WODSRLY JO MOIASY SENAIDG SUIUOL Wowoasg BNt 72y
; el 907 Uo Ajaloe ; ! CU o ’
: HORONISUOD UG JUBPUBHaP 1S ST $IY L ™YO0LT i : : uodsuesj
‘0 Q oz i) : O [B10} € jC SELBABS JD Jzok DUOLBS DU} S SIL SY : ‘5z © o ejgeuRisng umm sabipyn pesesiou; SEUAIET LU0 JAUUOBALT UBQI . 971
i ; [Eaad: S e O O SPinps. . a3 b . . : d i
Bumolie 6002 bew A 308 Ut ARiBduwion
B0 PINOYS BIMONUIS MBU 841 NGGHT :
In - 0 67 0 a sz . 49 (€10} B 10 sButAes Jo s8af puooas aul s sy 057 ‘o5z {HOdSURI | SIURUIBISNS UjIm Sanonsey SBOIMDG BUICL JBUAIDHAUZY uRQI 574
; : ; & e jo Builion MG ! Nt . > o T
: : ‘ -19A0 Buikyiuap ut jnyssaoons pasosd sey :
0 0 o ks LG & 05 pue posuswwion sey JKOWB0IONS PUSHEM 05 o Q14 puseam Ap) SBUAIIG BULOLL JUSWUOIALT UBGIN b2
: PRIUoD X .
Mau au) Bunspual-al uIm au Ut 2171 108"
O} pagjosdas aq i sBuines spj) Jey; pesibe!
Aguanbosgns usaq SBy i JNSAI B SY 0107
: 98() AN YBNOM] POpUDIXG B HIA 10BIUED . REAHGT podeie) ¢
0 m.nmmp.x 591} G9LL 0 o 1RINAAL m:m AR vmé&.a..m BBy Jlge) GOL°) T : : % wouwebeuey ejsep palesbaju SOGIADSG BTG 4 RBUOHAT Lediny [l
: _ Jsilnize. : : “ e B T
o} sepene (O usiwsBeuew ases yeig)!
“IeLENnD 151 J0) SENad YBnoAR ¥orq paABIal suRwebuere juswabeupw
B3 USSG SBY 90U IBASMOY JUBISIoNS : : ; 9SED BMRUIRYE pUe uohebiy) sAjeuR)e
Butuugid jo yiom 0 enp seuenb sy H 10 @811 7 §1500 o Amaodal paacidu,
3 4] 3] 0 iy 0 180 Apuen :@.w.uwwm@uﬁ_ BARY 850D mmmm..”_ e dE m:ﬁ:_n:w - ednypuasdxs elo) w :o_ﬁusnmm_ UBWUoIAET UBQlN. 2L
. . : BNIAISS JO Uonesiebioss :
o 0 — 0 — G — 011 0 013 0 : 40} suerd ol Jng aq iym sBuiaeg gy g o1 ; : BT [PJUBWIHCIAT | SHINBG SUIRIOL WOWROANS UEQi) |z
! mww_www soioz | ousooz | somooz | rwwoqﬂww owmwﬂmw mmw%a.ww 0ee3 1 o003
L
wu:ﬂ £ . ._wwww . “MMWMN , 3>Mmm - 1080 B o s8a:Bo1g WMWW cwwmm%m mmw m_m_%w Asuspi3 jo speisg HuUp ssausng 03RICI0ANG
. " BELLIN &8 .
e numyes | sousion | m@%ﬁ%} ] ESRISR N ISV 1% 4 130802 | 035007 a3

SLALOE U OLIBO0E
(s fERGUBE) )
sfiuaeg peeify-oig
G Mpusddy AsBizser j0 yBnosog uopui




Page 87

O 0

0

N *L

02

KGL

[

061

‘BBURYD 30iAIBS pasodold
yBnoas siqIssod opru sansEBW ADUBIYe
Beagpeys yBinoay; 198png oY) Ut UoNSNDaY NG
1huyeis s88) Blranbar
sajo@a 1aBigl) pOLIoW UG9S UDDYS
240U AG POASIIVE B¢ 1M UL OL/600E
Ul opRu 8q 0] senseslt Aouaoyo Buels
Bugeus §/g007 w0 payel Butay 108f0s4 04

"ISLHED pRSIBNY B Yim sjusweniby

i @seps apes) ybBnodyl apeus Buiaq s 800 Jo

D ARAGDSI OU BiBys FOLURCT BUT A JO poasads) n

DISEM [BELBLUIOT JO DUINOA U} 80NPaI 0}
Utiid UOHOY ENAL] 8UI IRPUN $RIAI0E 0] OyuI| DS

s

o

0G|

SEOAIRS UOHOGHOD
Bunzdosd e Buipuadxse pue Buiaoidu)

sang Bupg Bulniooy poibuliuns

@Sy SISEM 9PELL IO §T4

SANALSS QUIIUOL

SOOIAIRG BUILCI 4

SADIAIBS Buuoly

WISLILOAMIT UBGIN |

JUSLLUONALT Leqn

WUBLIUOAALT UBGYY;

605
L0402
g

2L LT
BN,

[(ESEEN

- paaiby}

PUIRIEA
AR

060.F
0416002
B[]

[R5
DILII,

[0E]
6G/BGOZ
pLENY

pER
BRITLIEN,

£00.3
[

000.3
LHRLOZ
1wan
ELLE

0003
oL/60ee
FEEN
S TRt

0003
60/8002
sane
QiBied

000.3

gsa1B014 101

000.3

016602
JBAD
VL

600,3
66/800Z
ink0
YIE00Z

fauaroig 1o sigereq

jUn sseusng

sjgiclng

iEL

Ay

3 xipuaddy

ELIE LGB QLG0T
{pun g reatsan)
sthiseg peesliv-eig
Aafaren jo By uopuey




Page 88

QU RS

FRUBLIBN JSRIBW 0 BN WU

BUWOE sBps soeds uado oygnd uo
A0 dwsicsuods mimsuioD ssoddo
Oum uopoess aajebay awiog ‘pasiape.
8Q 0} SAYS POlIEB 'SPeq IBMay

aiqiBibau ag pinom

edun Aue snyy susweBueue

wewsbeuepy Aobajen.

MU Jo asn Bupjely/ seniales

pue soiddns 0 Buiseysind aanoeye
asour yBnouy) uononped 1500 Bueeg 0%

so886001d Jo BUUIWRANS JO UOISIARL

lIBLuS 1o} painss AUBLING 0 JejuLS 001

0g

(uds 0570 seus
SOOIIBG [BUONESI0RY

Nied urew) e:m;omcoqm SHIEA

(W3 10 9%,6) Wawvinooud

saoes pue senddng

‘LIES] JUSIDIYS QUOW BLOo Ol

swes) oM Buquic) Tuonouny

SB2IAIBG [BUCHEOIOEY

L

BOIAES AJUMLWIOD
9 QIO SYNpY

oIMBS AlunWiIo D
B SIMING SHNPpY

a0IAIeS AUnuiUDD

ori

Ag Aleayep aoimes U siuswencsdiu) og 08 . Asans suoneidepe asunwessg SIS NPy R 2NN SYNPY o
. GBS 55158 B P hnh L St : .
Jayio pue sasuemole feuosiod jo
uofeuIquios e ybnowyl peuoddns pue!
18wl 8 0] spasu Yodsuel; passesse: $80IMBQ o 93IAIBG AjUNWIWOD
‘spobpng jenpIApUl JO LORINPOLUY LEL e uodsues ) jo uopemByucoay $83IAB8S Ynpy R BIPND SHNPY oyl
it S odsuei] : o ok ” S 8 TER S PR
Arunwitio)) ybnoayy Buuorsiaoiday :
‘fesodoud supy woy uoisiaod 20iAas Modsues | jo Buluosinoidon B0IAIDG ABUnwitiory
U joedull WML 94 fim 8104} 04 01 2B {eluapisay SaVABG Ynpy ¥ SIMND synpy 44
siefeuepy 8oineg om) Bulsacy. : wawebueie poddns ™ o ” o : .
8q Mou [ feoo Loddns aoiates! o uonesiueliony - s aoinag Auntiwen
BUO0 sB JoRAW WNWIIIW 9 (M 215y hmm €2 ¥ JUBUISSassYy ojdoad ep|0y: S8IINBS INPY B amyND SYNpy Ll
jesodoud siu} woy soueuuopad Jo aydoag Buipoddng o Jaoyo : B0IAB G AHUMNUWOD
D01A18S B4} U0 1oedul; OU ag [im 8194 ] § poddns Jejsuel] asen Keqy S8BT JNPY ? SINYND SYNpY: ot
Buisnoy papoddns
Yum uoneuigquios ui pefisuel ag jim . juawebeur)y asiugbioay : 9IS AJUNUWOD
SUNIBS JUDWIBIGE-OI PBUNWIESNS S| £F £G T B0IABG e SWoH, S80S JnpY ® 2NN synpy’; 6EL
it bl vonesipuosad : . Iate ox : =
10} uogesedaid U jsod Juswssesse:! Em&m@m:mwa.
$,01doad J8pi0 pue synpy a1e) Jo uohesiuebioay 20IBG AUNLUIWIOD
30 pedH e dojensp 0] 51 9jeUOlRI BY) 29 ‘79 ' Jusiissassy odoad 1api0): $E0IAIBG YNPY 2 AINyND s)npy gct
s 000,3 000.3 000.3
BAHBQ 3DIALD
a9uPLLL Q_tm d c.wu ) uwwsm M%ww w ”Nﬂm 0 WM,Q%N mmWM%N Buiaeg Aouaoiyg pasodouy Hupn ssauisng 81B10302410] 43y
LLEL0E LioLeg Q18007
CLMAGE 0L 0480072
{pung jeisusn)
sjesodold sHuneg man
3 xipusddy AsBuen jo ybnosog uspuo




Page 89

BOLROLad

uo poedu IEusuy uomisosd

STUAISS TUBLIND [BPoUNEL O}
Em&&%g mvgmw& cm%w:mcoima 008

180440 Aoyjod sojuss!
0 oo 0} anp zedul paywT Ly

souewioped:
pue A1oAllap 80IAIBS BUN-JUOH UD:
yoedun fews e Ajuo BABY PINOYS Siy | 001

awweBod

Buaqiiem sy 10 sivadse uo pue.

SaLeIqy U ajdoad Japjo 0} saIAeS
Jo Emammn oy} uo #umaE_ sy ov

SOURIGH Ul 1] ' MOMIBN §,81doad 0}

pasu| saiffolouyoe) mau Ly >wx_n_mamo”
JUSLLISBAUL INO BONPBY M SIL v

" padoidasp aq i 3N 8seuisng.

AUy} JO seale SIS0 LM mc_ﬁoa,m
ulof Juesea Apuauno s)jsod v 64

Jejsues yers |ewsi ue Ag pajebgiw:

20 Jim AoAlap a0IAIBS SUIUOL.

uo oeduir sy Aresqgl jenusn

e jsod seBeuepy Aieiqry ayp Ofuf.

_Pauinsgns aq fiim senliqisuodsay o

..... “songisiodses
jeuoppe ajeiodiosu; 0y pajeness
-84 9 PasiAaL Bq im s1sod Joyo:

€ DA AJUBInD §11S0d J0jUss ¥ JZ

NSL puewiap 1o saubap:
peHwWy v " Aed 0 Aqe, o} paieeh
B4 [ pue 'Z1/1L0Z pue LEOLOZ

mun pesodoud Jou st asealou

1sepow Jayuny ‘'g//007 W sebieyo.
HAonod Bupud pameinal BuiaeH 06Z

ol

0oL 0 o
or. o0
0 Y vi
0 0 G

GZ1 GZi

|00YDS JO BIMONNSal Lo sBuneg !

(suopeBiaey:
8Jeo) sjuswebuele sbereyoig

sapusy 3 Buiyeig

twosAs!

Bupjooq uopeoyuam Kousnbaly

OIpeI JO 85N JO UOISUBIXT

‘sanlonssal;

yegs meEmhmEnm Apunwiwon
“sslyjoe)

MomBN §,81doad pue Aaajep:
82IAIBS YI0G Ui so1Bojouyos)
MU U] JUBLUISBALY J0) pasn

st yoym jabpng |t uj uononpay’

‘Hes Buiseyoing

'8 @dURUL4 BUIAOALL BINJONNSaY

"UONBULIOJ) /80UBI2J0Y
Aesqrt ul aInjoruisas buyers.

ao1nes Mgy

AT S

% LL/0L0Z S10k 2 45A0 Loelu)

S00IM9S D1feleng
2 mc._co.wmw,_EEoo_

sadineg oibeleng
% Buluorssituwoy

BIMING R SBUBAGHT:
‘Buiuies ynpy.

amyng g sauelqr]
‘Buiea ynpy

SIMHND @ soueig].
,mm_ﬁmwj_ Inpy:

2UMING P SSURIGHT:
‘Bupuses INpy:

SiNyNG g sauelgr:
‘Buiuies INpy

ainyng  saueigr
‘Buiuiea ynpy

DAOGR %67 - SBSBBIOU] B0l S80IAIES [euoiealony

BIINIDG a_cmEEoow
¥ 8nINng sYnpy

B0INBS »m:zEEoom
'8 2IMInG synpy

asineg bE:EEoo_
8 2Iming sinpy.

B0IMBS AYUNIILID) .
® Uming SHnpy

80IAIBS Alunwitlon
k) E:m:o..ﬂ_:uﬁ

B3IAI8S AYUnUILIOS .
? anmng skinpy

A0IAIRG bE:EEoO.
B 2MNG sHNpy .

8oInag bE:EEoo"
B 84 nD synpyy

avleg EE:EEoo_

54

£61

251

LGl

05l

12

B BIMIND SYNpy Il
« 000.3 000,3 000.3
anleg 9o1Al0g) 000,3 L0102 04/6007 60/800¢
BOUEULIO}I8d U0 oedi) 12101 1340 180 1BA0 Buneg Aouaoiyg pasodoiy Hupn ssauisng sjeIoaNg FEN
ZiLL0Z L 10102 0i/800z

3 xtpuaddy

CERLUE O 0178002
{pung jisusn)
sigsudoid sBuineg moy
AsbBulieH jo yBnolog uopuo




Page 90

uBIPIYY 1o} 8BuRYD 10y

S|QBHBAR S90IN0SEL OY) SIONPSI SIY ] Z9

Rousoye cmmmwbc_w
sapiosd - ey Huisseoold speadg £

S1UST 1509 BIEIOXBIP
B} UHPIM UOSINCID SROIAIGS

BEL

” UsUpIY Joy:
mmcmmo:_5_335_05&8“2%.

pue stons] Buyess jo Malnsy

sunoy oadojduws.
Areiodwal eonpas saypng
0} e adojaaug annboy

{30

SHOMBN.
S,UBIPIYD LOAD:

uohensiBoy {0128l
B OAINDEX T JaIyn:

SanAIeg o_mﬁm:.ww

o108 §,81doay :

BunoA 9 uampiyn

soIMBg

$,0MIN09X3 JOIYD

s0IAag Ayunwwio

sYaRY pey e BUIABS §,8[d08 4
UGN O} i .mmécmﬁaa% mcwm&xmm Jwoouy  safuueg R cm‘_vmgom Bunoi x uaipiyo ¥OL
: o980 . w 80IAI9g $,8jdoay.
00¢. kot suiebe sbupeg, yodsuel] N3S sagwe g UBIpIYD  Bunoi g uaipiiyp. £91
'BO0Z JBQUIBAON WO Si] mcSmEumm SaIN0S toqw:mbm 20IMDG S 8jdoay:
sjedionue am ‘Bunim jo swy sy wvETe 9 AT sabuessed jo UoHESHEWaXT  SBIIUB] R UBIPIUD: BunoA 8 uaipiiuy Z91
weib cEEEum m
pajgesip Jo) ybiy Bukuly suebe B0INSS §,9)doag
: SIS0 Mealq uoys, abieyn Buno g uaippyn L9l

pue sa11ddns JO asn JUBIOY BIOW 62T 06 PUE S}inpy) saojalag g selddng . ? Bulossjwwoy g ammp synpy: g5
‘eoueuLIOLad pue Apalgep : : m $S83IA18G u_mmum:mm aomag Ajunwio]y
BANIBS BUI-UOY U0 Jordw leWIIN ZLE x4} 69 $80Ies Joddns Jo juswubijesy - ® Buluosssituwos R AInng sinpy | 154
"souEULIONRd pue AJaagep adines : (1ebpng saoineg oifeleng BOINBG amm:EEoom
BUI-UOY U0 JoBdIl [BUHUI JO ON §9 Ge oc $J0J08l|(]) $801AI8gG 9 salddng % Builoissiuwony ' adnlng synpy 9GL
000.3 0060.3 000.3
{A1ennjaq @o10u0g) 000.3 L0102 01/6002 60/8002
BJULLIOLa UG 1eduy 12101 18A0 19A0 sno | DUAe Kousioy pasodosd | yjup sseussng ojeI0)931G 43y
TiLine L4I0L0T g1/6007
CLLL0C BLOLA00Z

{puny

feieuRn)

siescdoiy sBuineg men

3 xipuaddy AsBuged jo yBnozog uopuon



Page 91

Buinsixa Ag PaIaA0d S1 PRODIOM puR
WEDBA AJUSLIND §1 1S0d B2UIS [RLUILIN

BUUO Upm Bigeaaiyze sBuines
jund suonedgndg sebieyo oones
paseaiow Um ainssald soyjadiuco

aung ‘Malnal Bulels e yum Auaaiap
801A8s U0 suoljesldul sjgissod

yofiie] sip aAsiyoe.

01 piay Bueg sisod jueoea seak ped.
0] 80P ABAIIBD BOIAISS |0 SULIBL U 4SL
wrHpey G 13 BUNNLAUD (1S UM
DIELOIBIP B} SSOIDR BSEBITUL J0J0B)

Hes.

SOANBUIYE -

-Apiedos] ul spiepueis mE>cEE:
Sind "senuoud aniates uey) Joyiel
18U aq o} eAry siuswannbal Jueb
se AlaAep 921nas 10§ AJlIgIXa]) SSa|.
senib pue ‘Juswasoidwil j0oYDs 10}
B|QBIIBAR SI2INCSHL BY) SOINPAI S GL

e

G1

e

sigouag

BLHFUO JO UDBIUBWaICL
ay; wioy Buyinses

$1500 abejsod 1 sbuneg

wewdopaaQ:
2 HOdONG SSOLISNE Ssoide;
10308} A3uBsEA Ul DSBOIOUE

‘3Inponasad

HEIS isioBAUOD B Aliedold
slefipng

sway jeuonowoid pue yuud
SUOIIEDEGNG Wi swel Aousioye
JOULIN pUB 80IM8S 1| pue

| [BUUDSIad BYI UIYHM Uoelsued:
: swooul paseasol; (Buyes:
|BULIOSIBY Ul SDIDUBINYT:

sasiates Buonpad pue wesd

sy} Jo Aeuonippe ay) Buronpes

210J2I9Y} ‘UCISNOUL % SplEpUB)g

joouag ulisod pepuny

0 ¢ 2100 & 9og|dal 0] Buipun el

" (LOd s9]e0s);

$,0am3 8 sised 18)jEDadS:

SWOS 10} PABY 8Y) JO BLUOS

Buiseajad Agaleyl - seipwe).

218U pue uaipiyo poddns oy

fuoedes jeuomppe Bupiacid se

patediopue 8 sweal Aeuydiosip
W BY) JO RIBLLIYSHIRIST

uonexe]

B0

Wawdowaagg

3 poddng ssoursng

Juawdotanaq
% poddng ssauisng

wawdopaag
» yoddng ssausng

UoISNOU} ucmw
 sprepuBIS Sj0040S

UOISHou pue:
splepus}g sjooyds

|800™ B SlysuUsg.

$8UUN0SAY mumMOQ.MOO

a01Mag 8,8[doad

BunoA  usIpiYD’ 691
aoiAteg sajdosd
.bunoj g uaipiiyd B9

a%IAeg m.m_aomn_m
Buno A g usipiyn:

soineg sedoay

Bunoj g UBIPIYS 991
aonag s,8idoad
Buno A p usippud GOL

7 xipuaddy

{pun4 misusn)
siesodoid sBuAeg moN
AabBunetd jo ybnoiog vopuc

@ v 000.3 0603 000.3
aAlja( avlalag 0003 LIz GlL/6002 60/8002
sdueLIopa, uo Joedwy 1oL 13n0 1BA0 13A0 Buireg Aousioyy3 pasodold | Jun sseuisng 8jI01381iQ EEL ]
31102 1110107 418002
SLAL0E ML GLB00E




Page 92

BUON |

BUON 61

BUON G

BUON m

9z

C$poyns 01 Bul

St : dvsio

BY) 40 1800 fing

sy Buiaeo

LLOZ fudy § oy
HENY fBuEsu) Ag usByspun.
UBWSSAsse SIS Byl J0)

Breyo souswiwo)

"848pio aseysmd:
10 Buiews *B'o sBuires
aeroush yim 1ebpng sbejsod!
2SN JUSIOYS BIOW.
N %S
0] dn Ag s)abpng secmieg pue.

: . seyddng asueul4 sjesedio) e
g . jo uoponpas - Buaes Aousiay’
: _ $j009% o pebieysal:
Apleudoidde st 010001

8y} 18wy pascdoud:
s1 11 "ofieyo ejeudosdde!

81 J0U BB S{O0YDS

BLUCS PUB PIMBIASI US3G 8ABY
uonoe|oo yseo soj sebieyn’

{-eiemyos snsoslase)
Byl 4o} pig jeuden) 11Yssa0Ins:

g 0} 10algng) eiemyos;
antesiase Busn Ag ‘oyejpuen);
10150 yBnosyy peunouy:
Ausamg uongjuswnoop 119:
0] sjuatupuswe ¥ uoonposd:

pny
jacueu, s1iodiod:

Py
fooueu eiei0diod

ipny

jeoueul vesodio)

pny
/eouedl] alelodion

UCHEXE |

saounosay oprodio)!

$00.N059Y 8jeiodion

saninosay aelodio)!

$90in0say djesodio)

$80N0say eetedic)

Ll

9L

748

QUON OF 0z 0z ‘uBisap Jo $)s00 oy} Ui sBulres 12207 g sjysusg <l
: UMBIDGIM SOSUCLLNG
O JOGUINU L] SSHUILIL.
0} saunpeasoid seoines
| JBWoIsNy 8siAel g abels 1olues
: ©ue e esay) 19Anoal 0 (SR
20IMBG AH)IGeI] 3 SUCLILING USEMIBq): uopEXe |
By} 104 uonEIsuab SWOoU) PBsEIOU] 0§ 05 $1S09 UNoD Buipeojuoly. 2007 ¥} Sjeuag.  $90Mn0sey sjesodion: rAR!
e :
jeuonippy 1oaloid Aea00ai poassnooy; :
B UyBnoiy} Auouiny a3 03 awoou’ 1gop Buipuesino
Bi0W sajeIousb yoium ém>ouah plo 0 AIBACDSI S} UO SNO0Y :
atAedions jo asusudopad: 0} wes) Aaaoday juswiedisro UONBXE ] :
Uy peroadxs susiaacds oyl 0l o 1sie0ads g jo dn bungies 18007 9 SljBUSy:  $80IN0S8Y 8jelodion 1/L
(& 000.3 000.3 000.3
BABQ @MIAIR
aocmgm_tmm m‘@ ﬁwwﬁm Wowww WM.M%WN QWWM%N mm%w%m Huaeg Aouaoya pescdoid Hug ssauisng FyRI0JIRIg 434
Ziiioz Liieing JL/6002

3 xjpusddy

CLELOZ S OLB00T
{pund [eisuss)
gjesodoid sBulaeg mep

Aabuien jo yBnosog uepuoT




Page 93

BUON 0F
"BONPBI SRINDSD] 88
seBuoj axe) Kew 8100014 "$92IN0SHI-
Buye)s Jo {eAs] pasealoul ue aanbel:
SdO uiypm seianoe pue spefold’
aioud ybBiy Jo j9AB] JUBLIND 8Y L 00T

SUON 04

BUON §1.

- sBuipiing

[BUOIIPPE pue SJUawals ey wed
BAXS JO UOippe Bumoljo) pasealoul
10BAJU0D BY} WO} 8{EDS JO SBILIOUCIT 6L
0

IR
fenden uo weyey soddns!

ajeus-a WO $91Bgal 1IBIE:
1w yowm Bunpuey ssaoosd peacidu 9Z

“MBIABI LA B} Buunp payjuenb g
0} Joedwy [eNoY "paiojdep ole yeis
soueul a1RI0dion 18ma) §i BoIes

of

002

0c

ir4

oyoipod Buipiing saensLyupE:

&l way 83800 ABisus peonpay

Ayadoly:

"$9IIMBS
pajejal Buiping Buoddns
sjaAs] Buels u uononpas:

o : yBnouy sbuines sayund .

Auadoid

‘Buideyssas ay} BUIMO||O}

§88204d anjeASILILPY JO
| mamel e pue safueyn |einioniis

08 - seyuny woy Bupinsal sBuiaes

: swayos Bupped Jeo
g - HElS WOl 2Wodu 99) [BUOBPRY

200z deg upyoenuoD

SHIOM SOURUIBHREELL 3Al0B2

5 pauuerd sy jo Bupiel sy
BLIMG]IO} SBITUDIDIS [BUOHIPPY

sisiiddns ypm abiueysialu)
WBLINI0D 2IU0J}0813

‘mainsl W-4A pasodosd oy Buoje
pPBIBpISU0d 8g 0] NS SiJ

Aodolg

Auadold

swainlold

Hpny:

191 gns

$HUN0SaY 3yei0dion

$00in0say alriodion

S80IN0SaY 91zu0dio]

sa2in0say sruodion

SOMIN0SSY 81R10d100):

s93In0say 8jei0dio)

7412

£81

8k

184

BL1

73 Xipuaddy

ipund pisuso)
spesodoid sbuneg mon
AaBuuets jo ybnosog uopuo

U Joedilil SigBjIASUT Ue S) 01841 §1 Gl ‘aaueU 4 812104107 O MOIASY.  jeouellf ateiodion)y  seainosey ajelodio) 8/t
000.3 000.3 000.3
{A1enjaq a1Aleg) 000.3 LLI0LOZ 01/600Z 60/8002
’ ’ * Ines Aouai asodo
asuBtlIopad Lo eduy {2301 ABAO FET N iBA0 Buineg Aouaiousg p 1d Hup sssuisng 21e103094Id 434
ZHILOE LLi0L0% 0416002
TG SThLehe




Page 94

S48 Yiog Lo pedu Mo eopuss

paleys e Ojul SNO0J JBLICISND pue
$$9908 W SUOGoun} dU) JO uoReoHdnp
-ap auy Jo ynses & se sBuines ovi

8,094 108uco
MBU EIA POABIUJE S| S| "DUON 0L L

aouewouad
uy aseaioul ue sredionuy 02

aoueuniopad uo peduw jeanap Wcm
. T sseuNnis:
PoONpal JO YNSRI B S8 asuewiopad:

Ul 9sessous ue sjedionuy g

‘asuewopad pue AIBAIBP 80IMSS
aulFuoL uo Joeduwl [BULHUIW 0 ON

uonesiuebio

DY 0} JUSWIHLLLOD 185U0AS B UM
uogaesies qof Jeysa pue uosivedns:
J8so0}o epiaoid ‘edpaes Bujuesid ino:
uIyIm pasuspadxe AQuaung spasp
ssauyoIs Jood Buissalppe .mommoou
ay) pug ye)s Buues|o 1o} syyeueq.

<9

05

BY] DAOGE SSOLNDIS U] UORONPaY

mmu_zmmw
JOLUOISN]) puE S1{ LiUpm:
suopoum poddns jo E.@mi.m

(opim __uc:ouv”
uononpsi abileyd |ejus sidqow’

(uogesiwndo

ssa00id) s 181y WHi
{semueoea jo Wswvoeides

uou) Adusioyle |B1susg)

i oM pue

Buo sieah Ul sBuiaes paaibe-aud

'siead Jsieo Ul 8SoY) G}
uoppe ui sBuaes Lue) Jebuoy

0 Asniep ay) ejele) Him
sas1/uss [BH8) Jo maiasl Asuow
10} anjea oibalens Walnd sy

(JUBWBLINDSI JUSLISOAUI JBWS
0} panjuy) vones Buues|

e

$9INIBG JBUWIOISND

SEMINBS IBLUOISND)

saoneg [Bba
L EelLgns

$901n088Y 9)r10dio)

$92N089Yy 31e10dI0)

sa0N0saY 8yelodioD

seninosay swlodion

s80in0say aelodion

06k

68t

3 xipuaddy

stesodald sBuineg maN
AoBuuen jo ubnosog vopuon

weapubls aney m yoeoadde Siy on . ow 0 BOUO BU3 JO UONESILIBPOW Auedold:  seonosey cho&oom a8l
Bi(isea) 89 pinoys sy ng mco_Swa
1§} aleudoidde jo juowdoBasp:
oy} sadinbal j| ‘sieW0SND: 119 Auadoiy ussmiag ysapdiay
0} SOIAI3S JO 19A8] DIACICWI IO BWES. . paieys e jo wawdopasp
ay} apirodd pInoys Uoinos sy 06 0% oY) wody AoUBIDIe [Bnusiod Auadoid’  sesnosay slelodion: Gyl
000.3 0003 000.3
(Arantjaq ao1niag) 000.3 LL/0102 0L/e00t 60/8002
souBULOLIAg UG 10edu 101 1oAG o or0 Buineg Aauoaiyg pasodoid jun ssauisng syeloj0aliq 494
Ziiiee Liniog 04/8002
ELI0E O BLBO0L
{pund isUsn)




Page 95

“waropd
pounety woddns pue saanoeiao
ued sesuisnyg JonEmp o Appae

HIO BONPAY [|IM BUB SBIDUBDUNDA)
Ul ynsal Aewu syt ‘(apeib

uo uepusdap) sasod Bugsiep Ag
1o aq [ sBuiaes Aue 2171102 Ag

wea] Aaod 8 mm:mmmotmaw swwo) ¢ diysisuped!

UM SjeAS] Buiels JO MBIney | Ao 9 edUeLopad soueULIOpad AoHod. 861

MBIAD] BOIAIBS

adeys pue woddns m (ssquiswy
Joo0) si8sN 80Asas o Juswabebug : ”
pue Buppelousg "Mmalal oy o ted m m uswdoeasac
se syuewalinbal Aloinieys sy Bupsaw . m Aoeioowag jeuonesiueBio
auiAIeg uo paoed ag |IMm AJHOU 18007 $0Qd w.maow&
¥ S &

: . wewdopaag

pOIBY0 SADIAIeS ; : sSuoionpa: wswdoeas(] jeuonesiuebip
pue ‘els st ‘eojaies ay) Jo Buidoosal £ £Z : ~ ®9wies pue sdeysal a0neg fevogesiuebio .. Bedoed 6l

St b hanhdbiin L R O : T EMERSE AT | iewdoarsg T
. reawdosaag jeuonesiueBi
uoisinoid Buiutes} Ut UooNpal G st T | SUOIINPaI BJINOY el . ®odosd g6

wawdopass

UOHEPOUILLIODOE ; pswdoenad] jeuonesiuelbip

oUnod J0 uoneycdxs eeg L ¥ . a4y anush fuinelp jeuopesuebiQ: g odoad

g
: apelolalld s Jo

AaNjop aonies ; . @joym oy} ssooe pusds Aiees wswdojarsg

uo edull ap)y eAry o} pajoedxe : ~U0OU JO UOHESHEUONE] WOl feuonesiueBin
puads Alejes uou JO UOIESIRUCHEY [ Z G punoy aq o] SBUAES 10]0841(].  S8DIN0SVY UBWNY » oidoad ¥6L

sielo ulm diysieuped u :

: Yom — Aigalep [ejuswdo@asp: juswdoaag

BOIAIOS (JO/HHM JO SULIB) UF BAIB09 [|IM % AIOSIADE 10} |9pOW : jeuonesiuebic
siebeurw poddns jo @A) Uo Joedwt 19 ‘L0 ” BOINISS GO/HH MOINBI IBYHNY.  $8DIN0S8Y UBWNH 9 aidoad €61

" 000.3 000.3 000.4
dAlla(] aNALS
mocméhhtmm c.c ﬁwwmz MMMW w”wanmm ¢”Mw%~ mmﬁﬁ& fiuiaeg Aausioya pesodoig U ssausng sjes0aNg 49y
ZHLLDE LiioLee 036002
S0 BLOLB00E

{pund jpisuso)
siesodold sBUIAES MOp
3 xppuaddy AsBurep jo ubnosog uopuoT



Page 96

"SI
Jeis wes) ay) poddns o} Ayoeden
ayy sonpal jum sy ‘Buipun; [euexe

pedwy ON

1oedun ON 0§
UOIBISHES
JBLICISNS paacidul] 'Slel [ESTaL
paonpes ‘aouruiioped Buissanold’
uopeoydde panordwy "sedinosal

Bunsixa uiyum pebeuewl 8q 01 .04

Bt i bl e ondesiies

Jawoisno paacsdu ‘sl |esnjal
pasnpel ‘sousuouad Buisseoosd
uopeoydde paacidw) -sadinosal

Bunsixe wiynm pabeusw 8q o 0F
‘poueIueL
8 0] paau v Aenb ybnowe

‘gousuLIoNad Lo PpBAW SNOINGO ON 0F

yedun sanebou e aagy jou E:osmm
AD8iB11S SUDIIBDIUNWILIOD U UlMm atH|;
ui paBeuew fonjoeye ji ‘suoyeoyqnd:

[EUOMIPPE DINJBS JOU OD OM 41:0€

0

0t

ol

GZ

jeuwIoo 1BUebe 1500 Jeis

wefoid o) vomppe ul poddns:

Butuue|d 30 sebiow Buipuadu

52 o wioy sbupes fouioy

Gi S99} NG PRSESIU]

sog; Buuued

”ov ” uogeondde ol peseaiouy|

(jewssxg pue WL YIoq:

Jemppuadxe eba| peonpey

uolipiaustay onuouns gy
pue Buuue)g jo Jeblew
ag : woy Bugnsal sepuayd!
: C T lsyy 10) pig oM e $83Unos:
Bulpunj mau 0} SISOT 84O

BuiBieys 1o wesy ayy Buonpal

Joype ‘owiwesboid Juolmno

ay jo ucpedwion ay) sope weay.

uoneseusbed EISAYd MBINDY

Bupuing:

uonelausbay pue:

ucnessuabay:
DIWOUCHT

uoneiauabay

uosieiousboy
QHUOUODT
T —"

wswdopaag
.3 folod “Buniueld

Jaludotanscl:
» Koo ‘Buiug|d.

Wewdojsas(]
B Ao ‘Buiuueld’

wawdopaag
9 Aoijog ‘Buiuue;d
P

sBunes

[euonippe 1o 10bBiet Z1/1 102
ay] Jeaw 0} Japio ul pamdeo!
(] 0] POBU JHM "BDUSBOXT:
Beuaailoy uigum 1abiey

B} BA0GE DUR IBAC ‘MaInal

UCUOST

JUSLIUOKALT UBgIn):

JuBLIUOAAUT UBgIN

JUSWILIOIALT UBgin)’

JUBLIUGHAUT UBGIN

JUSIILIDIAUT e

SLUWOD R diysiauned

JUSLILOAUT UBGI

yoe

JIBWILOHAUT UBGIY-

L0Z

902

£0e

20z

3 xipuaddy

{pung jRisusg)
sfesodold sBuneg man
AabBuuett jo ybnosog uopunt

HOUnoD Jo Jaguwnu oy Busnpay 0g o5 W4A aut wok Buisue sBumeg UOHBOWINWWOD): SouBULIOHEd ADiO4 00z
o 000.3 000.3 0003
9Alj9(Q 90lAleg) 0003 11/0L02 0416002 60/800¢
soupuLIOpag U0 10edi 101 oA 90 190 Buiaeg Aouoioiq pesodoid Jiun ssauisng 21R10}204I] 434
ZH1L0Z 1170102 0116002
2Lt LuE O3 DL/BLGT



Page 97

Kiontep.
20IAJBS U0 JoBdUN OU 5 PINCUS a4aY ||
“SBHIN 0} POBIBYD MOU S| HIOM SIYL
‘saiedwon AN 0] SI8PIG DR ]
apinaid o] posn sem 1oBpng syl 0§
-aoinias buyohoal uejeainbe pue
SARBLUIBYE UE SAIRDS [jIM SIUspISE
se souBulopad uo eduw ON ¥
“Buipuny
|ewiamxe Ag paoejdal ag m Buipuny
weansuiew Bulsixe se Awaep
23S /e0UBWIoNSd U JPedwl ON €T
R T
fenptsad dn yoid fjim poddng
SS3UISN( §14 PUR PBLBjsUR] 8!
0} popeadxe se 1sod Japun pafieuew
HEIS [IDUNOD Y} AED| 0] UO0S!
PUE JUSLLPUODSS U S IOPIOLISO 1G9

08

L 74

€z

sBuines wmmczm“
1BpIg Juswsbeue yped |

sBuines:

aoues BulpAlal s91EIS T
ot i “Siuene Jofel
seye dn Buues jo steswebio!
WO J$00 19A0081 O} i UL ¥

‘woddng:
JUBWISDIOIUT] UM alnjoniisey!

UONEPOILICDOR

S9DIAISS BUHILOIY

SE0IISS SUIUOL

SO0IMSG SUIRUOIS

SBDIAIBS BUHUOI 4

JUSWILIOMALT] Ueain

WSLUUOIAUT UBQN:

JUSLULONAUT UBQHN):

€id

A%

e

: Aserodwiey u) szequinu; SOUAIBG

“Iley uopepowoaae Aelodws) 0 uoyonpad pauue|d Bumogoyl  BuisnoH Apunwwor):
Ul srequinu se pafieueil 5q [IM 66 66 5150d JO JaguInu JO MaIneY » oifotess: JUBLHIOHAUT UBQIN} 602

_ T " “Ajgjerodion papinoid: m

B suoyoun; 16y samjoe 4

: 2 1504 Hod 01 @sH xady woy Sa0IAleg

: saoinles BuisnoH jo uonesoal. Buisnoy Ajununuo D
Aioaap s0mias Uo joeduwl oN 99 g9 ‘0 woyj Buaes pejewnsy’ © 01bsjeng JUSWILONAUT UEgIN 802

y u 000.3 000.3 000.3
J3Ala(] 20IALD 3
vumm&%tmm ue ﬁM&E“ M%Mw wwmu“% ‘ 2..“%%% ‘ mwww% ’ Buines fouaroyyz pesodold Hun ssauisng eioRg 434
ZLL 0T L0107 0176007
ZELGE 01 OL/B0L
{pun4 Eouen)
siesodoid sBulaes meN
3 xipusddy AaBulie 10 uBnologg uopunT




Page 98

‘paonedal are SPIBIOY 81 JO |je usym
£L/ZL0Z Ag paraoe ag Ajuo jim
%/67F Jo sBuines Jeak-in; ‘81800 gooz

spJgjjoq passmaod

1B{0S Ul SPUBIoq peleusuniy.

49q0Ja0 uo peseqy Bumes ABlauy £¢ ol 0 | Jo Wawaoeiday ‘anes 03 pusdg:  S80IMSS DUNUOIH.  IUSLUILOIAUT ueqin: 917
: B ucm.m_.m..um : . == ST VR i <.
Bupied aiaym suoneso] 12 uoisinoid|
Bunjzed Aejs poys spnosd o}
‘saunssald Bupped o) snp spuspisel
~UOU U3M JOIU0D Ul B1e S)uapisal; ueld.
asaym sease Ul Juswabeuew! Bupied aui ybnouy pejeloush’
Bupiied jepeq ainsua jm sty S oSt 0GL Gii 9¢ 0] WO JBUSIHPPY SANIAISS BUHIUDI ! WURLIUOAAUT UBQIn GiL7
it Zaminie o e Il AR vt L m o o
Jo Buueys pue senmqisuodsal’
pue 8101 4o Wawubies: ybnouy.
paAsiyoe aq M sk 24 pajedopue
S1 ]} ‘S80S By jo 1ebiaw
8y} 30 Wby w aumoruys poddns sy
Bumeinal osje s) seaneg BUILOI
PUE JUSWIIONAULT Uequn) Ul AeMuapun :
51 MBIADY ADUBIDYT 8OO yoBg W 9F 0 0 9¢ sBuines Aousioiyo aomyo yoeg SOUAIDG BUINUOLY:  JUBLIUOIAUT LB, ¥iz
“ 0003 000.7 06063
Al 82IAI9
39U hmtw_ d m.o Ewwé MMM.W WWHMN owpm,.,o%w mm%w%m Buineg Aouatoig pasodoiy 3Un ssauisng 91mI0308HQ FEN)
ELLL0T 1iokog 01/6002
SHLL0E G OL/Bnie
{pung misuan)
sjesodoid sBuineg map
3 xpusddy fobBuuer jo yBnosog uopuo™




C L 10T J0) pOULINSSE Ut g BABY SaN8S; Honesieucsiad UM ¢

N 958 Y GO/RGNE Hitl SEBhinG idid Ui ofus3 0u seuinsde jepil 8y 2 . . . L N -
aemueyl ¢ . ) . SO

214102 10) PoUIRSSE Lasy arel 976 B4 717 © plie Senissar u

188, feiuBy| S o1 O Leys sy Blimoys BUNP B} U) BPBLU Bie 6 Gluysnipg el “ssvquini ydnd pelELsSS uo paseq e 50/5007 104

‘asearou; abejusoray

....m.m e . mm

Sra'ple'gal SETEVEGPL ] o ) ) . . BO/IB00Z 984 3agEIIPU)
e Wi ey 000'y9e : ; y . _ . . .88 9 gg) voy woxy Jeysursy
SI9USS T ahizee sewsery . . . S8DInasEY uf aseainy|
000'266'65L  £9Z'ES0%6L isseveiovi

. 60-800Z 95
K wing

82L°¢e0'e

311595 659'857'S ) :59Z°C55'9 '8G2°Z19 900126 o SLOISS Ghbess ‘96V'GEE'Y | s : uswWesnbay 19BpRg/OG] frUCIpPY

a00'0L

gooos
S9T'yi9'e

Page 99

9.120'9

co0'ns

Clomor o g moor 000 oopor L _ A _ =4 51 0 (3401 G on : :
S L even Lm0 eerziv woesatt T iessses  ghoor LI S N . PUBIENS BUpU 3 Wniticiy o) Yjdn pue Logey

g wENSS L ewnws ewels s oseuss awes e | ss T ko sebuegiatpng

8619201 Cmgeos T T Big'ens

wooipeap

SO oo aisson e g i

0
) suonebajaq map

...... " |D0y0g Sesop e Sh0Rg Wiy o) SIGEINQUIE $1500 podsusi |

0009
Cnegos 000'0L o ) T ool swawsoed ubnoiog Jng ; Juspiadapu; o 2EINAURE GOReHLN paseaiily
e B C P Q0p'geL . : : “SJUBIBSE spaaN ieroeds Juspliadapiy Bnoiog 100 jo siaguing pesewiou]
0o0'gE L oeozan O T . T . sisoD BInuL0 4/Builiad(y foousg man
; : : SIUBWISOAU] BNUDASY MaN

o

.000'0¥8' L lneoon ‘Boooes " gogisE 0001 {G00°068 e 7 Builisea| pasfiétiossad 10U Bupung féseliies 0] satinosh; paseassi]

DI SU §6 [3Az) BUj] 9A0qe Ubeyl] pojkiunsg

959'LE1°81 L

910'820's

891296'02  @8v'6LLUSE . SE ORRI0LZLL VB ATOErReeare . 6% S19'%IC'S91 7S LE0'BL  BOBERECH] ge =z o 483X 104 ©5q sAgEIpY|

SieResy T oeseure ey 6w L L Lo T eriiseg
..000°186 ool 000'058 o890 , . . mr%caumﬁmgmwﬁmécbcmmm_Emmzmu.ﬁ.ﬂmmcow&n
: 28q uj aseaicy)

esrase T T oeeei

L BPESIES o
| LGodts o loogtss)

000'i66'6SL  ozese’sr  feseveovh L B 980 eurd Jeas o1y
3o 0BELEE Sz : G/8002 104 s10quiny iing 2l 104 Juauashipy

088'L01°Z1L

LPOvE0z  SSTYORISL . §i97ice9l  zerhider  Tireimen: .. 969909 eag'iosE  eroseerer . . ¢ o . o8apeucday ey sopig

3
oL

weig sicousgpatearpsg 7 yidn B ${0040§ pajeoipay Cyndn WL Sj0oyog paesipeg Cundn ) - : " siskieuy 108png soming s.usipiiiy

O T - S _ L3 L3 L% seoN ) _ B _ _
g5t uoy ask : o fEi0g g51 YoN a8k . P Mol gguoy L PB0°ZE siequinyy dng

[42187%:r okoz “oLis002

TP o o .. VLibioz o . D N . " oLE00F

L4 Xipusddy E1-110Z 0% 60-3002 JURID SIOOYDE paiesipag BABEDIDU)




Page 100

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 101

Appendix F2
FINANCIAL PLANNING 2009/10

Haringey Schools Forum - Budget Consultation

That the estimated eﬁ'ec'fof'b% po eci 9~ OIfb'rniL“jEé' éh'énge“s 'cUrrentEy being |
consulted on (£0.2 -£0.4m) be noted as a call against available headroom.

2 | That the additional requirement for pre- opening costs (at Heartlands high
School) of £0.4m be referred back to officers with a view to a significant
reduction. The amended recommendation was agreed and it was further noted
that the Cabinet's ultimate decision would be reported back to the Schools
Forum once made. Subsequently a revised proposal amounting to £122,000
has been submitted and it is this revised sum that is reflected in this
report,

3 | That funding for inflationary pressures within Central Expenditure items of £0.5m
be agreed.

4 That funding to meet the increased costs of SEN placements of £0.2m be
agreed.

5 | That the transfer of resources to the ISB in recognition of new autism places at
Moselle School (£0.3m) be agreed together with the associated transport costs
(£0.1m) being a charge against DSG.

6 | That the proposed devolution of resources to schools as part of the Keys to
Wellbeing project be noted.




Page 102

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 103

AT

ZL/1107

LL/0L0Z

40/8002

{rza’e) e19w) i(5tes) {92575} . fszes) - (ssz's) fleees) |, 9oupieg Buiso[s pauupyg
68/ Z0e"s logg] 668 T igs] s SeDUDIDG JO 557 IDB U]
(£19v) (514%) {oz55) . {52475) (5525} {vely) {oss'p) 8ounjng vy Buady pauunyy
48 zoE'1 (sgg) §48 {0z9) {eg1) {1£5) {zg5) INAODOV INNIATY ONISAOH 19101
09£°E01 8447101 48976 LIEF6 42868 ST0Y v0a'5g ¥08's8 SUNOI DY PIUINIDY D01
LTy |rerer LEg' Lt Ve 45T 1y 45571 08988 06548 . B84 flewsBoun OINTY
i L 17 ) v 01 JIE e SUBIEIAId j80 oy
gELE 8807 lesoe L66°1 swet desel B4F7 BEF'T 51500 Apadalg isuio
zEE'LS 19295 o J00ES 408 6Y Loy 0557 685'EF jes5Er saBioyD) Bupuoliy jopdo sy
Lore 45 ¥Zg Em 8 Cjeoe 808 BIUDUBLUIOW B SIDGSY
...... CLEE T soze 9zl v sdle GILE 54507 Bussioy papoddng
LTS ¥gel SYSt 0571 e ey _ ‘9g Seyl |58y 51500 1080 juswebouny Gusnoy
1567 {ygy) (5zs7) l809°7) e {92577} g5y (1£4r) (126! SUWODU| UOREPOWIIODDY Albiodius]
(izsz01)  Tyegz) (241'001) 92Z'46) (ess'ce) (7183 (481°04) {ss1y) (1pg'9a] (iye'eg) $iUN033y paboupy [Bjo]
6 ¥iT 8/5°8 v §9l'g ‘661 9947/ 88/ 8IVL 841 _Sis0D ebioyD) eomiag
ose'l 0% 0ce’ L : 0021 I a5 ool o0l UOISIADI g8 pog
987 ? 87 ¥4 gle 5 017 0lg SOUDUSRIRW $ sindoay
80y 6584 béys 2187 Pey. vegy EC4: P SISeD puswisBousyy Blisnon
{1v5g) lEir's) £17 {2975 (z9's) SOOI SR0BLD|BTHN
...... osoon) {grg'el iese'1) {5968} leacs] 2Wooul 8510y BOIABS JUDUD|
{0657F) [ssgv a7} fogsr) eyl aliooy) aBloyo BOINDS PIOYSIDD)
lvz9L) 091) {18091} {taoot) ARISGNG i
. lo1zzl {8; fleerzl lezve) SpUSY Buyiema Lo
loec'ca) {£65°5) H{zanvi ros'y9) {r0s'r9) BLUODU DB
9 0 0 9 S[UR0D5Y AUBAWOD [515]
56479 0908 LBl 1899/ amIodion
Ve . qoos 68 vt 88 uBwsBDUDY jessy
sezol e 9084 Herol 5663 s901M DS BUPling
FHE VT 4144 CE0TT #1571 _i5epor “eououy
695°¢ 98e’e LEE'E 195 LA 1 A  juslueaoidil) sseusng
ereiil £55°01 867 o1 Emgmmocoé Bu mnOI
UL 1ose T @>_5u¢xm *mEU
68 45) A e lroses) SLODU] AUndLo
AIDLULUNG WH

0 YigNaddy

PLIEL0Z OL 01/600Z ADILVHLS IVIONVNIA WH3L WNIGEN - INNODDVY INNIATY ONISNOH




HOWUJISING REVENUE ACCOUNT

Page 104

« MEZEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2009/10 TO 2013/14

APPENDIX G

HRA Summary - Bud et Variations
Managed and Retained Budgets
2009/10 ' 2010/11 . 2011/12 . 2012113 2013/14
ch . over ' over | over . over over
ange 12008/03  2009/10 ° 2010/11 ' 2011/12 : 2012/13
£000s : £000s £000s £000s £000s
Rentlnerease 4361 4307 3736 3914 4009
Service Charges o 949 Lo 0o Y
Budget Pressures in 2008109 T 406 0 0 e g
ALMO Management Fee e o 1569 1313 o12800 1132 908
Cap:ial Financing Charges 20580 3, 180° 3,678 37400 606
Inflation 177 LS SR 12 L1z
Increase In Bad Debis F’rows:on 80 600 60 B0 80
Hous:ng Stock Reductlon 175! 185 195: 204 214
Subsidy e -160 627 285 457 1,786
Total Variations Managed and Retained -133! 1,069 -788 1,692 ~513
Company Budgets e R N
MNew Investment 1771 281 . -344. 100 -183
New Efficiencies -1,083. 0. -2,000 o o
Existing Efficiencies ~109. o o 0 0
Budget Pressures in 2008/09 0., D L 0 .0
Inflation 9900 1,031 1064 1,032, 1,061
ALMO Management Fee 1569 13127 12800 432 lags
Total Variations Company Y 0 0 0 0
Variations - All HRA o e e N
Rent Increase 4361 -4307 3736 3914 -4,099
Service Charges "549. Lo 0 0 0
Capital Financing Charges 2,550 3,180 3678 3740 608
frfiation . 1166 1,043 1076 1,044 1.072
Increase In Bad Debits Provision 60 60 80 B0 60
Contingency change 9 o . O .0 .. O
Housing Stock Reduction _ Ars ?85__ 195 204 214
Subsidy -160 .82 285. 457 1,786
New Investment " 177 281, s344 1000 153
New Efficiencies -1,683, 20 2000 o .0
Budget Pressures in 2008/0§ 406, L0 o o
Existing Efficiencies -108 (¢} o} 0 0
Total Variations AH HRA -133: 1,069 -788 1,692 -513




Page 105

APPENDIX G
HOULRSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

~ MEZ DIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2009/10 TO 2013/14

:_I-_!RA &_Qw Inygstment and Efficiencies

2009/10 © 2010/11 : 2011/12 * 2012/13 ' 2013/14
. over = over over | aver over

£ 2008/09  2009/10  2010/11 - 201112 - 201213
£000s . £000s = £000s = £000s . £000s

Change

Meet best practice sfandards for control of bacteria in water

Systems ... 80 G o0 _-80
“To establish an inspection regime for road and footpath N k :

rmaintenance o . L300 0 0 . 0 .0
Review career development for Surveyors T 0 0 C )
Roview admin support activities B T o . 0. 0 Y
Develop Resident Assoc. Project Grants - S L L0 0 .0
Central Ventiiation maintenance ' L 0 300 250 0 0
L ighting inspection test and maintenance ' 2000 0 0 0 0
Progress with Fire Risk Assessments and carry out

required improvements/ routine maintenarnce. _ 250 G 0 0 G
Procurement of & contract 1o survey, contain of Femove. :

BOSIOS S L o . 0. 0 Y
Signing sheets for cleaning records 10 10 0 G 0
Customer Service Excellence Awarg 37 -30 -7 0 7
Training & Deveiopment of Residents for Board ;

Membership B I R 0 . 0o oo
Lightning protection maintenance - o 0 30 90 R
L.etting of Gas Maintenance Contract N . 0 ] 0 100 -100
Assist the business t6 develop and embed the information :

management strategy e 0 8 0o o

Maintain accreditation under 1SE8001 with BS| anid review
the Quality Management systems to ensure that they

reamain fit for purpese according to BSI standards. Extend
B8t accreditation to the Feedback Team and the Repairs

Client by end of quarter 2, e 20 0o 0
Engage and inform staff in preparation for Audit ' ' :

Commission re-inspection {3- stars!) in 2010, 10 e G .6 o0
Staff events to help build relanonsths and break down mter ' :

departmental barriers .20 0 0 o
Produce printed annual report for all stakekolders i by ' i : :

August 2009. s oo 0 0
Renew door entry maintenance contract ) o 20 L2000 0 [¢]
Vehicle re—mdexmg costs (vehicies not prevmusly charged N '

(o ESOs) S S 0.0 o 0
Accord contractual inflation ' 4. 0 0 0’ 0

To complete annual safety checks for worklodges and

stores and implement foliow up actions " 4 0 0 0 0
Additional Support costs for parking o 8 o o 0 .o
Maintain investors In Peopie ) ) 9: -9 0 0 0
Additional HR Support (2 additional staff) 7B 0 o 0 0
Ensure compliance with Construction (Design

Management) regutations 50 0 0 0 0
Devslop youth engagement project & recruit more young ) :

people w30 e 0 6. .0
Project Manage the preparation and inspection for Audit ' '
Commissioninspection 22 A0 12 R
Additional ! Accomodation - Ashiey Rd Unavoadatii 30 G 0 o G
Increased Waste Costs ~— ~ 7T 160 0 ¢ 0. 0
Implement programme of window inspections and repairs 200 Q 0 0 0
Link 12 new [#fts on BWF by phone to concierges, |ift :

engineers etc in accardance with current legistation L. B G- 0: e G
Mobile estate monitoring working o 8 0 0 0 0
Specialist Resident Estate Monftors " - B O T
Audit Commission inspection T s g gl o ..o
Cleaning in Supported Housing P Lol 128 o 0 .0 .0
Additional Income Coliection Support Costs ' 20 0 0 0 0

Total New Investment _ 1,774 _ 281. -344 100 ~153




Page 106

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

- MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2009/10 TO 2013/14

APPENDIX G

HRA New Investment and Efficiencies

HRA Summary - New Investment Service : :
£ 2009/10 | 2010/11 | 2011/12 2012113 2013/14
over over over | over over
Change
2008/09 200910 2010111 2011112 201213
£000s = £000s = £000s . £000s  £000s
Best Value and Projects Team - 1 FTE 84, 0 -84 o 7
Business Support Q&L R 0. 0 .0
Communications Team 45 B TS L. S
Design and Engineering Team 280 .. 310 -250. 100 -160
Estate Services - 171 -19 o 0 0
| Governance Team. do 0 c 0 .0
Income Collection 20 0 o 0 0
Peopie Management Team - 2 FTE .84 -9 0 0 .0
Repairs Client Team 1,030 0 G 0 0
Resident Involvement 40 -20 16 0 .8
Tenancy Management 5 O c 0 O
“Total New Investment 1,771 281 -344 100 -153
HRA Summary - New Efficiencies
. 2009/10 | 2010/11 201112 2012113 2013/14
Change . over  over | over over over
9 - 2008/09 | 2009/10 2010/11 . 2011/12 2012/13
. £Q00s @ £000s @ £000s £000s = £000s
Gas maintenance Contract - 1083 G 0 g .0
Further Efficiencies o] 0 -2,000 0! 0
Total New Efficiencies - -1,083 0 -2,000 0 0




Page 107

Appendix H

Capital Programme Forecast 2009/10 to 2011/12

Bids For Corporate Resources Funding

1 Capital Expenditure Forecast 2009/10 2010/MM1 2011/12 Total
£:000 £600 £900 £000

Directorate Capital Bids (Recommended To Accept)

Urban Environment (including Housing General Fund) 8,416 2,480 2,380 13,276
Adults, Culture and Community Services 3,401 2,517 1,735 7.653
Corporate Resources 2635 2,725 1,910 7,270
Children & Young People 0 0 2,080 2,080
Sub-total 14,452 7,722 8,105 30,279
Housing Services (HRA) 1,085 150 150 1,385
Sub-total 1,085 150 150 1,385
Total Accepted Capital Bids (Fully & Partiy) 15,5837 7,872 8,255 31,664
Financing

Forecast Use Of Corporate Resources 15,537 7,872 8,255 31,664

15,537 7,872 8,255 31,664

A Total Accepted Bids (Fully & Partly} .~ | 18,537 . 7,872 . -8.255 31664
Total Rejected Bids 1,330 4,505 4,370 10,208
Total Capital Bids 16,867 12,377 12,625 41,869

2 Corporate Funding Resources 2009/10 201011 2011/12 Totaf

£000 £'000 £:000 £'000

i Estimated capital receipts received in year:

General Fund Receipts (5,335} (470) 0 {5,805)
Additional HRA Receipts (2,280) (3,600) 0 (5,880}
Special Receipts (earmarked) {985) 0 {2,600) (3,585)
Strategic Sites (prudent view) 0 (2,200) (6,500} (8,700)
Right To Buy Usahble (500} (750} (1,000}  {2,250)
Sub-total (9,100) (7,020} (10,100} {26,220}

it Other Corporate Resources:
Children's Personal Social Services SCE® ~ (100} {100) 0 {200)
Contribution from Capital Finance Reserve (2,800) 0 0 {2,600)
Contribution from Insurance Reserve (3,000) 0 0 {3,000}
Sub-total {5,700) (100) 0 (5,800}
Total Corporate Resources (i+ii) (14,860} (7,120) {10,100} {32,020)
“Rounted Provisionai Farmula Grant Settlemant in Nov 08 {to be confirmed Jan 9}

B Total estimated resources available (i+ii) {14,800} {7,120) (10,100} (32,020}

3 Appilication of Resources to Bids 2009/1¢ 201011 201112 Total

£1000 £000 £000 £000

Brought-forward resources (surplus)/deficit 737 1,489

B Total estimated resources {14,800) {7.120) {10,100) (32,020}

A Total proposed expenditure 15,537 7,872 8,255 31,664
In year {surplus)/deficit 737 752 {1,845) (356)
Carry-forward resources (surplus)/deficit 737 1,488 (356)

Cabinet 26 Jan 09 appx H capitalxls/Summary



Page 108

P8 52 ienden 1 xdde g uep gz @ugeD
ESELED0ZI LIET

H Yipusddy

Buipun y sesinosey 8ips0diog 104 sprg jenden

EH/LLOZ O 0176002 81804 B1ougUly

{sacunosay ajesodiod so4) spig Juawysaay jenden

SRININGES G LOHea3slaTy
otk ] 08l 581 [ %004 4 0 Y 0 S81 S52 56¢ 552 G394 Ger §52 e 2 386pug Aemyl iy eoueusiuie pouueig|  soomses sty ¥ juellucaaug £e
SpROY
rdLE - UON o) UORONIISUGIaY pug UCHEAISSUOSD
00¥'s  looe't  Joos't jnoss %001 0 ¢ G 0 0008 080z Jood's  oopz  lese'a  loooz  looow 0007 Butieynsay femicod pue peoy pauteld|  SPOMIBS aLIUOLY 5 RISWLOIATS 44
s18UIERIGT UONBAISEUC
(443 a 4 (433 W00L 0 1] O 0 [£4 o I8! 84 (433 ol G <EL Buiafey puy suig poj@aum WBWEsEY | 580ABG BLIUOLY § UBLUOIAUY L&
UOIBAIBBUSTS
562 o 4] 467 %001 59z 9 geL =) 962 3 0 G52 562 0 ] 362 s seien Bundisy | seoiieg swpuoly 2 WRAWLGIALY 0z
Cazm_imwcc.\u
0ez 0 P oc %001 [} q 0 0 0£Z ] ¢ e 0£Z 0 g ez SepIAA Bufsey so4 uaurdinbg Bum]  seauueg suuos B USROG Bl
UG[EAZSSLOTY
966 0 ] folerst 1001 1] 0 s} [} 456 b ] 056 056 I 0 056 anlss Bupdzay 10 voismoudsyy SRUNBG SUNILDI4 g RuuolALg 1%
PEDY LOippAf - (VOiSd) s8ahy AN CEVELESY uczlausboyg
o0z 0 ot a0t %004 & 0 a o) 00z 0 601 ot 002 3} 08 00l LONBABSUON U SBWalLRg disiouley Py Buiueig g esutieny 44
uoneiauabay Uonesduaday
i 0 0o 0¥l Wit 0 0 g g L 0 ] vig (a8 o 0 ¥l (i) 2nuei adeosumo | 9o sonig puy Buueg B esudisquy 9¢
Pt WBIH wegusnd ] - (v Dide) Seory uohziauabay uoguisuaboy
0L G 0 001 %001 0 0 G & 904 Q a 0L acE 4] [ [eis) UGREAISSUOT) Uf SBWSYDG diySIauling puy Buiiey B a5y g4
BURLBHEDI] wawedoBnag Bjdoay BUAG
080° 0802 0 3} Y%l 9 0 3 0 069'8¢L [308's 098'vE  {zeges  |osoz 0902 0 o} nng U1 104 5100408 Buiping) g uoddng ssewsng PUE BRI i
Auwndebold (5401 sUtnedepy Suleg-Toin 9
00L'2 004 004 0L %3k 0 5 o} 0 IpEy 5Fb'L bl 8r°L 0017 00/ 004 004 SERUIGES DBIGESINT O] UORNGUILGT BUNoD SBOMIBS Lnpy 2187 j2i00g Ynpy gl
L2 ANIES 16 s A GE3RMLOT 109 Dutag-isp
SEL It} o] Sil %0l 0 0 0 0 G 3 0 I SEE 0 s} St FoUNR wuely Arinwwon jo spesbdn S30AIBG HNPY BIED OGS "npy zl
RUMHAD) g SSLBIIT | RIS ] BUSIEIT
905 4] 3 D05 Y00l 0 3] O 0 005 C 0 g0 009 0 O 005 wawdeeasg Aaigr | HEMSTIZY ‘Bupsze Jnpy B &NEND ‘@ngley L
AbeEjRH| N3 g seuraqy | BuiesT BuciEy
009 Q0g oje 8] il 0 0 2] { 000" COG'E 052 0 009 alsl OB o] 00 Bunoisey - wnasnpy spseg ashg ‘Buiiea ynpy § SMlND Aunsie oL
BlauedT budain
ape 09 a9 oz %28 0 o el 0 082 08 0% o6t [} 08 a5 08 ABaieag Bunued asi| | soomnsg [BUCIEBLDEY | 9 DNHND ‘unsia [
suillebic)d
(3002} Wweuusy Loeig pue (M06a)
B ustug uog pigy pauiquwon {ISO} Bususea Buogyr
06£ 74} GZE Q08 S0 ] 0 Q 0 091°z Q0L 372 004 D0LE [([s%2 GOL fsiaf suiuesboid Jawoaodw) eceds uadg SERAIBG [ELONRRL0AY | R AN ‘BInsin 9
[N Buied ] Tugpji
£L6 ] A0b 931 Yo By [ ¢ a O S66 8] LOY 285 £IG 4] Ay 983 SRS BNLIRY I SIBMSUDY asfisjang S8DIAIBY [FUOYBSIOMT | e 3anling Binsa £
18[00l Juawdoena) oy Blauedy BUDIBIM
054 0 o 051 w00 ] 0 o 0 452 0 0 [ i3 o] 0 054 2eRdg Aunwwion xepie ] puy pueped| saomieg [BucyEaInaY { g ainynRr) ‘eansiat 3
BuiiEs Buoiayi
204 [ 402 (08 o1 G 3 0 9] 058'9 002's 002's 06k 004 00z o0z ooe PLNDLEY UCHERI0Y dI4Lpaon SINIBG [BUNEBIODY | § SR BInse) g
Bleay BlLoEin
00e ] 00t 201 %0% ] 0 O 0 GO a 407 ooz 002 ° oot 001 SSIOBS f SYBI] WL) JOOPING $Y8 BROINGE RUONERLY | § SInknD) Bunsie &
Britiee T ouoEn
% ] 0 GiZ %lb 4] g G 1] 463 0 g 068 84T & Q &z Swiieifiosd jJusiiysigiyey HA0G siiua | seanisg |euoneaisey | g sangng ‘BINSIST £
Sid BuisEET BuoE
055 1} ST GLE %hGE 9 0 0 0 055’1 0 Gid S44 055 0 Gic G2 Aelg 10 efiuey puy Alsng ay) Buposdwi| seoimisg [euonearoy B BINNG "BNSI 4
aluleBosg BLpiiesT Butiagrs
008 o5 ooy 002 YalZ [ ¢l s 4] a0¢'p nO0'Z o'z €04 008 Jaiety 0GR 00E WBWRA0IW] SALY SLiods oibsieaglsaomiag [BUOHEBISOY | p 2.mins ‘aunsgien 1
0003 090.3 0003 0063 % 006.3 00,3 000, 0003 0003 080.3 006.3 009.3 000.3 4003 800,3 000.3
3
0L [Zi-bi0Z ) L1002 al-6008 1500 wm_u_.._,mmo 0 1ei0] EELLOZ | Li-010Z | 03-8002 o), Z41L07 [L3-030Z § 04600z | miop 11102 { 1E-GLOZ | 91-8002 8L 399l0id pendes U ssalsng GO0 4 'ON oy
HORRQLUGD B
$E $30N050Y {ytog
[pepuauosas] SIHNDIZ GFLdI00Y apeicdion 10 fiteaes 16 aluoow aanebou 1800 300 endes (B0 pig Buipung s2aInessy; sjeiotiey
2ARisod) suopesidun SNUIADY JON




Page 109

18] spe (2} imiden 1 xdde gg uep 27 BuIgEn)
£LZLBO0EEE

H aipueddy

ZLILOT 01 018002 1SIB9 A [RIDUBULY
Buipung saunossy sjerodion so g spig feyden

{seoinosay Nerodior) 104) spig jusuisaay| jeyiden

V9RTE [SSEY Zi8'4 2661 {06E) {GE1) (ev) 0Z 06 I6L [¢SF¥E  JOELES 6LE3LE [698'\F  [GZOEL LIEEL 198'91 Spig Juaiisaau; leydes 8161
$378154 SESINISE
00¢ 0 51 582 W01 [ Y i 0 008 9 051 0oL 00¢ ¢ 051 06t FBLISAILE 1) BuipesBdry % uswysiniay | Ausdosd siesadicn) Sa0M0sEY i3
SURLRID0IY
0us's 5L 0054 008 %001 3 Q 0 & 006V 05’} aen'e 0551 806y CE'L 080 Joal=ir [Eldery ABoouyoa g UOLBULIDLE SBUAISS 1] SEMUN0SEY Fa
uoigexe |
R (54 4] "] I0G ag 1] 0 oG mu‘iwmuemm.j 2007 pue Siljduag SE2UINQSDM og
a5 0 0 jeis %001 {ot) {oz) toz} 0 o
0d) 555 49 05 SL004 9 o 0 G 1143 [ 39 05 0z1 01 09 05 sapeidn snusy eovueg LBLENY | Ausdold ieiodion SBaN0sEy &€
EEEREmE EERINETS
061 I+ 0t 804 0L i) o 0 I oGl o oG oot 051 G 05 001 ¥ hedoy webin - 1odeg peoy Aajysy| Auedosg ajgsodion SBUNOTAN e
SHUDENY
Apunisuog puy Aedold 10 jusiafstien
©20d:07) VLI 01oRI0d Bui ial=] SANAIBG
08¢ 0g5 ooL'L 058's %001 0 0 Q Y] 052'S 0682°% 052°1 gL't 0526 05271 051 a5’y teunnessds 10 FIUBLSILBYY g dndoy }twncw& ajeuodion 20In0gay £E
SN
Busnoy Alsnwwon
00z i 0 jalord %004 9 0 5 i o6z o 0 002 (6214 0 g 002 (k) sxop solepg % olfisieag sadleg Buisnops 143
EERIINET
Bulsnoy Aumuuon
S8y 3 0 S8y O0L ¢ 0 Y] o ey G 9 Sg¥ S8 3 0 S8 SO WRYES % oifaleng se0nieg Bushoy e
SATInES
Buisnoy Anuiwen
L 05} 951 05 %001 4 0 0 [t} a0'e Q04 L 000'L 005 900t (B 000" Q0a'E SuogRdeRy pue spny ®» vifiejeng SEIBg BUusho 0E
EERINES]
BuISnok; Apunuge:sy
008 4] 4] 0% %06 0 & ] G ¢S & G 008 00% G o] 005 sulesboig sjurigy s0pag Bl 3 sifsleng s80iARg Buisnoy ¥4
SETAIES
{waH A2Butel 4o4| Buisnop ALUNUWLLOT
05¢ o 0 05T 001 g 0 O g 052 g 0 0sZ 052 0 o] 052 SO} BUDUDG JIN0DEIT S[EIBISUEL] 5 abaleag S80Isg Bulsno 24
RTINS
a0e 001 001 1] %001 G 0 o 0 0FL 062 05¢ avzZ oL 08z 058 Ope Siususrodw Qe peoy JBICT]  SBLIAIRG U4 F JUawLoAUg i3
Lonenlzsiony
002’y 008 008 209 SO0 {511 (o1} {og1) {511) 008l ] olo]] 008 0051 009 ) o0 el Buniiedt  seoiueg auiucig P SO a7
WESAS USWAIOIL] 0D eomr L0 LOIBAIBSUOD)
5144 O g Bze Y01 9 0 0 3 (44 0 4] BLE 6z¢ ] Y 522 wonejusumdisy @ sseyzing ‘speitidn ey SODIBS BLIUOL B USLUoaMT ford
UDNEAIESUST
000's 08% 0G5 Qog'z 001 0 O I 0 000'Y Qo' L 000°'L 000'2 960'y Q0G'; £00'1 Q00’2 BuesSo.g jusunsay Bunubiy wang SEOMAIBS BLIIUI A ¥ judLosAU ¥
000,3 000.3 006.3 060.3 Y 406.3 1063 00,3 00,3 0003 000.3 080.3 900,3 06,3 000, 060.3 2003
=el {z3-130z fit-cioz 9i-6002 1502 ,M“.,_.aﬁo © |e30] ZE-LEOE | 31002 | 015002 | jerog ERHLGE 110102 | oe-B00Z | 1m10) ZVEHOZ | 110302 § 0L-gD0Z Bpt yoaloly jendey HUf ssaulsng ofepiod ON oy
co::at.ucou e
SE $904n0%0Yy {0y
fpepuauanioses] SFUAHL AFLdIDOY sruodiog 16 Burnes 16 sluadu aatebou js0n 1807 [epdes 1o prg Buppuny 5a%inosay sleiodion
anusod} suonesiduy snuasay 19N




Page 110

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 111
Appendix |

London Borough of Haringey
Capital resource allocation policy

Following the introduction of the prudential regime in April 2004, councils have
had greater flexibility regarding capital expenditure. The removal of controls
on the levels of borrowing was helpful in terms of flexibility and local
autonomy, but that the key determinant is the affordability, which is still
effectively controlled by government. Allocations of revenue support for
capital expenditure are still being made by individual Government
departments.

In the preparation for this strategic context, a revised resource allocation
policy was adopted by Executive on 21 October 2003 and an updated version
is set out here for approval:

» that the framework for determining the Council’s priorities, and
therefore resource allocation, will remain the Community Strategy,
given effect in the Council Plan via the business planning process;

 that housing and education will be allocated their (revenue support
derived) borrowing limits and ring-fenced grants;

s that other services are allocated their ring-fenced grants;

* that all other (revenue support derived) borrowing limits and grants
are allocated through the business planning process and the capital
programme appraisal framework;

¢ that increases in revenue formula grant for supported borrowing are
earmarked to fund the actual costs of this in the revenue budget;

s that PFl is retained as an option for delivering capital investment:

* that unsupported (prudential) borrowing should be considered for
invest to save’ proposals, or where the revenue borrowing are
proven fo be contained within existing budgets;

» that capital receipts are managed corporately and applied in
accordance with the business planning process;

* that best consideration will be sought for all disposals, except in the
case of agreed discounting to social housing providers;

* that the spending power derived from capital receipts is maximised
through the use of the offsetting provisions for pooled (non-right to
buy) housing receipts.



Page 112

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 113

Total Draft Capital Programme 2009/10 to 2011/12 Appendix J

Pra ft Summary Capital Programme 2008710 to 2011/12

""" " Proposed  Indicativel Indicative,

Budget Budget: Budget:
Draft Expenditure Budget - e L. 2009110 2010011 201112
' ' . £000 £000. £000

Urban Environment (including Housing Generai Fung) ~—~ . 8,380
ﬁédu!.t.s,Cu!t_weandGomm_unitvs_ﬁwices_____ e — 6,669 10,866 10,334

[Corporate Resources 9315 060 7,660

(Children & Young People L7786 T S7ast az6a

Housing Servces (HRR) " S e s

1493 182027 g3sn

62,790

Totat
£000

41,602
27,869
27,735
167,851
171,305

466,362

Total Capital Programme 199,005 155559 111758

Draft Capital Financing

‘Capital grants from central government departments {inc SCE(C))

-

111,038 50430 16491

Tk

2 Grants and contibutions from private developers & leaseholders .. 2283 T gn gl
4. Grants & contributions from non-departmental public bodies T 470 2445 3345
‘Capital grants from the National Lottery | e 847 5,155 4,505
5 Capital funding from GLA bodies o~ B 5 _ 0:

6 Use of capital receipts 9,837 71,0172 13,908

anital expendiure financed by the Major Repairs Reserve (MRR) - Govt Grani 12,407 .. 12407 12,407

apital expendiure financed from the General Fund Revenue Account 5830 5935 {0 |
7 5CE (R) Single Capital Pot e .. 12186 13403 " 10,845

8 SCE (R) Separate Programme Element .l 30,0000 40000 44000

“Other borrowing & credit arrangements not supporied by ééhtr@i_gdvem_méﬁt' _ 3422 11812, g

Firancing From Reserves " L BS00 T Tagp” T gpq”

S 177,959
‘Grants from European Union Structural Funds o 400 : e o

L3818 60000 8000

.. 114,000

400
2,253
6,260
10,567
15,815
31,514
37,221
11.865
36,434

15,234
6,900

‘Total Capital Financing 199,005 155,556 111708

466,362

NOWS T T e i .
1 include capital expenditure financed by capital grants from ail central government departments (including BSF).
Exclude capitat expenditure financed by Major Repairs Reserve (MRR}

,‘2;Eﬁ_r_;_ﬁ{,;dé'éonir_ibu“ti'dngfféﬁ a_n_y_'Eﬁ%oggéhﬂUnign_'_étm(_:_t_u__r'gi“!:unq_s f:é. thg_EUro'pea__n'Reéiq@ai_ﬁé#&lgpﬁéht Fun'c_i” '
-The Eurcpean Social Fund, the European Agricultural Guidance and Guarantes Fund, and the Financial Instrument
for Fisheries Guidance.

3 Include contributions from private developers. Include
or the premises of which the leaseholder's propeny forms part,

4 include capital grants from all non-departmental public bodies stich as the Sports Council, English Heritage, Aris Council,
Museu_m_s_and_C__B_alferieg_Commi_ssian and the Countryside Agency.

5._lf_1ciudeg_<_:_a_pita! fundi'n'g'fr_q;‘{lmt'he Greater Londen Authority (GLA], including cza_p_i_ié?ufunq%_ng' from its four functional bodies

e TFL, London Development Agency, Metropoiitan Police Authority and London Fire and Emergency Pianning Autharity,

1o the Secretary of State under sections 11 (2) (b) and 11 (3) of the Local Government Act 2003,

& l_hélude__ all c_:_ébi'taé_ex:r_'}énd{tg‘r’:é ﬁn_a_u_)_g‘;'_é'cf by_ap;'j'l'ying_g'a';‘)'itai re_ciéib't's, _E_xblhde c_:_a_p'it'a!' re__c_g_ibt's' ép__p}ie_d to m@_}gé'ﬁéyment'sm '

Capital Receipts Anaysis: 7 - o
Gapital Receipts - Bids for Corporate Resourges 9.837 7772, 8255
_Capital Receipts - Accommodation Strategy " . 0: ¢ 5.650

2000102010711 ooripE

Total,
... 25,864
5,650

9837 7712 13,905

31,514

de capital expenditure financed by borrowing and other credit that will atiract central government

;Support through RSG or HRA subsidy l.e. Supported Capital Expenditure (Revenue) - SCE(R) Single Capita! Pot.

SMSICE_(R)'Sepérate__i?mgra_r_n_rﬁe Element

include capital expenditure financed by borrowing and other credit that will attract central goverament support through RSG or

. HRA subsidy |.e. Supported Capital Expenditure (Revenue) - SCE(R) Separate Programme Element. For e.g. BSF / Decent E-E_o__r_r_@'és'




Page 114

f xipuaddy

7 i abee

JUBLILONAUT UBYsn 1810 4]

0003 000.3
{paymys {poymis
BIBYM) [UBYM)
puadg e0gigol
DEGO0E D2 dp} puadg
i Bupnouy padeloly :
Bugpun g pajeunsy

oy ey

Ue|d Bunueg
T RsAg:
JUSWIBDUOIIT PAITY BIIALD SYL JO uoneuawedu; g 25BYdIN, ‘apelBdn sy

_umow._m

: [Bdioung-UuoN 10} ucnangsucosy pue Fuoepnsay Aemoo pue peoy pouuelg

w{wm:_ﬂcou m:__@,owm n:< supg’ nmmmax?; EmEmomEmm :

mzcm ma:o}um jo co_m_>9aam.
ua% H

pEOY ybi WEYUERD) - (¥DiSd) SRSIY UOREAIBSUOD Ul SaBLog u_:ﬂmmtmn”
mEmemEm SOENSY ..ouomm Em>cm

TOLNG nmow_ mﬁmaaco woaoa xcﬂ ‘001 uol w
mmz 'pEOY b A U mcauosw amm;@ ﬁoc.i - 901 uoNseg

SN nmow_‘m E_mm Z 'peoy | mm.sEoo Gy i- mow .mw N.&ED wov :a:omm“

peoy :9_.5 0/~ 901 UonsEg
Ty ysrep

T stausd umo] |
T sumid [BARI| soejdniopm
o SSBULIEMY AR |
SUB|d AR ] 100U5S
o EEGRONE
Echo?)cm”
saucy ydw’ [iT4
" sawsyog Kojeg je0oy”
i e
Buipohs
SNid WiomBN 81947 Uspuod
2 :
x._ozawz Bno:& w:m nouco.m
W@sc:mm nmom _ma_uc:m:

..... «:.wF.....uo?;cw :.w&“__:m

awaysg fenden jo aui

Zi/L107 O3 01/600Z sitiumibolg endes yeiq:

AR H i SR RN & T SN R

CH/11L0Z 01 01/600T sunueiBoud eydeg pesodoid jejo)




25 7 ey

O Og' L2 BOREE. L REROL B0 S g £SB0IMIG AILNWIICY pUE sunyng 'S)npy (2101]
A T wawidojarag Aeig; CFg
WWRIBOI) JUEUBy cwm._w _”Em“
% mmE. UBDID) 104 DigY PawmquIe) {dISD) w.EEmhmE.n._ w.:me\,EaEm eogdg cmqo £g
Dnla 17 E:Emo 18 49um B“ME.EQEOU G4 saunaly wiely 3.::&?50 10 memaD_ rarl
LG
0%
LSBAUBY BN do emausy oifelens Gy
N SEeA jeungl  gp

LHOISIADIG ARy 0 ebuey p Anenp 8u Bunoudiy:  /p
Louileiboig Em&@,oaﬁm mmnu__& stiodg iBei1ghs . gy
N mSHoEwmm&a_ 8g :o nealasuer) - B_szno_m_ Gp
Aboeng m:;:mi Bl by
mcmsﬁﬁ_amm o suos| oy
oy wumaw b.c:EEDU xejhe ] pue vcm_x_mm, i
WEH EO B W;_Emwm E:wmzﬁ spsen asnugl 4y
mEEEmEnﬁ 6&9 m:o:mﬁmnq 59 ey vwﬁmmd 5“._ :oz:n_.:moom Oy

se31Meg Aunwiiion puE 3inyn3 ‘siinpy;

{pajeys ?vwﬁm 3B fetde) Jo swey “ON 1oy
asoym) LoEaeum)
pusdg 60°ELE O
GLB00Z By | dn puadg
i Buipnjouy payoaiosy
Buipung pojewinsy
2oL

ey

ZLLLOE O 0L/B00E wwesBoid (eyidEn yeig

I xipuaddy CL/L10Z 03 01/6002 swweiboig [ejidesn pasodoid jejo )




Page 116

r Xipuaddy

- SELYZ

iy elieg

Seamnosay ajeiodion jejo) ]

000.3 0003
{paje)s “{poeys
saaym}) aleym)
. puadg 60E'LE 0L |
DLE00Z 244 . dn puadg
Burpnjouy paroafosg
Bugpuny - pojewnsy
B0

: oy

SOIBIST juusnpli %O Bupestdn ¢ E@Ecmﬁ‘émmm [
wEEEwQ& mwﬂmo >oc“ccxu£ UONBLLOM|  £0
wam.&wwmﬁ g

souBUBIIRYY B ._mmawm EQED uoama peoy Aajsy T ag
sBuipling Allunwdbes puy ALBELIY IG ustuabieuepl
S1RI0dIOD) WIYHAA DROMHCS Bul Fie] Kco;@mao IO BoueUalEp g edey. g9

Em%oa Emsnomm.énm._ HeH UMOJ >mmEon +9

@EEEmP_u ABayeng :o_«mvoEEcuce. _m«oa,nzm
swobelew 3&8& seng

Wsts|qin sy 18 epsdy

Seayjo Bupgiom T uviNg o uDISnOl B stiogeoojey Ieig:
. enued i

mzo.wmnam__am

luaulsigmyay - FE0y uoueld gy

JuBLySE qunzoy - mmnoz Hed 2oAY

" se0Mmossy Sjeiodioy,

awraysg [eyded jo swey “oN Jou

2411020} 016002 swweibou g jenden yeig,

211102 03 01/600Z sutweiBoug jeyde) pasodoly jejo)




Page 117

r Xipuaddy

... 0003 1 000,3
{patels {peieys
siaym) aasym)
puadg T IEATLIR

[BLI600Z 92d : dn puadg

: Buipniouy ; _uﬁummnzm
Buipun 4

zxo»

oy

..... AQ+2+8+¥=3] J58 BUIPHIS SaAD TEI6L (3)
Samu s{aoyog poAfoAag ﬁm::m_m |12101-qng Evm
mmxamo uw>_o> a:

. Fende) spooiog paajorag

eucmcﬁa_mﬁ 1255y pauuryy [Elo}qng (o)
s8] [BUOISSS|0Ig

Emmm:acoo JBIAL

SpH LB

Emémommamm R nm:mm_&

JUBUAUIR 19SSY PouLiely
mmmou< pue a_czEEoO Ewe> a:mm jeoragng (g}
) USIPIC nmmmmm_a 10y gy Buiiy .
SNig nn:m {ehder Eno\,m

ncnu_ _Eamu GIno A

Sj001og popusps.
mmwun&. b Kenyy SIBOA Aueg
:M Ud mgmmu m MRIPHYD

a91m0g spdoed Bunod g co._m__:om

6

I8
06
88
88

8

42

g8
¥8
£8
z#
ig

08
6L
B
4L
34
G4
€L
e
LL

" swayog féjden jo aweN: oy oy

7141102 91 0L/6007 silitiesbosy jenden yerg

ZL/L 10T 03 01/600Z swweiboiy jejides pasodoid jej04




24 g i ey

996'TL ajdosg Bunoy @ usappy’ feio)

sz . {ovdeH) oumng aus 1oj sjo6yos Butpiing ieio (1))

e Jsa 1Eitrang (o

__ ; ooewe B _18uig 45804
ey _ el T L. PuEtioolog moN  gol
5801 & ; s L . fousbuiiuc) 4sq g0i

BBl oy _ _ bt 201

0r0Le . o - sspaloid 100yos Jsd ieiol-qng (3)

leet Lo — ... M suodg siowsapeln | g0y
8ro’) Do . . SHE AsSlicn: go
‘8ol : voi
Geg AASN BUTUBIE/BIBWSILIO . £p)
T - - e e et oo,
oeg . axues Loddng 10§

: _ s o

. BRuas o4 HY g
bt S | o o s o8
R - o e S0y, St e
gzl s AWBpEDY Mars Wed g6
fst | . AR PR
Shot | . - iAo oo
e . — iblisepet

R o . swsfoid (9045 - (45a) aimng 851 103 siooisg Bupiing

Page 118

0003 - " o _ _
{poieys awayag [eyrded jo slueN ON oy
alaym) :

60°gLE 0L

dn puadg

pajosiolg

Pojeul)sy

‘011600 oxd

i Burpnjoug

| Buipuny
el

r xjpuaddy ZL110Z 01 01/600Z swweiBoly jeyden pesodosy jeioy




Page 119

r xipuaddy

o= 1} mc%cs.m 'SSIBLISS DY [ payiew saumsyng:

956'Z01

sunueBoig jeyden ejoy |

T

06662

. 0003 000y
i (pees {peieys
a1atm} BIBYM)
puadg L egELg oL
01/600Z 3id - . dp pusdg |
Bugpnymy poosiong
Supuny pojewsy

L -t

(wuh) saonieg Bupsnoy ejol]
esoo s oz

Yo sbeureiq p abemag ¢z
Broliay soiéBasy. bz

“BoleuBlley SABISAAl4 paliliey gay

T udieaasuon ABidlal Tz,

| Spiop ORI Y jedileuosi 7]

o Sylop fEimonils” pzt

SWIOM BB 1euessT g1l

. i

LA

sead |BUoISSa0ld. Gt
siedsy; pasiende i
SHIOH SBUHIGH Juatag” gy
 SSHIOAN ofen Zil
Lit

“swisydg [eides yo swe “ON joy

231107 OF §1/600Z Stieiboiy jendsy yog:

LA L0Z O} 01/6002 suwnueiBold jendes posodoiy jeio)




Page 120

23 30§ By

209y 608' DH0°0L ) i g B Biv'L G186 19¥'7 B AuUBMIBONALS uBgan [e101 |
ooe SRR AU | NN S N 0 . 0. LU o - oo Stiewsroidu Rojes peoy 6957 ge.
862’y g B g o 0 9 0 0. L . o e Ul Bupted  gp
: : : : : LigjsAg:
9 0 ! g ‘g7z BB HAITY BOIAID BY 1 J() ucBIuSWadi; g aseyong ‘epeufidn ayy’ g
o . o 7 g oo A S S wEEEQO JusuRsSAY) BuiuBiy jealls” g
..... to ‘o 0 Ty ‘ooz peoy c.._.u.B%Es_ - ?.o.mna mmmE UGHBAISSUOD ) Sowslsg Qﬁmhm:ﬁm& " ge
% o a o ‘009 T Seuninig Ui g SeBpug Aeiybi Sousualliiey pouuerg. be
¥ . . m : o .
5] mc Q 0 “oam_w 0 : [REIDULG-UDN 10§ UoHINASUCOSY pue fu IBHNSSY Aermon PUE DEOY pauueld:  £f
] 0 g o it g : o EmEmEoo Buyodosy _ua( suig um_wmc>> wawsseday: zg
o g R 567 0 " usuiissauy sapivep Buipioen T g
e “ip ) g ogs 6 © sapigep Bu E.Gax 104 uBd :cm Buyry o8
L = o Y oy i R sdeostimo) ordigy song 67
o ‘o “a a a5 ) ) EHE ) 9 u>omm 10 co >anm_ gz
o 0 Bt 5 664 9

pEOY 4y tweyusyo} - (y0igd) $EBIY UORBAISSUOY) U} SAtBYDS a:_m._mmtmnm.m 17

: 9e

”wt T o o T amnepu adEdslMO] BA0ID) gdnig:  ga

gg . o 0N PEdY spdddan “edap xuky - ~90L ue omm” v

I P v
4

mw.@o;o_smw.,m. iz
| CEN ouET dispio ges-G2L - 901 Uoiaas oz

oo olBiald
oo ooiaal

Slo oo e g s

oo oo dias
T T e

T T R T H UGl 04 - 60| uooag | )
0 _oog'ot 05, 0 o . SSUET USIER. gl
0 0 ) i 0 000zt 0 MOSSILANG UBld Uoneuswaid] je5on. ]
5 “y e 7 5 L s uodsuR | wopUoT YoN ot
3 Y 0 hy o o o yoeaiddy 8jqix3l4 a0 - Sailon LodsuR)} T g
. e e ° e s o | 5 N | mmbcm.&...n@ﬁk ol
) 0 0 oo 0 L0 0 By L SuBld [BABI] BOBIGHIOM . £}
0 [0 0 0 .0 9. 0 0 107 T S LT
0 o0 0 9 L iy L a L
Y 9 L .8 R 0 Y 0 QL
8 @ 2 0 i 0 o0 B B
ooy .0 6 Y g 0 b s L U B, .8
909 Y 0 L8 ‘0. 4 i Y 4
0oL 0 L0 0 0. 0 8 0 L2
ogz 0. 9 L 0 e 0 0 5
og 0 0 0 ¢ .0 A0 5 R 4
08 0 0 0 0 0 O 0 e L €
000y 0 0. G 0 .8 .8 0 0 4
ooy o 0 0 0 .0 0 o 0 b
0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 buo3 003 606y | CGeos | ooes .
ey Saniesay T JUBRHIIBAOE) el iod rendes wnoooy - lyHW) vy weiy T mdisasy sapog sjuRID : aweyag ende) jo swenon JoY
wozd U Ag sunuesborg - ayfiuig snusAdy - amesey | Bumueuly . peyden yio woiy {eyden _
Buwsurury - papoddng oN oeaedog (M}zos © pungy | syeday 0 esn Buipun 4
| sjuewnBueiny () 308 | {Rapuag 1of{eyy wory jeuden
Hpois : : L wery Bupuzu g :
g Buimosrog | : Buioueury
FLlity] :
..... [ssead ¢f snunog Bupung ey 0 0 o ZM110Z 01 01/600Z BlliEibosg jeudER Yeig

 Xipuaddy 21102 ©1 01/800¢ swweiBoid teydes posodoad (01




Page 121

iy gebey

£§98°L2 0 PET') ¢ [ g 1 £69°2 g ZBE'RL 1SODIAIRS ApunuiLos) pUR BJnNY ‘SYNPY (810,
006 ) i} e 008 0 Jusludolera A pamsnpy g
LH i e BUTTBIG1| TUBULS 5515 Pt
[i1:73 i} 0 1] 3] 4] e o ‘0gs 0 i mm& usaIg) 104 pig paLigues amwov sunugibolg wewasoudw; soEdg usdn: gg
0 ) 0 ) 0 0 Gl 0 0 bz Amuas |9 i Agnedwoy jog sauegr] uuepy Agunwiwey jo epesBin’  zg
¢ o 0 0 L) o 002" o 06i'g o . «Pundig lopesiaoy dispion g
0 0 0 0 o o . 0 SSBlDEsel L W Jooping .08
] 0 ) it g 1) g o 7w LS31UBY Bnsian jO [Emalioy 916 L gy
5 ) 0 3 i K 5 S A G o
0 i) i o o n ) LUOISIAOIY A8y BBUEY Pl A BNy au ) Bunoudul] /3y
G s 0 i i) 0 o VBUIWIEIB0) s wBAOdW) $B4INd shodg olfeeng.  op
g T W 0 g 0 o E:Kn:mm&cm Ewm UGIRAISEULT - Aisianlge m. Jors
B I 0 g g G o 0 ABRIERS BUjjueid 90i] | by
R Eh ek 5" 5 5 e R i siounjon o SiuusL &
o o LI RN T 0 o
0 0 .0 0 L0 0 0 by
0 0 T A R o G

m.n.u..u._?.uw Apuniuuro pue w._ﬁ_.-.wu”..“mx:ﬁa\

000,3 0003 0003 6003 0003 000,3 0003 T0003 0003 200.3 s
13541 SOAIBSOY walisson | Jswerg Jod 1endes T junosoy CWMH wosd | sidiBoey sa|pog sjueioy sweysg euder jo awien ON 4oy
wold teszuan g awwesbolg ajbulg ANUBABY anresey  Suoueurq {euden Y Woa g jeydeg
Bupueurd  paploddng jon . ojesedag {d) 305 pund sneday o easn Bueptin g
© spuswobuenny | {d) 308 jesotian  Jofely wod4 jendes
HpeLy : Loy Buioueury
2 Bumosuog Buuzury
. layio _
(5re0d ¢ asuncy Buipung jme]” 2478102 &4 04/600F suliilieiBory fendes eig
 xipusddy ZHLLOZ 01 01/600Z awwesboid jepden pasodoly 2104




Page 122

w53ty

&5

{mizak £ sainog Buipuns 916

582'12 0 000°y 0 0 51801 0 0Z6'ZL 0 o sasinosay ejeiodio) (eloy |
o o e 0 s wuisnou (3
0 0 08 T S 89
Y 0 0zt a wmnm»man BIUSD B3AEG SAWAISND: G
o 0 0% W BDUBUDILIEY 5 aedey Jusbin) - jodag) peoy ASjsy’ 0o
o : : sbulppng AUREOD puy ATiddod 0 wasbeuepy
008’ 0 ) s} 0 : i oae's s 0 2104107 UL OOJIC Bulpiing [eusciesado 30 aousuBiue) 9 4 edsy  ¢g
G6.' 0 0 0 86/'8 0 a0 i 0 o 08loud juawdo[EASHDY I1EH o | ASSWIOH b9
09 0 006’y 0 8. ez 8 7 0 059'6 o 9 __Swwesborg Eﬁgw UOHEPOUIE0I0Y [E301-n:
Em:,ﬁm Eémm Blienads 79
: saap0 Blption LHVINS JO UOISIAOIG R suseoojey yaig, | )
............. sy i
__%enogm s_n_aeou _______
0003 0003 000, 0003 0003 003 . 0003 0003 0003 U003 oees o o e . R B
o sanasey | Jusiiianog Wewag 164 jElden | unossy (3MW)  : wvMH woug | sudissey ssipog spuzigy aweaysg edes jo awmpn ON 9y
LHOs 4 ienuan Kg stuweioryg 9jbig anusasy samsey - Bupuewns | jenden  yio woig feydes
Buppueuly | psuoddng joN ajeledag {4) 30s pung siedey g esn Burpung
| syuswabueuy o E0s {Riouag) Jofepy woly {enden
Hpap Lowogy Bupugu g
2 Bupmoasog Suvueusy
RO

7111102 01 01L/6007 suitieiiord jendes e

r xipusddy

ZHL0Z 01 01/600 dunuriboid [eydes posodoigd je1o)




Page 123

g 0
Lig e
028 0
vBL 0
989z 0
£6L°L 8
Ly o
05 0
625 0
0L 0
qﬂ ..... _O
£ 0
BN
0
0
0

o dioin'din s s & as

oolda
Son BTG e

8
0
. .D
g

ClolsTE e
e

o oloieio sl

LET e deeisisisE

oo e doddE s

oo EGioide s 8w

19168 009 0 i 6L ] 0 ] o 88LEy AQ+D+a+Y=3) 484 BUIPAPXe SJAD 16301 (3)
6068 o 0 0 606'8 JAeldeD $1004og poNGAST pauLeid elokang (@)
606°2 ) 0 i) 806'8 N [Bliden poapaaa: 'z
) : : i : {ended sooydg poajoasg:
0 Lop'e 0 0 B HOURUSIUIEY 19SSV pauurly [E10i-qng ()
a 056 ‘0 0 0 o 5984 |2LOISSBI0Nd. 16
S L 2 e B oo iy, og
.......... 2 2 4 g 2. o o8
B T 0 0 o Wawaceiday 39 W pruueig 83
o 0 0 0 0 pung 8ok5e) T - s1800 14d 18

123 jejol-ang (8)
UBIDHZ pelgEsid doj yBiH Bupa 98
Snid pund feydes ynd " g

pung jEudes uncs - pe
B S[DOYOS pepUSY. g
‘s3a00y g Aleng - SieaA Aupg: 'z
. il Uc S2NURG suBIpILD. 1§

: - ;08
Bl ofpuejon. 64

peoy asuiles ¢ spadden [Sg
T yd uoisusdi S queu; Asexoy”

“Bliwiibos jenden Riewig:
awteiBoid jeydes Kieunig

soinieg oidodg Bunos  uRIPILD.

0003 000.3 000,3 0003 0003 | 0003 003 0003 0003 . g3 goos T . T T
{eyoy S8A18S6Y JuBuIEIsACsy - juBWBY  Jod jenden | junosoy (duiw) vuH wony | sidieoey T ssppog i sjuRin swayog feydes) jo swey oN J9Y
WOk fenuan Ag | swnueiBoiy - ofburg anusAsy aaasey . Bupdueury - qeydes yo woay feden :
fivpouruly | pepoddng jopN ajeedag | {¥) 308 pun4 sheday $0 880 Butpund
sjpawabuniny M) 30 jeiBuss  20fep Wolg: enden
HpeIn woiy | Hupueury |
g Bumoliog : Burouew g !
BYig .
{suwef £) sninog Buipung o] ZL/LLOZ 03 gL/600% Bunueiboug (eiides yeig:
r xtpuaddy 211102 01 01/600Z sunueiBoly epdes pasodosd jejo




Page 124

o

168461 gog't

SE5'11 9L6'84 4

06988 002

00e’L 0 g 0892 g

080z 0 Josdeer

8004

ajdoag Hunaop 9 U4ppYD iuoi "
(©+d=H) (2T oy} 103 Si0aiIOS Butping 810} (1)’

9410 358 1#I01-ang (9)

B4I0 459 0LL
801
801

90t

BASN oxucm_m\EmEmmtou. £01
U vied mipliedely 20
anuag ueddng ndng:
S oo weng tol
a0 uwess s
UBIH SpISpooiL 96
*Sidjy Sevioy] 5 s

DEIY MBI Nig:
Blep e plieuaquinuioh’ | oh
ybhosogubne uyor  vg
SRl el S

- sweloid 106155 - (4ga) eaminy auy Jod sjooyag Bupyng

0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 o003 0003 0663 0863 006 L0003 o ST
j210f SaAIISEY JHBULLIOACD BBwWerg o4 [eude  junoosoy (uMiN) WM wodg sydienay saipoy SyuRin sweayls jeyden Jo ameN "ON “joy
Wwosy fenuad Ag - swwmiBoig | eibuig enusAay | anwsey | Bupsurulg ERdey  yiowory ! jeyden
Bugousuiy  pouoddng joN ¢ seredag Migos | punyg shieday joesn | Bupung |
syueubueny - {wlgog Cjeusn  aofely wolg ienden
piie238,) LHO Buinueury
» Buimoniog Bupsueul 4 :
By
{40k g wdinog Buipuny jeso)” Z111 102 01 01/6007 awureibidsy jeudes yeig
£ xjpusddy Z1/11L0C 03 017600z ewiweiBoud jepden pasodoid (oo




081 Bupunyg SHRSe ale (L) poxiew SBlWAOg;

aunuesBoid (eydes je1ol |

{5im0k £} sauneg Buibing 1oL

Lo Z9c'9oy (0089 YEL'SL GO0FLE pepiae 598'L1 1zzle 1] Gi8'GL 6LE'151
Al SOE'ELL 0 0 0001 669°g1L o LT LE ] 0 0 {yuH) soointes Buisnoy 12101 | B
) g ¢ 0 9. 0 L 298013 WeReS T gz)
o q 0 ook 0 a 6 . Swop sBeupi] ¢ sbemag’ o7|
w 0. 9. 0 89 L 0 0 L [eRowsy SOissasy )
a 0 Q 0 o0 Y] 0 SOUBLIEIUIRY SMIEIUOABIY peLLRLE €7
o o o 3 g o 0 o _ uonenssie) Afioug. 7z
i 0 0 Lo ‘0 0 SHOM 123010813 B |sarieydap | 17y
L0 L 0 . 0 0 0 SHOM [EInong oz
a ¢ 0 0 0 Cip SWOp) feyideg feiuasss 5
0 0 0 0 a 0 0  Siusluenol 8Ll
0 0 0 0 o IR Wewosedsy uepog: v
0. 0 0 0 0 Suatedepy g spry 91
o 5 % % 0 $39.4 [BUOISSA0L4. Gl
o 0 0. 0. siedoy psieiided: piy
0 000711 9 0 o0 0. o POHOM SBUIH IUSSAG ¢y
0 . . 00z 0 ‘0 SPIoAsyiom dolepy 711
LU L 1Y 05T 0 (I LBHUBYDE UNG5SIC] Bigriajsigly. 1
{(VyH) 1unoasy enusasy Buisnop) seoinlag Buisnog
000.3 | 0003 0003 0003 . 0003 0003 " 0003 . boo3 0003 _
[0 SaAIBEaY JBLLUIIACG wewsEy  jod [endes junoooy T (uyw) CWHK woid | sidisaay “saipog : awayag jeydes jo awel "oN jay]
Wold o EnueyAg | awweboid . aulg | snusasy sadsay  Bususuly | peuden yio wouy {enden
Bupueuid | popoddng jop . °esedeg ¢ (Wi3gs | pung sifeday joesn Bupuny
sjusweBueny | () 398 leieuany  dolepy woiy: renden
Hpaun woag Budueuy
g Bemotrog : Bugouruyg
REUEY :

_Z1/1b0Z 91 0176007 stiviesbold [ides yeid:

r xipuaddy

2171102 03 0176002 swwieiBoid jeyides pasodoiy je10 ]




Page 126

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 127

Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2009/10 to 2011/12

Contents

1. Background

2. The Treasury Position

3. Outlook for Interest Rates

4, Borrowing Requirement and Strategy
5. Debt Rescheduling

6. Investment Policy and Strategy

7. Icelandic Banks

8. Balanced Budget Requirement

9. Annual MRP Statement

10.  Delegation

11. Reporting

12. Other Items — CIPFA Review of the Prudential Code
Annexes

1. Prudential indicators

2. Interest Rate Outlook

Appendix K



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

Page 128

Appendix K
Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2009/10 to 2011/12

Background

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy's Code of
Practice for Treasury Management in Public Services (the “CIPFA TM
Code") requires local authorities to set the Treasury Management Strategy
Statement (TMSS) for borrowing each financial year.

CIPFA has defined Treasury Management as:

‘the management of the organisation’s cash flows, its banking, money
market and capital market fransactions; the effective control of the risks
associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance
consistent with those risks.”

The Council regards the successful identification, monitoring and control of
risk to be the prime criteria by which the effectiveness of its treasury
management activities will be measured. Treasury management risks are
identified in the Council's approved Treasury Management Practices: the
main risks to the Council's treasury activities are:

 Liquidity Risk (Inadequate cash resources);

e Market or Interest Rate Risk (Fluctuations in interest rate levels and
thereby in the value of investments);

Inflation Risks (Exposure to inflation);

Credit and Counterparty Risk (Security of Investments);

Refinancing Risks (Impact of debt maturing in future years);

Legal & Regulatory Risk (i.e. non-compliance with statutory and
regulatory requirements, risk of fraud).

The strategy also takes into account the outlook for interest rates, the
Council's current treasury position and its approved Prudential Indicators
(attached as Annexe 1). The Pls relevant to the treasury management
strategy are set out below:

T 200910 2015741 25115
No.' _ Estimate Estimate Estimate
6 Authorised Limit for ; ]
. . ExternalDept _~ *900m . £900m . £900m
7 Operational Boundary
. forExtemalDept ~  875m . £875m  £875m
9 Upper Limit for Fixed oy | or | o |
... Interest Rate Exposure 100 % 100 % 0%
10 . Upper Limit for ' '

- Variable Rate 40%  40% @ 40%
.. Exposure 1
12 Upper Limit for total

' principal sums ~ £60m  £60m = £60m

..invested over 364 days

Page 1



Page 129

Appendix K
Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2009/10 to 2011/12

11 Maturity structure of fixed rate borrowing - | Lower Limit - Upper Limit

% %
under 12 months 0 25
12 months and within 24 months 0 25
24 months and within 5 years 0 50
5 years and within 10 years 0 75
. 10yearsandabove 0 00

1.5 This TMSS also incorporates the Council's Investment Strategy.

Page 2



2.1

4.1

4.2

Page 130

Appendix K
Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2009/10 to 2011/12

The Treasury Position

The actual treasury position for 31/03/2008:

31/03/08
Estimate
£Em %

"Eﬂ)&érnalu borfowirig:
Fixed rate - PWLB 508.6 ¢

Fixed rate - Market 125.0
”b'fher IdéQ;{erm " 486 '
liabilities :
Total external debt 638.2 | 7.22
Investments: VTS
Total Investments 146.0 | 6.04

Qutlook for interest Rates

The economic interest rate outlook and commentary is provided by the
Council's external advisers and is attached at Annexe 2.

Borrowing Requirement and Strategy

The Council's underlying need to borrow for capital purposes is measured by
reference to its Capital Financing Requirement (CFR). The CFR will
determine the Council’s requirement to make a Minimum Revenue Provision
for Debt Redemption (MRP) from within its Revenue budget. Physical
borrowing may be greater or less than the CFR.

| 2008/09 © 2008/09 | 2009/10 | 2010/11 201112

'CFR Estimate Revised Estimate | Estimate = Estimate |

- _£000  £000 . £000 | £000 . £000
- Non-HRA 236,404 = 226,536 226,850 236,758 231,899
HRA 413383 413,000 449,242 495475 545.708
Total CFR | 649,787 639,545 | 676,092 | 732,233 | 777,607 |

In accordance with the Prudential Code, the Council will ensure that net
external borrowing does not, except in the short term, exceed the CFR in the
preceding year plus the estimates of any additional CER for the current and
next two financial years.

Page 3



4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

Page 131

Appendix K
Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2009/10 to 2011/12

Capital expenditure not financed from internal resources (i.e. Capital
Receipts, Capital Grants and Contributions, Revenue or Reserves) will
produce an increase in the CFR (the underlying need to borrow) and may in
turn produce an increased requirement to charge MRP in the Revenue
Account,

The cumulative estimate of the long-term borrowing requirement is calculated
as follows:

. 31/03/09 | 31/03/10 | 31/03/11  31/03/12
Estimate | Estimate Estimate  Estimate
£'000 £000  £000 £000

Capital Financing Requirement 639,545 676,092 732,233 777,607

Less:

. Existing Profile of Borrowing and
Other Long Term Liabilities 638,196 639,545 676,092 732,233
Borrowing Requirement 1,349 | 36,547 56,141 | 45374

The Council prefers to maintain maximum control over its borrowing activities
as well as flexibility on its loans portfolio. Capital expenditure levels, market
conditions and interest rate levels will be monitored during the year in order to
minimise borrowing costs over the medium to longer term. A prudent and
pragmatic approach to borrowing will be maintained to minimise borrowing
costs without compromising the longer-term stability of the portfolio,
consistent with the Council’'s Prudential Indicators.

In conjunction with advice from its external advisers the Council will keep
under review the options it has in borrowing from the PWLB, the market and
other sources identified in the Treasury Management Practices Schedules up
to the available capacity within its CFR and Affordable Borrowing Limit
(defined by CIPFA as the Authorised Limit).

Short-dated gilt yields are forecast to be considerably lower than medium-
and long-dated gilt yields during the financial year. Despite additional gilt
issuance to fund the UK government's support to the banking industry, short-
dated gilts are expected to benefit from expectations of lower interest rates as
the economy struggles through a recession. Yields for these maturities will
fall as expectations for lower interest rates mount.

The Council will evaluate with its external advisers the relative merits of a
strategic exposure to variable rate debt. Decisions to borrow at low, variable
rates of interest will be taken after considering the absolute level of longer
term interest rate equivalents and the extent of variable rate earnings on the
Council's investment balances.

Actual borrowing undertaken and the timing will depend on capital
expenditure levels, interest rate forecasts and market conditions during the

Page 4



5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

6.1

T asury Management Strategy Statemem
and 1nvestment Strategy 2009!10 to 201 1112

.year in order to mzmmlse borrowmg costs The Cauncu will’ be adv:sed by its " S
‘external adwsers ‘of the specific tsmmg of borrowmg This ‘may inc lude
borrowing in - ‘advance  of ‘future years’ requirements provided that overall -~
borrowi ing is mamtamed wnthm the Ceunc P s pre}ected CFR and its approved BEE

Authcrrsed Borrowmg leit

Debt ﬁRéséHéd'ul-ing‘ a

The Counc;E will continue to maintain a flexible policy for debt rescheduimg
Market volatility may.provide oppoz‘tumt[es for reschedul;ng debt from time .~
to time. The" rat;onale for rescheduling would ‘be one or more of the - o

followi ing:

L Sav;ngs in interest costs with minimal risk.

» Balancing the volatility profile (i.e. the ratio of fixed to variable rate deb’{}.-:-:'-

of the debt: portfoilo

> - Amendmg the profile of maturing debt to reduce any inherent refi nanczng”'_:.'.'_-'-f’:j_:':;‘__'_-.

- risks.

The rescheduling of PWLB debt since the introduction of its repayment rates ;
on 1 November 2007 has not ceased, but has become undoubtedly harder
and places greater emphasis on the timing and type of new borrowing.

Any rescheduling activity will be undertaken within the Council's treasury
management policy and strategy. The Council will agree in advance with its

external advisérs the strategy and framework within which debt will be: -
repaid/rescheduled if opportunities arise. Thereafter the Council's debt . .~

portfolio will be monitored against equivalent interest rates and available
refinancing options on a regular basis. As opportunities arise, they will be
identified by its external advisers and discussed with the Council’s officers.

All rescheduling activity will comply with the accounting requirements of the
local authority SORP and regulatory requirements of the Capital Finance
and Accounting Regulations (SI 2007 No 573 as amended by SI 2008/414).
Borrowing and debt rescheduling activity will be i@ported to the Cabinet as
appropriate.

Investment Policy and Strateqy

Background

Guidance from the then ODPM (now DCLG) on Local Government
Investments in England requires, similarly, that an Annual Investment
Strategy (AIS) be set. The Guidance permits the TMSS and the AIS fo be
combined into one document.

Page 5

';A_:!ﬁp'e.ntiix K



6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

Page 133

Appendix K
Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2009/10 to 2011/12

Investment Policy

The Council's general policy objective is to invest its surplus funds prudently.
The Council's investment priorities are:

« security of the invested capital;
« liquidity of the invested capital;
» anoptimum yield which is commensurate with security and liquidity.

The speculative procedure of borrowing purely in order fo invest is unlawful.

The credit crisis has refocused attention on the treasury management priority
of security of capital monies invested. The Council has reviewed its
approach and will access and assess a wider range of indicators of credit
strength than the pure reliance upon credit ratings. This includes a range of
objective indicators (such as credit default swaps, share price movements
and sovereign credit ratings, individual, financial strength, support ratings and
economic indicators) as well as a subjective overlay. The use of Bloomberg
reporting will be developed to assist in this.

Investments are categorised as ‘Specified” or ‘Non Specified’ investments
based on the criteria in the ODPM Guidance.

Specified Investments will be those that meet the criteria in the ODPM
Guidance, i.e. the investment

+ s sterling denominated;

« has a maximum maturity of 1 year;

¢ meets the “high” credit criteria as determined by the Council or is made
with the UK government or is made with a local authority in England,
Wales and Scotland;.

¢ the making of which is not defined as capital expenditure under section
25(1)(d) in S| 2003 No 3146 (i.e. the investment is not loan capital or
share capital in a body corporate).

The Council's investments will be in the following investment instruments
classified as Specified Investments:

» fixed term deposits in banks and building societies;

« certificates of deposit with banks and building societies;

» other local authorities;

* money market funds with a AAAm rating and a constant net asset value;
+ UK Government bonds (Gilts); and,

+ UK Treasury Bills;

» UK Government Debt Management Deposit Account Facility (DMADF).

Page 6



6.7

6.8

6.9

Page 134

Appendix K
Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2009/10 to 2011/12

Non-Specified Investments will satisfy all the criteria of Specified Investments
with one exception, they will have a maximum maturity of 6 years and the
maximum exposure will be £60m. They will cover the following investments:

» Bonds issued by Multilateral Development Banks (i.e. European
Investment Bank, World Bank);

» Bonds issued by institutions with an explicit UK Government Guarantee;:
and,

» UK Government bonds (Gilts); and,

« Other local authorities.

The Chief Financial Officer, under delegated powers, will undertake the most
appropriate form of investments in keeping with the investment objectives,
income and risk management requirements and Prudential Indicators.
Decisions taken on the core investment portfolio will be reported to the
Cabinet as appropriate.

All investment activity will comply with the accounting requirements of the
local authority SORP.

Investment Counterparties

6.10 Financial markets and financial institutions remain in a state of heightened

6.11

risk as the impact of the credit crunch continues to adversely affect the global
economy with particular volatility in the financial and banking sectors. In order
to reduce risk the Council has considered adopting a more tiered approach to
limits and ratings, including the use of sovereign ratings. However, this
strategy is recommending an approach that goes further than this. The
Council’s investment activities have been restricted as a consequence in
order to demonstrably address the prevailing higher risk backdrop and it is
proposed to continue to restrict this and at the same time take advantage of
more AAA rated government backed instruments. This will apply to all new
transactions.

The Council is able to invest in the investment instruments outlined in 6.6 and
6.7 above but it is proposed that investments in banks and building societies
(on a term or certificate of deposit basis) are limited to UK banks and building
societies that have a minimum AA- long term credit rating and F1+ short term
rating and are participants in the UK Government's Credit Guarantee
Scheme (CGS).

This will limit activity to the following banks:

Abbey National
Barclays

HSBC

Lloyds Banking Group
Royal Bank of Scotland

Page 7



6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

Page 135

Appendix K
Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2009/10 to 2011/12

and the following Building Society:
« Nationwide

The CGS effectively provides a UK Government Guarantee for these
institutions, some of whom such as Lloyds Banking Group and Royal Bank of
Scotland have effectively been partially nationalised by the UK Government.

It is proposed that deposits with these banks and building society are allowed
for periods up to 12 months duration and £20m exposure limit per institution
applies at a group level.

Given current conditions and the possibility of downgrade to the UK and its
banks the Chief Financial Officer retains delegated power to allow the
continuation of use of these six institutions even if they suffer downgrades
below a long-term rating of AA- and a short-term rating of F1+, whilst the UK
Government Guarantee remains in place.

The previous strategy allowed for the use of non-UK banks and building
societies that had minimum ratings of A and F1.

The Council has an account with the Debt Management Deposit Account
Facility (DMADF). This facility allows the Council to invest with the UK
Government via HM Treasury for periods up to 6 months. There is no
exposure limit on the DMADF as an investment counterparty.

The Council can utilise Money Market Funds with a AAAm rating and
operating on a constant net asset value basis (CNAV). The Council can
invest up to £10m in money market funds but has a maximum exposure limit
to any one Fund of £5m.

Investments in other UK local authorities are permitted. There is a £30m
exposure limit on each local authority as investment counterparties.

The Council is permitted to invest in sterling denominated bonds issued by
HM Government (Gilts), bonds issued with a HM Government Guarantee and
bonds issued by Multi Lateral Development Banks (i.e. European Investment
Bank, World Bank). Investments in these bonds will be for periods of up to 6
years. The Council will look to utilise more of this highly secure government
backed instruments.

Page 8



Page 136

Appendix K
Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2009/10 to 2011/12
6.16 The permitted investments can be summarised as follows:
Maximum  Maximum
- Investment . Counterparty  Length of Criteria
T . Limit " Investment :
Banks and Building Societies  £20m 1 year -Min AA- long term
: : ~and F1+ rating plus
. e R . CGS (or equivalent)
Local Authorities  £30m  5years o
_Money Market Funds .Em na ...AAAmM and CNAV
HM Government (DMADF ) - Unlimited 6 months
HM Government (Gilts and
Treasury Bills) . Unlimited . 6years
- Bonds issued by Multilateral
DevelopmentBanks  £60m 6 years
Bonds issued with HM :
_Government Guarantee . £60m 6 years

The Chief Financial Officer will assess whether to restrict further within these
limits based on the latest available market information and advice.

Investment Strategy

6.17 With short term interest rates sharply lower and expected to decrease further

in 2009, investment strategy would typically result in a lengthening of
investment periods, where cash flow permits, in order to lock-in higher rates
of acceptable risk adjusted returns. The problem in the current environment is
finding an investment counterparty providing acceptable leveis of
counterparty risk.

6.18 Investment strategy will include investment for longer periods (up to 6 years)

7.1

in bonds issued by HM Government, Multilateral Development Banks and
bonds with a HM Government Guarantee to secure a level of acceptable risk
adjusted return that should span the period of sharply lower interest rates.
The bonds satisfy the investment objectives of the Council and as Non
Specified Investments any investment will be limited to a maximum of £60m.

Remaining investments will be placed with the other approved investment
counterparties in order to achieve a diversified portfolio of prudent
counterparties, investment periods and rates of retumn.

Icelandic Banks

In early October 2008 all three of Iceland’s major banks (Glitnir, Kaupthing
and Landsbanki) collapsed following their difficulties in re-financing their
short-term debt coupled with a run on deposits. In the UK, the Financial
Services Authority (FSA) put Kaupthing, Singer & Friedlander (the UK
subsidiary of Kaupthing) and Heritable Bank (the UK subsidiary of
Landsbanki) into administration. The Administrators will be seeking to find
purchasers for, and will continue to manage, the banks’ businesses and loan

Page 9



7.2

8.1

9.1

9.2

9.3

Page 137

Appendix K
Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2009/10 to 2011/12

books to maximize recovery for creditors. The Chief Financial Officer is on
the statutory creditor's committee for the administration of the UK registered
Heritable Bank, together with the Finance Director of Kent County Council
representing all public sector bodies in this process.

Almost 120 Local Authorities have some exposure to these banks amounting
to around £0.8bn. This is in the context of a reported fotal figure of £56bn
invested in lcelandic banks. This Council had deposits of approximately
£37m invested in three Icelandic institutions. The process of administration
will determine the extent of any recoverable amount and also the timescale
over which any such payments will be made. The Council will however be
required under the SORP to account for the impairment of these financial
assets in the 2008/09 Income and Expenditure Account. The Department for
Communities and Local Government (DCLG) published draft Regulations in
December 2008 aimed at deferring the impact of impairment until 2010/11.
The Council will have the opportunity to apply to the DCLG for a capitalisation
direction in that year, although no guarantee can be given that a direction will
be granted. The granting of a capitalisation direction allows the impairment
cost to be spread over a number of years. [The consultation deadline for the
draft regulations is 23 January 2009 ]

Balanced Budget Requirement

The Council complies with the provisions of $S32 of the Local Government
Finance Act 1992 to set a balanced budget.

Annual MRP Statement

For many years local authorities have been required by Statute and
associated Statutory Instruments to charge to the Revenue Account an
annual provision for the repayment of debt associated with expenditure
incurred on capital assets. This charge to the Revenue Account was
referred to as the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP).

In February 2008 the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting)
(England) (Amendment) Regulations 2008 [Statutory Instrument
2008/414] were approved by Parliament and became effective on 31
March 2008. These regulations replace the formula based method for
calculating MRP which existed under previous regulations under the Local
Government Act 2003. The new regulations require a local authority to
determine each financial year an amount of MRP which it considers to be
prudent. Linked to this new regulation, the Department of Communities
and Local Government (DCLG) has produced Statutory Guidance which
local authorities are required to follow, setting out what constitutes a
prudent provision.

The DCLG Guidance recommends that before the start of the financial
year, a statement of MRP policy for the forthcoming financial year is
approved by the full Council.

Page 10



Page 138

Appendix K

Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2009/10 to 2011/12

9.4. The broad aim of the Policy is to ensure that MRP is charged over a

8.5.

9.6

9.7

9.8

9.9

period that is reasonably commensurate with the period over which the
capital expenditure which gave rise to the debt provides benefits. In the
case of borrowing supported by Revenue Support Grant, the aim is that
MRP is charged over a period reasonably commensurate with the period
implicit in the determination of that grant. MRP is not required to be
charged to the Housing Revenue Account. Where a local authority's
overall CFR is £nil or a negative amount there is no requirement to charge
MRP.

MRP Options:

Four options for prudent MRP provision are set out in the DCLG
Guidance. Details of each are set out below with a summary set out in
Table 1:

Option 1 —~ Regulatory Method:

This method replicates the position that would have existed under the
previous Regulatory environment. MRP is charged at 4% of the
Authority's underlying need to borrow for capital purposes; the Capital
Financing Requirement (CFR). The formula includes an item known as
“Adjustment A” which was intended to achieve neutrality between the
CFR and the former Credit Ceiling which was used to calculate MRP prior
to the introduction of the Prudential System on 1 April 2004. The formula
also took into account any reductions possible related to commutation of
capital related debt undertaken by central government.

Option 2 —- CFR Method:

This method simplifies the calculation of MRP by basing the charge solely
on the authority’s CFR but excludes the technical adjustments included in
Option 1. The annual MRP charge is set at 4% of the non-housing CFR
at the end of the preceding financial year.

Option 3 — Asset Life Method:

Under this method MRP is determined by the life of the asset for which
the borrowing is undertaken. This can be calculated by either of the
following methods:

(a) Equal Instalments: where the principal repayment made is the
same in each year, or

(b) Annuity: where the principal repayments increase over the life of
the asset

MRP commences in the financial year following that in which the
expenditure is incurred or, in the year following that in which the relevant
asset becomes operational. This enables an MRP “holiday” to be taken in

Page 1



Page 139

Appendix K
Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2009/10 to 2011/12

relation to assets which take more than one year to be completed before
they become operational.

9.10 The estimated life of the asset will be determined in the year that MRP
commences and will not be subsequently revised. However, additional
repayments can be made in any year which will reduce the level of
payments in subsequent years.

9.11 If no life can be reasonably attributed to an asset, such as freehold land,
the life is taken to be a maximum of 50 years. In the case of freehold land
on which a building or other structure is constructed, the life of the land
will be treated as equal to that of the structure, where this would exceed
50 years.

9.12.1n instances where central government permits revenue expenditure to be
capitalised, the Statutory Guidance sets out the number of years over
which the charge to revenue must be made.

Option 4 - Depreciation Method

9.13 The deprecation method is similar to that under Option 3 but MRP is
equal to the depreciation provision required in accordance with proper
accounting practices to be charged to the Income and Expenditure
account.

Conditions of Use

9.14 The DCLG Guidance puts the following conditions on the use of the four
options:

Options 1 and 2 can be used on all capital expenditure incurred before 1
April 2008 and on Supported Capital Expenditure on or after that date.

Options 3 and 4 are considered prudent options for Unsupported Capital
Expenditure on or after 1 April 2008.These options can also be used for
Supported Capital Expenditure whenever incurred.

Policy

9.15 The policy will be to use Option 1 (Regulatory Method) for supported
borrowing and Option 3 (Asset Life Method) for unsupported borrowing.

10. Delegation
10.1 The following delegations will apply for treasury management:

Cabinet
Annual review of policy

Consideration of the strategy

Page 12



11.

11.1

12.

12.1

Page 140

Appendix K
Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2009/10 to 2011/12

Chief Financial Officer

Implementation of the policy and strategy, including the authority to raise
loans, enter into leases and make investments. In each case this will be in
accordance with procedures determined by the Chief Financial Officer as
set out in the Treasury Management Practices.

Reporting

The Chief Financial Officer will:
* prepare an annual strategy report and review of the policy for the
consideration of the Cabinet and approval by Full Council;

* report six months after approval of the strategy on investment activity to
General Purposes Committee;

» report annually to the Cabinet on the achievement of the previous year's
strategy;

» report relevant, key details of the treasury management information to
the Cabinet Member for Resources/the Cabinet as appropriate, such as
performance indicators (including on security and liquidity), budget
variances, debt restructuring, etc.

s the Treasury Management Practices documents will be updated
accordingly for operational use — they will include additional weekly and
monthly review meetings with officers.

Other ltems
CIPFA review of the Prudential Code.

In early 2008 CIPFA undertook a consultation exercise to review the
implementation and ongoing use of the Prudential Code. CIPFA has yet to
publish its conclusions arising from the consuitation process. In the event that
amendments are made to the Code by CIPFA, these may need to be
reflected in the Treasury Management and Investment Strategy
documentation.

Page 13



Page 141

Appendix K
Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2009/10 to 2011/12
PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS
Annexe 1

Prudential Indicators FY 2009/10 to FY 2011/12

1. Background

There is a requirement under the Local Government Act 2003 for local
authorities to have regard to Cipfa’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in
Local Authorities (the “Cipfa Prudential Code”) when setting and reviewing their
Prudential Indicators. It should be noted that CIPFA undertook a review of the
Code in early 2008. The outcome from that review has yet to be published.

2. Estimates of Capital Expenditure

2.1 This indicator is set to ensure that the level of proposed capital expenditure
remains within sustainable limits and, in particular, to consider the impact on
Council Tax and in the case of the HRA, housing rent levels.

'No.1 | Capital 2008/09 : 2008/09 2009/10 . 2010/11 2011/12
| _ Expenditure ] N T S '
: Approved  Revised Estimate Estimate Estlmate

_ £000 = £000  £000 @ £000 £000

Non-HRA 88,302 81,015 149,280 96,769 49,008 |

HRA 58,003 53,097 49,725 58,790 62 790\_}

Total 146,395 134,112 199 005 155,559 111 798

2.2 Capital expenditure will be financed as follows:

Capital Financing 2008/09 = 2008/09 | 2009/10 2010/11  2011/12 ‘

-  Approved | Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate
] £000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Capital receipts 18,167 . 18,893 9,837 7,772 13,905
_Government Grants 57143 49 119 118,823 64,030 30,341

- Major Repairs AElowance B 11 855 14,653 12,407 . 12,407 12,407
Revenue contnbut:ons 9,451 7,263 12,330 6,135 300
Supported borrowmg . 48,817 44,084 42,186 . 53,403 54, 845___5
_Unsupported borrowing 962 100 3422 11812 0
Total 146,395 ’!34 112 199,005 155559 111,798

Note: the element to be financed from borrowing impacts on the movement in the
CFR.

Page 14



Treasury Management Strategy Statement

Page 142

and Investment Strategy 2009/10 to 2011/12

3. Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream

Appendix K

3.1This is an indicator of affordability and highlights the revenue implications of
existing and proposed capital expenditure by identifying the proportion of the
revenue budget required to meet borrowing costs. The definition of financing
costs is set out at paragraph 87 of the Prudential Code.

3.2 The ratio is based on costs net of investment income.

No. Ratio of

2008/08 | 2008/09 2009/10  2010/11 201112

2 Financing i 5

' Costs to Net
Revenue

3 - Approved Revised Estimate = Estimate Estimate
T oo S
Non-HRA .59 566 520 521 508
LLHRA 32,94 3615 33.59 3402 = 3462
_Total 465 447 408 409 399

4. Capital Financing Requirement

4.1 The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) measures the Council's underlying
need to borrow for a capital purpose. The calculation of the CFR is taken from
the amounts held in the Balance Sheet relating to capital expenditure and its
financing. It is an aggregation of the amounts shown for Fixed and Intangible
assets, the Revaluation Reserve, the Capital Adjustment Account, Government
Grants Deferred and any other balances treated as capital expenditure.

No.  Capital Financing  31/03/09 | 31/03/09 31/03/10 | 31/03/11  31/03/12
3 Requirement I N
: : Approved = Revised = Estimate Estimate . Estimate

_£000 | £000 £000  £000  £000
Non-HRA 236,404 226,536 226,850 236,758 231,899
HRA 413,383 413,009 449,242 495475 545708
_.Total CFR 649,787 | 639,545 | 676,092 732,233 777,607 |

Page 15



Page 143

Appendix K

Treasury Management Strategy Statement

and Investment Strategy 2009/10 to 2011/12

4.2 The year—on-year change in the CFR is due fo the following
Capital Financing 2008/09 | 2009/10  2010/11  2011/12
Requirement e i
Revised  Estimate  Estimate = Estimate |
£000 £:000 £000 ~ £000
Balance B/F 611,670 639,545 676,002 732,233
- Capital expenditure 44184 45608 65215 54,845

financed from borrowing ' ' 5

{per2.2) I
- Revenue provision for (16,309) (9,061) {9,074) (9,471)
- debt Redemption. )

Other items (specify) | o -
“Balance C/F 639,545 676,002 732,233 777,607

4.3In order to ensure that over the medium term net borrowing will only be for a
capital purpose, the Council should make sure that net external borrowing does
not, except in the short term, exceed the Capital Financing Requirement in the
preceding year plus the estimates of any additional capital financing
requirement for the current and next two financial years.

4.4 The Chief Financial Officer reports that this Council had no difficulty meeting

this requirement in 2007/08 nor are difficulties envisaged for the current or
future financial years.

5 Actual External Debt

5.1 This indicator is obtained directly from the Council’'s balance sheet. It is the
closing balance for actual gross borrowing pilus other long-term liabilities. This
Indicator is measured in a manner consistent for comparison with the
Operational Boundary and Authorised Limit.

‘No. 4 Actual External Debt as at 31/03/08 5  fm
Borrowing ' 508.6
Other Long-term Liabilities 1280

Page 16



Page 144

Appendix K
Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2009/10 to 2011/12

6. Impact of Capital Investment Decisions

6.1 This is an indicator of affordability that shows the impact of capital investment
decisions on Council Tax and Housing Rent levels. On the assumption that
supported borrowing is financed by government grant and that prudential
borrowing is financed by savings or additional income, there is no direct impact
on the level of council tax and housing rent. The full council tax and housing
rent figures are shown below for information.

“No.  Impact of 2009/10 2010111 201112
5  Capital :
" {investment
Decisions __
Nit — Nil Nil

j o Proposed  Indicative = Indicative
- Band D Council £1,184.32 £1,219.85 . £1,256.44 .
CTax | | |
Average Weekly
Housing Rents

£82.95 £87.10  £91.45

7 Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary for External Debt

7.1The Council has an integrated treasury management strategy and manages its
treasury position in accordance with its approved strategy and practice. Overall
borrowing will therefore arise as a consequence of all the financial transactions
of the Council and not just those arising from capital spending reflected in the
CFR.

7.2The Authorised Limit sets the maximum level of external borrowing on a
gross basis (i.e. not net of investments) for the Council. It is measured on a
daily basis against all external borrowing items on the Balance Sheet (i.e. long
and short term borrowing, overdrawn bank balances and long term liabilities.
This Prudential Indicator separately identifies borrowing from other long term
liabilities such as finance leases. It is consistent with the Council's existing
commitments, its proposals for capital expenditure and financing and its
approved treasury management policy statement and practices.

7.3 The Authorised Limit has been set on the estimate of the most fikely, prudent

but not worst case scenario with sufficient headroom over and above this to
allow for unusual cash movements.

Page 17



Page 145

Appendix K

Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2009/10 to 2011/12

7.4 The Authorised Limit is the statutory limit determined under Section 3(1) of the
Local Government Act 2003 (referred fo in the legislation as the Affordable

Limit).
. No. | Authorised Limit 2008/10 2010/11  2011/12
6 for External Debt
' : Estimate @ Estimate  Estimate
S ___£000 . £000  £000
Borrowing 895419 895419 895,419
- Other Long-term 4,581 4581 4,581
. Liabilities f _
. Total 900,000 900,000 900,000

7.5 The Operational Boundary links directly to the Council’s estimates of the CFR
and estimates of other cashflow requirements. This indicator is based on the
same estimates as the Authorised Limit reflecting the most likely, prudent but
not worst case scenario but without the additional headroom included within the

Authorised Limit.

7.6 The Chief Financial Officer has delegated authority, within the total limit for any
individual year, to effect movement between the separately agreed limits for
borrowing and other long-term liabilities. Decisions will be based on the
outcome of financial option appraisals and best value considerations. Any
movement between these separate limits will be reported to the next meeting of

the Cabinet and Council

No. Operational - 2009/10 © 2010/11 2011/12
7 Boundary for ' ;
 External Debt
Estimate Estimate Estimate
£°000 £'000 £000
Borrowing 870,419 870,419 870,419
Other Long-term 4,581 4,581 4,581
~ Liabilities r
 Total 875,000 875,000 . 875,000

8. Adoption of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code:

8.1 This indicator demonstrates that the Council has adopted the principles of best

practice.

NoSAdoptlon of the CIPFA Code of Practice in Treasury Management

The Council approved the adoption of the CIPFA Treasury Ma'nagemeﬂht“ '

_ Code at its meeting in May 2002.

Page 18



Page 146

Appendix K
Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2009/10 to 2011/12

9. Upper Limits for Fixed Interest Rate Exposure and Variable Interest Rate
Exposure

9.1 These indicators allow the Council to manage the extent to which it is exposed
to changes in interest rates. This Council calculates these limits on a net

interest paid basis (i.e. interest paid on fixed rate debt net of interest received
on fixed rate investments).

9.2The upper limit for variable rate exposure has been set to ensure that the
Council is not exposed to interest rate rises which could adversely impact on
the revenue budget. The limit allows for the use of variable rate debt to offset
exposure to changes in shori-term rates on investments

2008/09  2008/09 | 2009/10  2010/11 = 201112
Approved . Revised Estimate Estimate = Estimate
- No. Upper Limit for _
9 Fixed Interest 5
Rate : 100 : 100 100 100 100
Exposure A RO
No. ' Upper Limit for ; 5
10 Variable Rate 40 40 40 40 40
r Exposure :

9.3 The limits above provide the necessary flexibility within which decisions will be
made for drawing down new loans on a fixed or variable rate basis: the
decisions will ultimately be determined by expectations of anticipated interest
rate movements as set out in the Council's treasury management strategy.

10  Maturity Structure of Fixed Rate borrowing

10.1 This indicator highlights the existence of any large concentrations of fixed
rate debt needing to be replaced at times of uncertainty over interest rates
and is designed to protect against excessive exposures to interest rate
changes in any one period, in particular in the course of the next ten years.

10.2 It is calculated as the amount of projected borrowing that is fixed rate
maturing in each period as a percentage of total projected borrowing that is
fixed rate. The maturity of borrowing is determined by reference to the
earliest date on which the lender can require payment.

No. Maturiﬁ( structure of fixed rate Lower Limit Upper lelt
11 borrowing 5 % % ?
o e . 25
12 months and within 24 months 0 25
24 months and within 5 years o 50
5 yéér_s and within 10 yeérs_ 0 ” 75

Page 19



Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2009/10 to 2011/12

Page 147

|10 years and above

Appendix K

100 -

11. Upper Limit for total principal sums invested over 364 days

11.1 The purpose of this limit is to contain exposure to the possibility of loss that
may arise as a result of the Council having to seek early repayment of the
sums invested.

No Upper Limit for 2008/09 2008/09 2009/10 © 2010/11  2011/12
. total principal 1 5
12  sums invested
_over364days : e
' Approved Revised = Estimate . Estimate Estimate -
o Emo o Emo o Em £m £m
60.00 60.00  60.00 60.00 60.00

Page 20



Page 148

Appendix K
Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2009/10 to 2011/12

Annexe 2

External advisers forecast for Interest Rates (December 2008)

Mar-08  Jun-09  Sep-09 Decf  Mar10  Jun-10  Sep-10  Dec-i0 Mar11

Official Bank Rate

Upside risk L e
Central cags 1.08 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.50 2.00 2.50 2.50
Downside risk 380 375 -3 P8 -L78 -0.75 -0.80 080 080 050
fyr LIBID :

Unside nsk

Central case 2.50 1.75 1.80 1.50 1.50 1.75 2.00 215 300
Downsicde risk -0.25 QLB (50 -0.50 055 .80 80 0507 050
5-yr gilt

Upside fisk

Central case 3.00 2.75 2.50 2.00 2.00 2.50 2.75 3.00 4.00
Downside risk .56 D50 050 .50 056 i
10-yr gilt

Upside risk

Central case 3.40 3.10 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.50 3.75 4.00 4.50!
Downside risk 028 0.258 080 A0 0.5 .50 i
20-yr gilt

Upside risk Fosasel w07 soool w0l 010

Central case 4,00 4.00 4.00 4.25 4.25 4.50 4,75 4781 A7H
Diownside risk .40 .10 -0.10 010 G0

B0-yr giit

Upside risk I apcol s0007 w0l ool s0an[ w0l s9s0] s010] 4018
Central case 3.80 3.90 4.00 4£.00 425 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50
Downside rigk -0.10 046 10 010 610 10 -0.19 0.4C] GG

The inflationary threats of 2008 tumn into the deflationary reality of 2009,
Central Banks under pressure to reduce rates decisively — even to zero or
near-zero — to avoid the perils of a destructive and prolonged recession.

The downturn in the UK gathers pace and the economy contracts for much
of 2009. Prospects for Bank of England "Quantitative easing” increasingly
likely.

Pension, hedge and insurance fund values struggle and lead to enhanced
demand for longer dated gilts.

Underlying assumptiions

Despite central bank intervention to raise bank capital and improve liquidity,
conditions in money and credit markets remain very difficult as banks' lending
behaviour changes fundamentally.

Consumer spending and business investment stall, hampered by the credit
drought.

Falling house prices compel households to review savings levels and repair
balance sheets (where possible).

Page 21



Page 149

Appendix K
Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2009/10 to 2011/12

Commodity prices continue to fall. CPI is projected to fall below the MPC’s
1% lower threshold in 2009, providing some relief for the overstretched
consumer, but eroding debt burdens more slowly.

Fear of rising unemployment dampens confidence and any prospect of
sizeable wage demands.

UK public finances are in poor shape and will worsen as the recession bites,
resulting in a slew of gilt issuance in 2009. This will ultimately push gilt vields
higher, although not aggressively so.

Global growth and activity continue to weaken. The Federal Reserve has
already cut rates to a range between 0% and 0.25% and has engaged in
‘quantitative easing’. The ECB could bring rates down to 2% as European
economies struggle with falling domestic and international demand.

Page 22



Page 150

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	5 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 19 January 2009.
	12 To receive reports from the following bodies
	2009 01 26_Financial Planning
	2009 01 26_Financial Planning - Appendix A
	2009 01 26_Financial Planning - Appendix B
	2009 01 26_Financial Planning - Appendix C1
	2009 01 26_Financial Planning - Appendix C2
	2009 01 26_Financial Planning - Appendix D
	2009 01 26_Financial Planning - Appendix E
	2009 01 26_Financial Planning - Appendix F1
	2009 01 26_Financial Planning - Appendix F2
	2009 01 26_Financial Planning - Appendix G
	2009 01 26_Financial Planning - Appendix H
	2009 01 26_Financial Planning - Appendix I
	2009 01 26_Financial Planning - Appendix J
	2009 01 26_Financial Planning - Appendix K


